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CORPORATE PROFILE
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or “CM Energy”, formerly
known as CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd./TSC Group Holdings
Limited) (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) with stock code 00206. The Company’s primary business
revolves around four directions, being hydrogen-based energy,
shipbuilding and offshore equipment support, smart electronic control,
and marine services.

The products developed under our hydrogen-based green energy
technology mainly comprise of alkaline water electrolysis hydrogen
production, vessel hydrogen power system integration, hydrogen
refueling stations EPC and hydrogen production integration, enabling
the Company to highlight its industrial manufacturing capability via
green energy. Shipbuilding and offshore equipment support and high-
end energy equipment products mainly include wing shaped rigid sails,
methanol/ammonia/LNG supply system, marine ultrafiltration energy-
saving products, offshore heavy duty cranes with capacity of 1,600
tonnes, jacking system assembly, power control and transmission systems,
machine rack pipes, as well as tension adjustment and compensation
devices. The core technology and products have taken the leadership in
the world after years of development. In addition, by virtue of years of
experience in overseas markets, CM Energy has successfully expanded the
business of drilling equipment upgrading, operation and maintenance
service, engineering technology service and supply chain management
business.

In the medium to long term, we will continue to focus on the synergistic
development around the four directions of hydrogen-based energy,
shipbuilding and offshore equipment support, smart electronic control,
and marine services, to enhance our global service network, construct
a global service center system, and achieve our rapid growth through
continuous innovation, expanding cooperation and making full use of
both internal and external resources, thus to make our contribution to
promote transformation of the energy industry and achievement of zero-
carbon emissions, aiming to become a leading technology-based green
energy enterprise and equipment service provider.
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STRATEGY TRANSFORMATION

The Group pays close attention to the development of green energy
and intelligent technology-related industries, proactively looks for
opportunities for investment in and consolidation of green energy related
industries to achieve synergistic effects of each of the Group's business
segments. Through investing in the undervalued opportunities along the
industrial supply chain, the Group is committed to enhancing the overall
performance of the Company and to maximizing the interest of the
shareholders and investors.

In the medium to long term, we will continue to deepen our strategic
positioning as a “technological innovation-driven green energy and
equipment service provider”, focusing on breakthroughs in core clean
energy technologies and the synergistic development of the ship and
marine supporting industries. Against the backdrop of accelerating global
carbon neutrality, the energy transition exhibits three new characteristics:
the industrialization process of hydrogen energy is advancing beyond
expectations (with the cost of green hydrogen production decreasing
by 27% year-on-year), the explosive growth in demand for ship and
marine clean energy equipment, and the deep integration of energy
digitalization with Al technology giving rise to new business models. We
will strengthen the dual-driven approach of technological innovation in
green energy equipment and scenario-based applications.

The medium-term development focus revolves around three main
directions: Scenario-based application of hydrogen energy technology:
deepening the technical reserves in the field of water electrolysis
hydrogen production, promoting the performance optimization of key
equipment and cost control, exploring synergistic innovation between
hydrogen production equipment and port and ship application scenarios,
consider the development pace of the regional hydrogen energy industry
and flexibly carry out technology exportation and asset-light operation
cooperation; Green empowerment of the ship and marine industry: focus
on the rigid demand for emission reduction in the shipping industry,
with an emphasis on cultivating low-carbon innovative solutions for
ships, while simultaneously developing integrated clean energy applied
technologies suitable for marine engineering scenarios, establish
customized and modular technical service capabilities through the
collaboration of industry, academia, and industry sectors; Constructing a
digital service ecosystem: promote the intelligent upgrade of equipment
and the construction of an operation and maintenance data platform,
gradually forming a value-added service system covering energy efficiency
management and carbon asset operations.

Long term development will focus on achieving leaps in capability in three
aspects: Technical aspect: forming a matrix of technical products with
proprietary intellectual property rights and establishing a leading position
in technical standards in specific sub-fields; Market aspect: deepen
strategic coordination with leading ship enterprises and expand the
cooperation network in key overseas markets; Model aspect: construct a
full-cycle value creation system of “technology R&D — equipment service
— operational value-added”.
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Emer International obtained solid
control production line and lifting
- system product line through the
Emer International started business e ‘ i acquisition of Zhengzhou Highlight
in Houston, Texas, U.S.A. and o and Zhengzhou GEAR and became

introduced a multiple advanced the only company in China that can

equipment and technologies to provide research and development,
China’s oil and gas industry ) ; design and manufacture of lifting
52 38 S 0 22 4 M 4 BB T Emer International’s 2nd manufacturing device for jack-up rigs

mR B DX 5 B U R AT AR facility, a manufacturing plant for hydraulic - — -
FIX - RARBURRITRSIE SR ends and accessories of mud pumps, was SRR B A8 R R B 75 R S

BB BEREMRIG founded in Qingdao, China Z; %E%%%’E%ﬁgig@i

REBERRPES SRV E - FEEM FHRRSE BERE « EHRIRE R A ]
EMER

TR BN 2UER

1995
2002
2007

HHCT, Emer International’s 1st manufacturing
facility, was founded in Xi‘an, China and
manufactured power control and driving systems
for onshore drilling

REBIR R S — 4 E A MG R G HT(HHCT) R R B
PR - SIS R BT 15 I AN SR B R 4t

2001
2005

Emer International was listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange

R B PR AA B A PTGEM _ETH
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The Company constructed high-spec R-550D jack-up
drilling rigs with Zentech and CSSC
ARpmHEZentech P A (FRIES RAER-550D
BAAEHTE

In the same year, the Company established the
Qingdao equipment manufacturing base

R4 - ARAREY S BRAEREEN

TSC Offshore transferred its listing to the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange

o
o
8 TSCHE 3 88 B 32 T AR _E T

2013

Emer International acquired GME (London AIM), iSGOffshore rebranded-as TSC-Grou
p
and was rebranded as TSC Offshore, expanded o ,
4 TSCEHE £ ATSCER

the product line of offshore drilling equipment
In the same year, China International Marine

and acquired the full capability of whole package
of offshore drilling rigs. It became one of the few Containers became a strategic shareholder of TSC

companies in the world that could provide the Group

whole package of offshore drilling rigs in parallel 4 - e EEEATSCE E B RARE
with NOV and MH

BBEBEEUEEGME (London AIM)IESE ATSC/E

FoOBARTEEEHTARBERSE  AREL

BRI G F)  ENOV - MHILFIR A% BB AE TS
19405 BB AT —

2011
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In 2021, TSC China and China Merchants Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“China Merchants Industry”) or
("CM Industry”) actively promoted the development
of strategic cooperation in offshore wind power
installation

Latest improvements gained in 2021:

e CMIC Hydrogen Energy Segment Company ((E75
SRR A A]) was established, and CMIC Green
Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. CER R AEHRlI(H
5)B R A 7)) was established

e CMIC Green Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd.
entered into an agreement with Tan Kah Kee
Laboratory of Xiamen University to establish a
joint venture Hua Xia Hydrogen Technology Co.,

Ltd. (R EREAERM(EF)ARAR) (“Huaxia

06

(o)}
o
AN

Minsheng Trust became a strategic shareholder of
the Company in February 2019

ZE-NFZARSEEFENAR RIBBEAR
In the same year, TSC Group Holdings Limited was

officially renamed as CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding
Co., Ltd.

BETSCREIFRARQ A EAE B REFBREREF
BEIREHEIERR AR A A

In May 2019, the sale of two units of CJ46 rigs to
Shelf was completed. The overseas team won the
contract for the offshore rig service project of Pemex
in relation to provision of two units of JU2000E rigs
to the other party

RSRA - MEHELHAShelff)CI46T B TR -
ABSNEB R iRPemexE I RIS ESR - BETTIEM
FIAZJU2000EEHF A

Hydrogen”)

e In 2021, the Company participated in the CMHI-
27201 wind power installation vessels project
of CM Industry, the first deep-water high-
power wind power installation platform with
independent intellectual property rights in China,
to provide core complete sets of equipment and
technology integration

- —F  TSCHEATAFHRIXEEER AR

E@E%I%DE@ﬁﬁﬁ@}@t@%i%%ﬁﬁm’ﬁﬁﬁ%

=]

TR

o EFQERMATNY  EFIERMTER)E
PR A BIRAL

China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean Strategy
& Technology Fund (L.P.) became the controlling
shareholder of TSC Group in February 2018

2 \F-ARARERMEFMEBRERER
ES R RTSCEBMZERAER

The Hong Kong Strategic Headquarters was
established in July 2018
—T-N\FLABTEBREIRT

In December 2018, two CJ46 drilling rigs were
bareboat-chartered to SMS to provide services

to Abu Dhabi National Oil Company, marking a
breakthrough in strategic transformation

FF+— AREAME 46 F 24aSMS - RER
(DEiid=ayap: N1 e
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2020

In the first half of 2020, Zhengzhou Company
successfully secured orders for two sets of lifting
systems for offshore wind power installation vessels,
and has accumulated orders for four sets of similar
products

ZEEFENF  BNARKNESRES LR
BLEMABRRFITE - BN ARE BFHEHNE
FfREmA] &

In August 2020, the Company signed a global
settlement deed with Huangpu Shipbuilding for the
H6001 and H6006 projects, through which Huangpu
Shipbuilding became a strategic shareholder of the
Company

RE/\A - BIfMRECE B EARF3H6001MH6006
EREZLHRNBERBE R AN RERRR

In October 2020, the land sale contract of Qingdao
offshore base was officially signed, effectively
revitalizing the idle assets of the Company

RFE+A SEEIEMTHEEARERNES
BRBEARRFIREEE



2022

2023

With the formal approvals from the Registrar
of Companies in the Cayman Islands and the
Stock Exchange, the Chinese name of the
Company has been changed to "%Tf?cﬁéﬁﬁﬂ
B AR AR with short name of "ZE4E
JR", and the English name has been changed
to “CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.” with short name
of “CM-ENERGY". The shares are traded on
the Stock Exchange under the new Stock Short
Name of “CM-ENERGY" in English and "ZEfg
82JR" in Chinese, with the stock code remained
unchanged.

BH= %% T?ﬂﬁﬁ‘iﬂ 6 22 BT 89 1F 3 #E
;NN TEPY%%&} E%f%%amﬁﬂ&
O ERA CETEIERRIR]
%&}ZQFNCM Ener y Tech Co., Lth Fﬁ?ﬁ
[CM-ENERGY o B {3 LA 3T 5 S B4 B 7 T CMI-
ENERGY ] F 3 SR ) R 7 [ ZE P AR PO BsE 22
FTEE  BROKRFEFTTE -

The successful opening ceremony of China
Merchants TSC Offshore Tech Ltd. (“CM TSC")
marked the official adoption of the new site of
CM ENERGY's headquarter for the East China
in Haimen.

ERRREFRMBROIFR EBAR DB
%Hﬂ)ﬁimﬁfﬂﬁﬁi@%ﬁ B aEMERE
BRI 15 48 5078 PO uE ) IE AR o

el
IRE

Huaxia Hydrogen completed the assembly of
the first set of 1,000-scf electrolytic cell, being
far ahead of the products of the same category
in terms of key indicators.
EERELHE1,00005 7 EREMTTAEE - B
RIEEIgREAL m%ﬂ%ﬁﬁuu g
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CM ENERGY completed the second round of
capital increase in Huaxia Hydrogen, becoming
the largest shareholder on a relative basis.
EFRR TR EEEQRATNE —RIEE
FXARTEE S —RIR -

Backed by joint research and development, the
nationalization rate of key core equipment of
China Merchants Ride Vessel* (33 & € @ 5%)
reached at 98.43%, and the crane with the
capacity of 1,600 tonnes has been the one with
the largest capacity delivered by CM ENERGY
since its establishment, which is of milestone
significance and has been selected as the
first set of technical equipment in Shandong
Province.

BRBAHE  BERRERERZORBRE
{£#98.43% - 1,600T M # 2 I 7 B IR K 32 LA
XXHE’]EK A fir B - EEERBAERE
% BAEABLREABEERMES -

The Overseas Division of CM ENERGY has
been successfully awarded a new project
(worth USD160 million) from PEMEX. The
project is in execution stage now and includes
upgrade work for 7 onshore drilling rigs and
maintenance service for CANRIG top drives.
%Eﬁazﬁﬁ?\\%%*%ﬁlbﬁﬁ BEFEKA
MR R (PEMEX)7 A BHME%%Z&E&;@A&
CANRleIﬁ%DEZHEﬁ%%ﬁIEE I 2 AT
MEER - THEFIEEEF1.6(8%T °

. Two joint ventures in the hydrogen energy

segment were established:

e CMIC Yiho Hydrogen Energ (Shenzhen)
o., Ltd.* (E@BARIERINKRMHBR A
Al), a world’s leading dlaphragm hydrogen
compressor manufacturer, was established,
and the first set of 500KG diaphragm
hydrogen compressor assembling was
successfully delivered

o Shenzhen InteIILgent Hydrogen Industry Co.,
Ltd.* (RYIEEEEABRAF), an unmanned
hydrogen heavy truck operatlon company, was
established

MR DA E B R AL

o 2REABRATEHERELED - EFBHHAT
RE ORI BB R A K - HES00KGHRE
tﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁmﬂiﬁ

o %fﬁﬁé BERE -
EE

RNELEEE

. We won the tender for the offshore floating wind power

project of Marine Power System (MPS) in Europe

FRIZEUMMarine Power System (MPS)2R &))& £)F
ANEEIER

. We partnered with KenzFigee, a leading Dutch offshore

wind power heavy equipment company, to enter the core
equipment business of offshore wind power operation and
maintenance

HITRT RS R B AR B RE TR (D ¥ KenzFigee A F)
SIEEE S FREERZOREHER

2024

1. The Company introduced the high-efficiency energy-saving wing shaped rigid sail products from the European company BarTech,

achieving order fulfilment in 2024. The product has undergone rigorous validation through actual performance and data, and has
obtained the Ship Classification Society DNV's design type approval. Its unique wing shaped design enhances its lift performance by2.5
times compared to traditional single panel sails.

ARG R BB MBarTech 2 A= e R FuﬂU\ﬁWﬁFqu “IMEERIEEN - HEREBREEE iiﬁﬁ%ﬁ(ﬂ’]r%
B LEEDNVARI R H‘Wmﬂ HERMELG AR BN ERENER 125

. CM Energy collaborates with CM Jinling Shipyard to jointly establish a research and development institution, directly engaging

with shipowners and clients to conduct in-depth cooperation, focusing on cutting-edge technologies in new energy equipment,
particularly in areas of supply systems for green fuel such as methanol, ammonia and LNG. The common goal is to promote
technological innovation and marketization of these new energy equipment, especially the green fuel supply systems.
EHRETRERMNE Hﬁ#éf&‘jﬁﬂé’é%% ERAMMRERE  BRAREAME: E}j@%ﬁﬁm S BAALRA ) AHR
E'EM&LNG# RREIHEERAZEY - KRN ESROELTEELE SRR ehEkERE imélﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂt}_
gl

In 2024, the Company successfully launched and completed the offshore testing of the first set of 3 dimensional active compensation

' gangway products. CM Energy is currently one of the few companies in China that has mastered and applied the 3 dimensional

active compensation gangway technology. The successful offshore testing of this project has laid a solid foundation for the
commercial application of subsequent products.

PO MERNEAI) MUK R ABE T BRERRERNS LA - 2 /ﬁﬁéﬁwlmlﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁm
Fiiﬂ%ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’m% HRBMRDEAAREERNEREREE T 2 ENER

In 2024, the A-frame and deployment recovery system, independently developed by the Company for special tasks such as
underwater cable laying, heavy load operations and mining, successfully achieved offshore testing objectives. The system strictly
follows the DNV-ST-0378 standard for the design, review, manufacturing and acceptance processes to ensure high performance and
safety. The| project provides a solid technical support and equipment foundation for the exploration and excavation of future deep-
sea mineral resources.

—R-REANFAIMENEAK NS SHEEIFRSEERABRANARRTNORARERZREAR R AR08
RIEEDNV-ST-0378EE (T kAt - B - RERBWRE - RRBHZEREY - R ARRASREL RN BRERERE
TEENRMX BERBER -

. The “R&D and Industrialization of Off-grid High-performance Alkaline Hydrogen Generation Equipment” project by Huaxia

Hydrogen won the gold prize out of 450 global projects in the TERA-Award Smart Energy Innovation Competition jointly organized
by the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited and CHN Energy, marking that the Company's off-grid hydrogen production
technology has reached an industry-leading level. At the same time, the Company successfully qualified as a supplier for the 2024
centralized procurement project of hydrogen production equipment by China Energy Engineering Group, signifying that Huaxia
Hydrogen has entered the ranks of mainstream hydrogen production equipment enterprises.

SR NS R ER HTS ﬁﬁﬂ?&?%f VR - I 0ERARBAMY  REERNERRSMAAR LR
w@/\ﬂ;#ﬂ#E’GTERAAward*”%gmﬁa\%ﬁ Eof BREANRORBRIRIMENZAREAT - ARALRRNARRE
REE_T-MERHORBETRERAMER  EREEEGNEATRRARRBERTS -

—EomEsR - 2neRnrRearas 07
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GLOBAL SOLUTIONS
RERBRT R
Deep distribution of global hotspots of oil and gas and new

energy, boosting the value integration of the offshore
engineering and new energy business chains
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFMBEHE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and LA RN AAREBIRE T~ XM a2 ERGHNGAE
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below. B BAERBERE -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS PR
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-mE  —T-ZF —F-- 2§ ZTZ%F
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
SV TET e FET T=n
Revenue WA 166,773 181,337 113,040 57,027 65,882
Cost of sales HERA (125,294) (140,340) (85,294) (36,363) (54,265)
Gross profit E7 41,479 40,997 27,746 20,664 11,617
Other revenue and net income (including  Ef4as &F KA
reversal of impairment losses/ (BEREER
provisions) Vg 1) 1,475 1,933 6,770 19,548 27,980
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (2,600) (2,496) (2,693) (3,914) (4,818)
General and administrative expenses —RRITRAX (26,002) (25,454) (21,934) (19,775) (21,705)
Other expenses HinAx (219) (822) 2,571) (1,919 (3,767)
Finance costs BIFSRRA (80) (123) (161) (489) (660)
Share of results of associates AEHERAEE (1,893) (78) (47) 255 18
Share of results of a joint venture PE—HAERAREE - @) 19,345 1,370 1,216
Profit before taxation BRBATE R 12,160 13,955 26,455 15,740 9,881
Income tax (expenses)/credit PSR ER), /B4 (2,966) (4,346) (565) (6,396) 949
Profit for the year attributable to ADAEBAEFER
owners of the Company S 9,160 9,502 25,879 9,220 10,916

10 CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2024



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHMBEBE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E_mE -z —E--F T4 —Z-%F
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TEn TEL FEn TEL
Non-current assets ERBEE 53,289 81,446 38,796 76,680 72,634
Current assets MENEE 257,081 244,855 239,878 153,217 157,296
Current liabilities mBAE (127,544) (128,341) (108,116) (79,159) (93,422)
Net current assets MBEEFE 129,537 116,514 131,762 74,058 63,874
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (3,579) (22,136) (1,532) (2,160) (1,224)
Total assets BEE 310,370 326,301 278,674 229,897 229,930
Total liabilities BEE (131,123) (150,477) (109,648) (81,319) (94,646)
Net assets BAEFAE 179,247 175,824 169,026 148,578 135,284

Notes: M5t -

1. The summary of consolidated results of the Group includes the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries as if the current Group structure had been in
existence throughout the financial periods, or from the respective dates of
the incorporation where this is a shorter period. The consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are as set out on pages
163 to 164 of the audited financial statements.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31

December 2024 are as set out on pages 165 to 166 of the audited financial

statements.

1.

REEMGAEEMERREAARREN B AR
& MBI EERERTRAEREZEA RS
BRI E BR(URESE BE) —BEFE - KEE
BE_Z_NF+_A=+—BULFENGSEEH
REEZNEHRERIE163EE164E ©

AEBR -_ZE_NE+_A=+—BOGRAMERR
RN EERMBRENE1658E166H ©

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

Global economic growth in 2024 is expected to be lower than the previous year, with emerging markets and
developing economies experiencing faster growth. The international oil market is facing a supply-demand imbalance,
increasing uncertainty. The new construction market for offshore drilling rigs remains inactive, making rapid expansion
difficult in the short term. Facing severe market conditions and industry competition pressure, all employees of CM
Energy have worked together to overcome difficulties, with key projects progressing steadily, operations being solid
and effective, asset management being regulated and orderly, and the cultivation of emerging industries deepening.
The Company has maintained profitability for 6 consecutive years, with gross profit continuing to reach new heights.

2024 is also the starting year of the Company'’s five-year strategic plan, positioning itself to become an industry-
leading technological innovation-driven green energy and equipment service provider, actively promoting business
transformation and innovation, optimizing resource allocation, focusing on research, development and innovation,
continuously expanding its product lines and business lines, and achieving breakthroughs in the field of green energy
and equipment manufacturing.

First, significant breakthroughs have been achieved in equipment development. The 3 dimensional active compensation
gangway successfully completed sea trial, with the active compensation performance meeting design expectations
and relevant standards, obtaining the CCS product certificate, laying the foundation for the Company’s development
of an active compensation technology product series. The independently developed launch and recovery system was
awarded the first set of technical equipment in Shandong Province in 2024.

Second, we have expanded on various ways of cooperation to continuously broaden the product spectrum. The
successful launch of sail products and the official commencement of the wind-propelled equipment manufacturing
center highlight the market recognition of the Company’s products. The Company has smoothly undertaken the
research and development, manufacturing, and market promotion of CM Industry’s clean fuel supply system, and
jointly established a new energy joint R&D center with China Merchants Jinling Shipyard (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd.. In
collaboration with Shanghai Chunhe Ocean Technology Group Co., Ltd., the Company has introduced products
such as marine ultrafiltration energy-saving devices and marine lubricating oil ultrafiltration separators. Additionally,
CM Energy has added ship maintenance services as a business, and the CM Industry Global Service Center has been
established under CM Energy.

CM Energy-Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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Third, we have achieved breakthrough in key core technologies, with hydrogen production equipment winning the
gold award at the innovation competition. The “R&D and Industrialization of Off-grid High-performance Alkaline
Hydrogen Generation Equipment” project developed by the Huaxia Hydrogen team won the gold prize out of 450
global projects in the Hong Kong TERA-Award Smart Energy Innovation Competition. The 12MW water electrolyser
hydrogen production test base has also been successfully put into operation, achieving a full-chain development layout
from R&D to core material production, system integration, and testing.

Looking forward, to achieve the fundamental goals of strengthening traditional industries, optimizing emerging
industries, and expanding corporate capital, the Company has proposed the strategic goal of “focusing on ‘green,
technology, smart manufacturing’ and highlight the core driving force of technological innovation, and striving to
build a ‘green technological power’ that meets China Merchants’ foundation”. Firstly, focus on breakthroughs in the
core businesses to ensure the orderly advancement of traditional core businesses; secondly, comprehensively promote
the high-quality development of new industries with technological innovation as the core; thirdly, strengthen the
foundation and enhance internal control capabilities; fourthly, strengthen learning and training to solidify the talent
pipeline.

2025 marks the conclusion of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and the formulation of the “15th Five-Year Plan”. CM
Energy will closely align itself with the main theme of national development, striving to chart a new blueprint for
development, closely following the “third entrepreneurship” of China Merchants Group Limited (“CM Group”),
seizing new opportunities, actively expand, focusing on the layout of green technology industries with high growth
potential and innovation, and establishing itself as a leading technological green energy enterprise. Lastly, | would like
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and friends from all walks of life for your long-standing support for
CM Energy. Persevering together, we shall witness the Company’s continuous progress and development!

Sincerely,

Mei Xianzhi
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025

TR FEFR c ZEREERNBRROERAAT

13



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

“EMOFERREEEREFEN LS - EMSMBERPEERILEIRR ARG BN SHERE - THEME
LTt BTHEATFEMETHINTER - EHARAREER - EHBRROTSEENTERFES - EHER
FRETHETEE YRR SHREBISHE KETHEREEN  AEEEREAF  WMEERBSHE
R o ARRIBBFRIF AN - EMNEBEENS -

TENFhRARN R LFEBERBRTHRIEZF - AKBITEERNRRAIFNAGERRREFRBE AT
EEA - BEBAERKEIEAN  BLERKE  ENREMBEAT  BSELRARFAERGNERE  ER
AR REIR M R RLE RIR A SR o

—REBHAHEDNEEARE - —AHETPHHERBIENTRES  THHERRTARFA AR RBERES
KRB TCCSEMRBE  RARRFAEISMERMRAINERIT TEMR - B ETHROMME RS - 5K%2024
FILREEERMEMS -

—RIERZEAESIN  THhRERZER - RNERKIZRL - RABERESET LEARA  ARFEHR
MSERARZE | IBFFEEZBAIRBRMBHE R  RENTSHETE  BANRSRMEMRMGE
MBERRBHEFERBAAEDL - EEBENEFMEEEERABTAFERL THABRBHERE  MAB
MR HEEER  RI)  ERERNEMMERREED - B IEX2RRBEH OEERLREEKL




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®|E

ZRBEARZORN  REKGHEANAESE - FEAEEFMENBES R ER KRBT K BIE
MEZF(CIEBERRASOEEB PRAML - REFETERA-AwardE ZREREIFIAEDE - 12MWERKE TR
AEMBRDBRAES - BRTRAZRIROMHEE  FREXBIAHANZRIEERMR -

RERK  RTERMAEGRESX MEFHER BALXEANRAER  ARFRHIEHBEEIRE &
B BE] REEMEAFZLES )  ENTENGHEBEANISEHNENEINERER  —2RETER
R ENHRERIERFEE  —RUNMRAFARL  2NRENEXELER  —RBREBASEH
ENMBAMERES - DEEMBEBEI - 2HFEAT K -

—FoAF RITERIREM AR IRSEERE 2 F  ERHERHENERBERERE - 2 NERERMN
EE  ZRADBEEARAR(FRREEDIE=RAIZFINFK - LEHKE  BEIELE] BEAGRE
RENMEFENSRERRERMRE  MENMKELLZERREE - &K BHBEABRRMG S RARAREE
EREREHIURAO I - MAINBTHRBZAR BN TEATITMER |

BER
EFET/E

RERR

BE —E-_AF=ZA=-1"H




16

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
HOTESRITHARRE

In 2024, the global energy industry enters a critical period of accelerated transformation, with the vision of carbon
neutrality and the wave of technological innovation complementing each other, bringing unprecedented opportunities
and challenges to the industry. CM Energy, as a significant force under the “Third Entrepreneurship” strategy of
CM Group, consistently upholds the core philosophy of “Technological Innovation Drives a Green Future”, and is
committed to becoming an industry-leading technological innovation-driven green energy and equipment service
provider. By focusing on the synergistic development of clean energy and marine supporting businesses, the
Company further solidifies its operational foundation amidst intense market competition and continuously seeks
paths to breakthrough amidst transformation. The total revenue for the year reached US$166.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.2 billion), with a gross profit of US$41.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB0.298 billion),
representing a year-on-year increase of 1%, and the net operating profit amounted to 9.2 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB66.10 million), demonstrating a positive development momentum.

I. 2024 BUSINESS REVIEW: STRENGTHENING THE FOUNDATION, SEEKING PROGRESS
AMID STABILITY

() Core businesses showing steady growth, delivering key projects efficiently

In 2024, CM Energy successfully facilitated the smooth delivery of several landmark projects through the
dual drivers of “technology upgrade + service optimization.” In the field of marine support, the Company
successfully completed the jacking systems for the 1,600-ton wind power installation vessel of Guangzhou
Shipyard International Company Limited and the 2,000-ton wind power installation vessel of China
Railway Major Bridge Engineering Group Co., Ltd respectively, key components for the CTW (Tianjin)
Offshore Engineering Co., Ltd. series Liftboat platform, the BOP crane for Nanhai VI, the deep-sea mining
deployment system, the wind power installation platforms for China Construction Port and Navigation
Bureau Group Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Ruili Marine Engineering Technology Co., Ltd, the production platform
for CNPC Bohai Drilling Engineering Company Limited, and the marine support crane projects for Qingdao
Conson Development Group Co Ltd. aquaculture vessels. The Company also provided core equipment
including electrical control, automation, pump sets, and catwalk machines for the 9,000-meter drilling rig
of Xinjiang Petrolor Energy Services Co.,Ltd., with the equipment operating well and achieving oil extraction
50 days ahead of the original plan. Meanwhile, the overseas market achieved breakthrough in progress,
with the first drilling rig of the Mexico PEMEX project being delivered and receiving high praise from the
customer, successfully securing an additional order amounting to US$12 million, covering demand for
upgrades such as top drive and catwalk machine.

(II) Rapid implementation of green technology, with significant results from innovation

In the field of green technology, CM Energy has achieved significant results. The wing-shaped rigid sail
jointly developed with BAR Technologies has achieved a breakthrough in commercialization, signing sales
orders for over ten sets throughout the year, and reaching intent of cooperation with leading shipyards
such as Shanghai Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. and Yangzijiang Shipbuilding Group. In addition, the
Company and China Merchants Jinling Shipyard (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. jointly established a new energy
joint R&D center, undertaking orders for multiple sets of methanol supply systems, and the renovation
of the Haimen new energy workshop was successfully completed, laying a solid hardware foundation
for the research and development of ammonia fuel systems. At the same time, the Company has made
significant progress in the reserve of cutting-edge technologies, including the deployment and recovery
system of the A-frame for submerged mining trucks, the successful offshore test of the 3 dimensional active
compensation gangway, the implementation of prototype for flexible hydrogen production power devices,
and the smooth delivery of deep-sea equipment such as plume monitoring devices.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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(lll) Continuously improving quality and efficiency of operations, progressing safety and

innovation in parallel

Under the pressure of industry downturn, CM Energy enhanced its financial resilience through refined
management of receivables and cost control, resulting in a net increase of US$8.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB63.26 million) in operating cash flow and a 2% year-on-year improvement in net
assets. At the same time, the Company places great emphasis on safe production work, with a total of
4,650 hours of safety training throughout the year, and the rectification rate of potential hazards reached
100%, achieving the safety target of “Zero Major Incidents.” In addition, the Company has also undergone
organizational restructuring, establishing a Technological Innovation Office to coordinate research and
development and the realization of results, and setting up a Marketing Center to enhance order acquisition
capabilities.

Il. 2025 STRATEGIC PLAN: ANCHORING ON TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION,
MAKING DEEP BREAKTHROUGH

()

n

Deepening core business development: Consolidating marine supporting advantages
In 2025, CM Energy will continue to deepen its core advantages in the field of marine support, focusing
on promoting the research and development of projects such as sail technology, marine crane prototypes,
industrial HarmonyOS system offshore crane control systems, integrated development of frequency
converters, etc., to continuously enhance technological capabilities. At the same time, through innovative
models and systems, we efficiently cultivate and develop a series of new business areas, particularly striving
for dual breakthroughs in technology and product implementation in internal product innovation and
mechatronic products for general industries. To this end, the Company will actively adopt a strategy of
introduction and acquisition at the same time, focusing on the integration and application of cutting-edge
technologies such as artificial intelligence, 5G, and even 6G in the future, to ensure seamless integration of
product results and strengthen the Company’s existing hydrogen electromechanical business.

Comprehensive layout of green energy business: Building the capability of a full
hydrogen energy industry chain

In terms of green energy business, CM Energy will strive to build up the full hydrogen energy industry
chain capabilities. By completing the commercial validation of 2,000Nm?*/h electrolysis tank, and developing
marine hydrogen fuel storage and transportation equipment, we strive to achieve mass sales of equipment
at the thousand Nm?/h level. At the same time, the Company will continue to advance the implementation
of key projects, focusing on four core businesses: hydrogen production equipment, green energy project
investment, green energy production and operation, and green energy trade. We will delve into the field
of hydrogen-based energy production and create application scenarios through diversified methods such as
investment and joint ventures, establishing an ecological cooperation system.

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT
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(lll) Accelerate progression of global layout: Building an overseas service network

CM Energy will accelerate its global expansion efforts and establish a comprehensive overseas service
network. We will rely on overseas subsidiaries to establish a global service center system, strengthen the
construction of overseas service sites in phases and form an international professional team to ensure
quick response to customer needs and enhance overseas customer satisfaction. In the face of the rapid
rise of the new energy business, the Company will actively seize the first-mover advantage in the overseas
new energy market, accelerate the implementation of clean energy equipment orders, and boost market
promotion efforts in the field of hydrogen production equipment in particular. At the same time, we will
closely follow the dynamics of the European and American markets, actively explore overseas resources, and
build diversified product sales channels. Giving equal emphasis to consolidating traditional businesses and
exploring emerging markets, alongside meticulous management and risk control, will be the main theme
for the future development of overseas business.

(IV) Constructing the technological innovation ecosystem: Open-up synergies and

V)

leading innovation

In terms of technological innovation, CM Energy will increase its investment in research and development,
focusing on key technological areas such as deep-sea power and flexible hydrogen production; deepen our
cooperation with research institutions such as Tan Kah Kee Laboratory and Shenzhen Research Institute to
enhance the equipment and technology level of CM TSC and TSC-HHCT Control and Drive Technology Co.,
Ltd.; conduct synergistic operations in deep-sea technology and equipment, as well as green products such
as energy saving, carbon reduction and fuel saving, to achieve resource sharing and results sharing in the
realization of technological achievements and the introduction of new technologies; continue to maintain
close cooperation with Tan Kah Kee Laboratory to jointly advance the research and development and
application of hydrogen energy technology, with priority given to participating in national demonstrations,
major projects, or the “New Infrastructure and New Urbanisation Initiatives” (R ¥7) and “Major
Implementation and Key Construction” (RJE8) initiatives; establish multi-dimensional cooperation channels
with universities and external research institutes, innovate collaboration and research and development
mechanisms, achieve knowledge sharing, and comprehensively enhance the Company’s technological
innovation capabilities and market competitiveness.

Digitization and brand building: Creating a green intelligent model

The Company will establish a green intelligent demonstration factory and construct a cloud-based
synergistic platform, deeply integrating digitalization technology into key areas such as supply chain,
technical maintenance and technological innovation to comprehensively enhance production efficiency and
management level; clarify our brand positioning, focus on creating industry-leading flagship products, and
explore multi-channel and multi-model paths for new product research and development and technological
innovation through internal and external multi-party collaboration; comprehensively showcase the
Company'’s technological capabilities and product advantages and establish an industry benchmark image
through participating in international exhibitions, releasing industry reports, organizing technical exchange
meetings and such.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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(VI) Constructing corporate culture and talent echelon: Strengthen cultural foundation

and talent reserve

The Company will emphasize on the corporate culture promotion of “CM Bloodline, Shekou Gene, Hailiao
Spirit, and Third Entrepreneurship Power” through various channels such as internal professional training,
cultural salon exchanges and historical achievement exhibitions, to deepen employees’ understanding
and recognition of the cultural heritage of CM Group and the unique charm of CM Energy; establish a
framework for talent echelon through the introduction of outstanding fresh graduates, head-hunting for
high-end talent, and internal development; leverage on the advantages of being a listed company and the
preferential policies of CM Group’s technological innovation sector, actively design and apply for talent
incentive mechanisms to attract and retain a group of outstanding entrepreneur talents, creating a capable
talent team.

Ill. LOOKING FORWARD

2025 is a critical year for CM Energy’s strategic transformation. Facing the three major development trends of
intelligentization, carbon reduction and internationalization, the CM Energy team will seize the opportunities
brought by the adjustment of the “Technological Innovation Industry” segment of CM Group with firm strategic
determination and swift execution capability, standing at the forefront of the energy revolution, continuously
advancing the Company towards the goal of becoming a global leader in green technology. We will continue
to create sustainable value for shareholders, customers and society, and jointly write a new chapter in the
development of CM Energy.

Sincerely,

Zhan Huafeng
Executive Director & Executive President

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025

—TomEsR - EHeRNEReERAT 19



20

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
HITEERTHARBS

—TOMF ERERTESAIERESORBES - RO MBS BRI EIOREER - SITESRT A
RENKBELE - ZHER  FRABARKEIFZRAIXIBRBE THNERNE  BRBTIMRAFEDZER
KINBOLER  BORKRTRAENMRAFLZERRNEERED - BARESRERAMRSRLEXEBN
BRERE  ARREMNOTEHFHE-PBELERE  AEETHESTRRHEHT - 2FERAKA166.8
B&ETEEROARKRET) - EN41 5ABXTEERNARE298(ET) - RLER1% - L& M1HFMEZ.2
BEEXTHEERNARKC0ET) - RIRT RIFHERLE o

- ZE_NELERE FEEH  BRXRE
(C) BROEBBREER  EHEESRRM

ZEZPF  ERRAEMNA R+ RS EC I AERES - KINEBZMEFMEE NIEFRMS - 7F
MM ESESE - ARFERmTK T EMBEERAERAR1,6000 - A B REEABR A F2,00002E
ZERMARRG ERAMNKER)EEIRER QB R Liftboat F AR IBM - EXFEE/\FBOPH
B OREBRENTHEAS  PEEMAERMARARRELETS Mk NEF IRERNERARRAE
ZEYE  PEOHHFEFRIEQAGTEEYS  S5EHEER(GEE)BRETAREEIMEM T
ERHIBEE - AHERKERBERIRERMDERRQR,000KEMRHET BESE - A8t - R4A - #
EEERANNZLEE  REETRY  RIRFTERAISORITH T H - A - G HEREREEE
B BFEIPEMEXBEE BRI NERSEPREEE - WKINEBM,2008F 058  RETEEE -
HEMEARTR -

(Z) R MEZ - fIFRE K MEE
TEAREIRTRYE, - EREAE RIS THBEEMKE o EBAR TechnologiesB A 3R E A M RN E IR B 1L
R RFRFTHEEHEE  VHEBINSBEMBRAF BT IMEESESEIMBERS
EEM - AN AAFERBREBDEESEMMEG ) AR AR ERKHERBAMSPL - AEZE
EFEHEESE  BPUMERERHMGEIER TN - BRRRESNARETE 7TERENEFER - [/
B - RARERNERITHEE I ECERE TEBHE - K TREEARMRERKRSG —AHEE
FHESBEENY  URFHREEREEFEOZ DA TRE B RES R ENIEFN R

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024



(=)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
HITEERTHRARBS

REERFEBL  R2HAFERAE

ETETTEAT  ERREBBRERFEMCE IR ERAZES - B THBHE  KLEURSTF
18 8H & XL (HHENNARKEE326ETT)  FEERLIEF2% - A - ARAREERLTEEETIE -
EERREIRF4,650/NE - BEHEELEED100% ERTIZEREFRINLEEE 1o
ARREET TABRBEN  RUMAIMA B EKRE(CTIE - IZITIHE HEP O &R ERER

ap
Be

C CECIFERAS  HENA SRRE
(=) BORBRLCBR  ZEMEREED

TR ERRERSEERCEMESEERENZOEY EHHEFRMEIMN - MASEEK T
EBRXOSAMB T RRIZGIRS BAREXRABFIHANNE  THRARME S - A - BBE
AR RER  SBBRNBER - RIFEBEL - HHIREABEREF AR BRITENKE 58
LEMR ENRERRMRE EERZNEERE - [t - AR R HBEGERER S| 8080 8 A0S -
BRERATIER SGHERRGHEIMRMOESLER  BRERKRENBEEE KL RIEARF
MBRASHEES -

(D) REXBE2EMGR I ESHZERERED

EREXEBOE  ERERBBANITESRZERBERES - @EBTK2, 0008 T ERENEERLR
& AEMAESRMEERE  NFERTRIMARBORLEHEE - A - AARBHERESHAR
i NEREEE SERREERE QEeRREEEE SEHREZINARLEBRIZNM -
RADERREBELY - BBERE EFZMAAITERRL S  BELRAERR -

CEONEFR - FHRENEROERLE

21



22

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
HITEERTHARBS

(Z) 2R RIMNEEEE - BRGINREAE

ERERBMERKMB N - BEZENEINRBESE - KEBINTFRRABEEHRBEPLER - 2
B SR LESNRIFUE B R - AEBER LB XER  BRREERETFHFR  BABIIEFPHEE - |
HIEREBNEDEE - ARRBEBRIBEGINTERRTIS M - IREEBREREFR EEHL
FRIRERERBRAMATSEHENE - RS - RREEXTSHE  BREDEINER  BEZ T
EmEERE - ZEEEGEBRADMETSLE - BAEEERBRIIZELTT - BREIEBRKER
COES)Ze

() RIRIEREEER - FRIHES SRR

EREEIF I - EEERAMAMERANE - BEFREER KUK EBRIMELETHER
B oRMCERRERE - RYMERSHIARBNAIE  RAEDHXE  BREH(ERDEFRMAR
DA FEFHARAMIKF o ERGRIM LR EBAREEE - AR - BTSSR eEmR LRRBGRER - R
BRRB(CAF M ENERAZTHRNRAT - B#EEZRERERFETAEF - AFREEIERM
MR BESEBERTH EXFRAMHMTMERR - ZHEITBESK - IMNIREARMNE
1ERIE - BIFT A EHS]  BRABRROLR - 2EHERAARBNOEHRAIF NI MTISHF N

(f) BELREmEER - HEREERETE

ARBBITESEERTB IR BEZHBETFE - BEELEIRERARER - R R - B
AITSHRRE  DHRFTAEREMER KT - BTN - BEITETEELNERER - BB
WINERZ TR A1E - RRZRE - SRANFTRFHEARMENBEE - BB NERES - BMH1TE
HE  ABEMZREERR  2HURTARFNRMENSEERED  BXITERELR -

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
HITEERTHRARBS

(N) EMEEATEHRER - BIELERBEAT R E
ARBBREEHMAK - e AEE - BEEE - —fINEINEEVELEN  BBRFEEEI - Xk
DEZRARELRAREZZERE - MAETHERRVERLERBHE N IRHERF - B
BEEEFEEEESE  SHATEESHA  URAES  BREATBEREZROER - LEHL
MRAREZMNEEBMEARRNEEBCR - TERFNEBEAT BEES - R MEE—HBEAED
BEAT  ITE—XRABEENOAT M -

- BEARR
“ECRFRENRREBELNRE 2 F mE BRI - Bl BB EM=ZXERBY - EFRHERER
AR ENEBEE S - HENNITEES  BNHERREERBAIER RRFHBESROKE - EEREWHIR
MR BIUEE  THESHARAASHAENKETENERELE - RABLERERR - FRPELERIET
KEEE ARESERERERNIEE -

EEE
BITEFRITHABEL

2R

B —ET-RAF=A_-+H

CEONEFR - FHRENEROERLE

23



24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBNWR DN

OVERVIEW

In 2024, the global energy transition enters a new stage, with carbon
neutrality goals intertwining with energy security demands. The Company
consistently adheres to the core philosophy of “Technological Innovation
Drives a Green Future”, closely aligning with the strategic positioning of
being an “industry-leading technological innovation-driven green energy
and equipment service provider”, further deepening the business layout
of “hydrogen, engineering, electricity and services”, and continuously
strive for breakthroughs in clean energy technology and synergistic
upgrades in the marine industries. In the face of complex and volatile
market environment, the Company achieved revenue of US$166.8 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB1.2 billion), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 8%.

In terms of the hydrogen energy business, the “R&D and Industrialization
of Off-grid High-performance Alkaline Hydrogen Generation Equipment”
project by Huaxia Hydrogen won the gold prize out of 450 global projects
worldwide in the TERA-Award Smart Energy Innovation Competition
jointly organized by the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited and
CHN Energy, marking that the Company’s off-grid hydrogen production
technology has reached an industry-leading level. At the same time, the
Company successfully qualified as a supplier for the 2024 centralized
procurement project of hydrogen production equipment by China Energy
Engineering Group (CEEC), signifying that Huaxia Hydrogen has entered
the ranks of mainstream hydrogen production equipment enterprises.

In terms of the marine equipment support business, the sail products
have been implemented successfully. Through collaboration with BAR
Tech, the Company has successfully developed wing shaped rigid
sails specifically designed for bulk carriers and oil tankers, and the
Company has signed sales orders for over ten sets of sails with Shanghai
Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Co.,Ltd., Yangzijiang Shipbuilding Group and
Wuhu Shipyard Co., Ltd in 2024, and reached intent of cooperation with
national renowned shipyards such as China COSCO Shipping Corporation
Limited and Xiamen Shipbuilding Industry Co., Ltd.. The sail assembly
commencement ceremony was successfully held in Haimen in October
2024. The green fuel supply equipment were smoothly implemented.
Starting from June 2024, CM Energy and China Merchants Jinling
Shipyard (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. jointly established a new energy joint R&D
center through Group internal collaboration, which brings together the
quality resources of both parties and focus on the field of new energy
equipment, particularly the joint R&D and project execution of cutting-
edge technologies such as green fuel supply systems.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the overseas market, the project with Petréleos Mexicanos (PEMEX)
has successfully entered execution stage. The production and delivery
of the first and second rig of the land drilling rig project have been
completed successfully, with all technical parameters meeting customer
requirements and receiving customer approval. PEMEX has made further
upgrade contracts for top drive, catwalk machine and drilling rig on top
of the original contract.

In terms of technological innovation, in 2024, the deployment and
recovery system of the A-frame for submerged mining trucks and the
3 dimensional active compensation gangway completed 2 offshore
tests and are successful, indicating substantial progress of research and
development work; the marine hybrid power system have been developed
and applied; the flexible hydrogen production power device prototype has
completed design and production, and the plume monitoring equipment
and the deployment A-frame system, deep-sea power projects have been
successfully delivered. At the same time, in terms of clean fuel supply
systems, we have undertaken the research and development, production
and market promotion of CM Industry’s LNG, methanol supply systems
and other green energy supply systems such as ammonia and hydrogen,
providing strong support for the implementation of CM Group’s dual
carbon project strategy and the national green energy development.

The development of the Company is inseparable from its talents. In terms
of talent development, CM Energy closely aligns with CM Group's “Third
Entrepreneurship” development strategy and high-quality development
requirements, positioning itself as a leader and pioneer in the Group’s
technological innovation and strategic emerging industries, building a
high-quality, professional and innovative talent team to create a new
scenario in talent development during the new development phase of CM
Energy, providing strong talent support for the implementation of the
Company's strategy.

In the global narrative of carbon neutrality, the Company will anchor
on technological innovation and leverage on scenario empowerment
to continuously deepen its capabilities in “green energy + smart
equipment”, creating long-term value for shareholders, customers and
society, and write a new chapter of high-quality sustainable development.

BEEENWE DN

EBSNTISTE - REFERAMA B (PEMEX)IEB
IEFIHE AT - BRI EXEBERIER E—
AEBENE - ABBNEENIMN  FERM2E
HEIEFEFR [ TEFPHNRAA - PEMEXER
RAERER LIBMNTEEE  JHERMBERNE T
ZAR -

BHFAIFAE T _NFEARDAIKTRIBEAR
mHEEKREFER -ERE T HHESBTRMRK
ERAKILEEERAY RTINS EDHE
B MMEASNRGHREER  ZUHEaBRE
EEFEREMEA AT FIREE - PR BRI B RAL
R FEERFEBIEFZN - RSLEEZME
HERGHE  AEBALIEING  FEHIZES
ka - SEHMECRERHIRFNIE - ZiEH
MEHEIE AEERERSEERBIESM
BTERGCERERIEMANIZIE

RRABNBERBENFHAS  EATERTE - £R
RERETFEAHNREEE = RAIZE | REE N
SHEERBNR - ML B R A) 0 BES 1
EXENERE  MNE - ZREXEE - HE(L - A
MEATBRE  EEBRRTERERMAEATZ
RIEHMBE - BARRBEEMREHEROAT
PRI

EMPMOEHMES - ARE K ARMX I S
B ASREBREAKE  BERLIMEERIR+E R
Kl BRR - TP RHGRIERIIEE - &
HeEENRERRNIREE -

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT

25



26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENwWR D
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% 5] R
2024 2023 Increase/(decrease)
—EBomE ZT-=F 20,/ Os )
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 %
FER FET FET %
Revenue WA 166,773 181,337 (14,564) (8.0)
Gross profit E A 41,479 40,997 482 1.2
Gross profit margin EH=E 24.9% 22.6%
Profit from operations P 14,133 14,158 (25) (0.2)
Net profit attributable WA AR Z F 5 A
to owners 9,160 9,502 (342) (3.6)
Profit for the year F W Fl 9,194 9,609 (415) (4.3)
Net profit margin F g ) 3 5.5% 5.3%
Earnings per share FRREF US0.29 cent US0.30 cent  US(0.01) cent
(Basic and diluted) (EARREE) 0.29%4L 0.30%A1 (0.01)ZAL (3.3)
Segment Information by Business Segments REBIHE D 22 HER
2024 2023 Increase/(decrease)
—E-omE —E-= #hn, Crd)
US$’000 % Us$'000 % Us$'000 %
FEx % FET % FET %
Equipment manufacturing KEHHERES
and packages 86,562 51.9 101,374 55.9 (14,812) (14.6)
Supply chain and integration /& 88 & £ A AR 75
services 25,755 15.4 29,089 16.0 (3,334) (11.5)
Assets management and BEEERIERS
engineering services 54,456 32.7 50,874 28.1 3,582 7.0
Total revenue WABET 166,773 100.0 181,337 100.0 (14,564) (8.0)

The Group's overall revenue for 2024 was approximately US$166.8
million, a decrease of US$14.6 million or approximately 8% as compared
to US$181.3 million for last year. The decrease was mainly driven by the
decrease in the equipment manufacturing and packages and supply chain
and integration services business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equipment Manufacturing and Packages

Revenue recognised in equipment manufacturing and packages projects
decreased by 14.6% from US$101.4 million in 2023 to US$86.6 million
in 2024 mainly attributable to a significant reduction in wind power
business, resulting in an overall amount lower than last year.

Supply Chain and Integration Services

The decrease of 11.5% from US$29.1 million in 2023 to US$25.8 million
in 2024 for supply chain and integration services was mainly due to a
decrease in the orders completed and delivered during the year compared
with the preceding year, and part of the newly signed orders in the
Mexico market are still in progress, and have not yet completed and
delivered.

Assets Management and Engineering Services

Assets management and engineering services revenue increased from
US$50.9 million in 2023 to US$54.5 million in 2024, representing an
increase of 7%, which was mainly due to the increase in daily rate of
diving support construction vessels.

Segment Information by Geographical Regions
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2024 2023 Increase/(decrease)
—EomE —EC-=F #h,/ Cri )

US$’000 %  US$'000 %  US$'000 %
FEx % FET % FET %

Hong Kong Special BEBFRITEE
Administrative Region 45 0.0 36 0.0 9 25.0
Mainland China R A i 78,879 47.3 116,921 64.5 (38,042) (32.5)
North America b3 5,205 3.1 4,914 2.7 291 59
South America EZES 46,113 27.7 17,738 9.8 28,375 160.0
Europe HO! 2,649 1.6 3,831 2.1 (1,182) (30.9)
Singapore N 229 0.1 13,195 73 (12,966) (98.3)
Indonesia ENEE AT 1,046 0.6 2 0.0 1,044 52,200.0
Middle East R 29,687 17.8 20,097 1.1 9,590 47.7
Others Hitb 2,920 1.8 4,603 25 (1,683) (36.6)
Total revenue WA&ET 166,773 100.0 181,337 100.0  (14,564) (8.0)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit was US$41.5 million in 2024, representing an increase
of US$0.5 million from US$41.0 million for last year. Gross profit margin
increased from 22.6% in 2023 to 24.9% in 2024. The increase was
mainly due to high profit margin contribution from land rig equipment
and services and drop in provisions for inventories during the year.

Other income, gains and losses, net

Other income, gains and losses, net decreased from US$4.2 million in
2023 to US$2.7 million in 2024. Such income includes bank interest
income, finance income from lease receivables, net foreign exchange,
government grant, rental income, and gain arising from early termination
of existing lease.

Selling and Distribution, General and Administrative
Expenses

Selling and distribution, general and administrative expenses increased
by approximately 2.3% from US$28.0 million in 2023 to US$28.6 million
in 2024. This increase was mainly due to the growth in the size of the
business which led to an increase in business activities.

Other Expenses

Other operating expenses decreased from US$0.8 million in 2023 to
US$0.2 million in 2024. The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in
miscellaneous expenses.

Finance Costs
Finance costs, mainly interest on lease liabilities, remained the same at
US$0.1 million in both 2023 and 2024.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates amounted to US$0.1 million in 2023
whereas a loss of US$1.9 million was recorded in 2024, which was mainly
due to operating losses incurred by the associates in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Group’s Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group carried tangible assets of
approximately US$32.4 million (2023: US$54.6 million) being right of
use assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties.
The Group's goodwill was approximately US$0.4 million (2023: US$0.4
million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s intangible assets were
approximately US$1.4 million (2023: US$1.7 million). As at 31
December 2024, the Group's interest in associates was approximately
US$15.3 million (2023: US$16.5 million), and deferred tax assets was
approximately US$1.6 million (2023: US$1.9 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current assets amounted to
approximately US$257.1 million (2023: US$244.9 million). Current assets
mainly comprised inventories of approximately US$37.2 million (2023:
US$40.0 million), trade and other receivables of approximately US$101.8
million (2023: US$110.5 million), and lease receivables (current) of
approximately US$33.3 million (2023: US$15.5 million).

As at 31 December 2024, pledged bank deposits amounted to
approximately US$0.8 million (2023: US$5.5 million) and cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately US$84.1 million (2023: US$73.4
million).

As at 31 December 2024, current liabilities amounted to approximately
US$127.5 million (2023: US$128.3 million), mainly comprised trade and
other payables of approximately US$50.8 million (2023: US$60.2 million),
and tax payable of approximately US$3.2 million (2023: US$4.3 million).
Contract liabilities amounted to US$28.2 million (2023: US$34.2 million)
and current lease liabilities amounted to approximately US$45.4 million
(2023: US$29.7 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had non-current liabilities
of approximately US$3.6 million (2023: US$22.1 million), mainly
representing non-current portion of lease liabilities. The Group monitors
capital with reference to its debt position. The Group's strategy is to
maintain a sound gearing ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities to total
assets. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2024 was 42.2% (2023:
46.1%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group decided to make
additional investment in Huaxia Hydrogen, a company established
in the PRC with limited liability and mainly engaged in research and
development, manufacturing and sales of alkaline electrolysis tank
hydrogen production equipment and key materials, at a consideration
of RMB58,200,000 (equivalent to approximately US$8,200,000).
The Group’s shareholding in this company increased to 42.0% from
approximately 33.0%. The Group contributed RMB48,200,000
(equivalent to approximately US$6,603,400) in 2024 and RMB 10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1,370,000) in February 2025 to
complete the full capital injection.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as well as any
significant investments during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Capital Structure

At 31 December 2024, there were 3,243,433,914 shares issued and the
Company carried a share capital of approximately US$41,418,000. There
was no issue of shares during the year.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposures

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The Group has foreign
exchange exposure resulting from most of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC carrying out production locally using Renminbi while majority of the
Group's revenue was denominated in US$. As at 31 December 2024 and
31 December 2023, no related hedges were made by the Group.

In order to mitigate foreign exchange exposure, the Company may utilise
foreign currency forward contracts to better match the currency of its
revenues and associated costs of the Company in the future. However,
the Company does not use foreign currency forward contracts for trading
or speculative purposes. The Group will actively explore ways to hedge or
reduce currency exchange risk in future.

Charge on Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2024, except for the pledged deposits, the
Group's investment properties of approximately US$1,038,000 were
pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities of approximately
RMB24,270,000 (equivalent to approximately US$3,325,000). The
aforesaid banking facilities was unutilised as at 31 December 2024.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2024, there was no significant contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 538 full-time staff in
the United States, the United Kingdom, Brazil, Mexico, Singapore, Middle
East, Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group’s remuneration policy
is determined by the salary levels in different regions, employee rank
and performance and the market conditions. The Group also provides
other benefits to all of its employees, including medical schemes, pension
contribution schemes, share award incentive schemes, etc.

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined by the Board with
the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Company
with reference to the prevailing market rate, experience, qualifications,
performance and contribution and commitments of the Directors to the
Company, the performance of the Group and is reviewed from time to

time.

MARKET REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Market Analysis of the Industry

1.

Macroeconomics

In 2024, the global economy showed a growth trend but at a
slower pace compared to pre-pandemic levels. Different economies
exhibited divergent performances, with overall inflation on a
downward trend but still facing uncertainties, and international
trade experienced some recovery.

The World Bank predicted that the global economic growth rate will
stabilize at 2.6% in 2024, and slightly rise to an average of 2.7%
in 2025-2026, which is below the pre-pandemic average level of
3.1% over the past decade. The average growth rate of developing
economies for 2024-2025 will be 4%, slightly lower than 2023; and
the economic growth rate of developed economies will stabilize at
1.5% in 2024 and rise to 1.7% in 2025.

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) believes that the world
economy will continue to grow at a rate of 3.2% in 2024 and 2025,
remaining unchanged from 2023. Developed economies will slightly
accelerate, with growth rates expected to rise from 1.6% in 2023 to
1.7% in 2024 and 1.8% in 2025; and the growth rate of emerging
markets and developing economies is expected to decrease from
4.3% in 2023 t0 4.2% in 2024 and 2025.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Oil market

In 2024, global economic growth remains stable but lackluster, with
weak oil consumption demand combined with increasing oil supply
leading to an increasingly imbalanced international oil market.
Under multiple factors, there is little upward momentum for oil
prices. The average price of Brent crude oil futures for the year was
US$79.77 per barrel, a decrease of US$2.39 from US$82.16 per
barrel in 2023, representing a decrease of 2.9%. The average price
of WTI futures for the year was US$75.72 per barrel, a decrease of
US$1.85 from the average price in 2023, representing a decrease of
2.38%.

Looking ahead to 2025, it is expected that the international oil
market supply and demand will become more imbalanced, and
international oil prices will continue the trend of the previous
year, facing greater downward pressure. In terms of demand,
based on the latest forecasts from the three major energy research
institutions, global oil consumption demand in 2025 is expected to
grow by approximately 1 million barrels per day, remaining roughly
the same as in 2024. The EIA’s latest “Short-Term Energy Outlook”
report forecasts that the average price of WTI crude oil in 2025 will
be US$69.12 per barrel, and the average price of Brent crude oil
will be US$73.58. Goldman Sachs and other investment institutions
have a relatively optimistic forecast, expecting oil prices to remain
around US$76 per barrel in 2025.

Offshore market

Due to the relatively stable international oil prices, oil and gas
extraction activities remain active, and the global utilization rate
of jack-up rigs and floating rigs continues to be stable at around
90%. However, due to unforeseen reasons, the momentum of rent
growth weakened by the end of 2024.

In terms of supply, the current global fleet of drilling rigs stands at
825 units, representing a decrease of 24.7% from its peak, primarily
due to the completion of deliveries for the backlog of drilling rig
orders. As of June 2024, global shipyards have only 34 drilling
rig orders on hand, leading to a situation of insufficient supply in
the market, which has resulted in the full utilization of existing
rigs. However, in 2024, Saudi Arabian Oil Company temporarily
suspended drilling services for approximately 32 drilling rigs from
companies including China Qilfield Services Limited, ADES Holding
Company (ADES), and Shelf Drilling Ltd. in three batches, which
brought slight downward pressure on the drilling rig operation
market and somewhat affected the further improvement of
utilization rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to Clarkson’s data, by the end of December 2024,
the jack-up rig global utilization rate was 91%, representing an
increase of 2% year-on-year. The overall utilization rate for the year
remained stable at a relatively high level, reflecting strong market
demand for this type of rig. The utilization rate of floating rig was
89%, remaining the same year-on-year, and has also remained
stable at a relatively high range throughout the year.

In terms of rent, the average daily rent for jack-up rigs for the
year was US$123,000 per day, representing an increase of 26.7%
compared to the average over the past decade, but a slight
decrease of 10% from the peak in 2024. In the first half of 2024,
the rental index increased by 16% year-on-year, with rents for the
year showing a growth trend in the early period. However, due to
unexpected factors such as Saudi Arabian Oil Company suspending
leases, the momentum of rent growth weakened towards the end
of the year. The average daily rent for floating rigs last year was
US$323,000 per day, representing an increase of 61.1% compared
to the average of the past decade, but a slight decrease of 2% from
the peak in 2024. In the first half of 2024, the rental index increased
by 14% year-on-year. The trend in rental changes was similar to
that of jack-up rigs, with initial growth followed by insufficient
growth momentum due to sudden increase in market supply.

In terms of rig asset prices, as at the end of December 2024, the
second-hand transaction prices for 305-foot jack-up rigs and sixth-
generation floating rigs with an age of 5-10 years were US$95
million and US$160 million respectively, representing increases of
110% and 63% from early 2022, reflecting a high level of market
interest and investment enthusiasm in offshore drilling rig assets.

Overall, in 2024, the offshore drilling market, after years of
adjustment, has seen a significant improvement in the supply-
demand relationship, with rig utilization rates and rental rates at
relatively high levels. However, it has also been affected by factors
such as strategic adjustments by Saudi Arabian Oil Company. In
the long term, if investment in offshore oil and gas development
projects continues to increase, the demand for offshore drilling rigs
is expected to further increase, and the market outlook is relatively
optimistic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Hydrogen energy market

In 2024, driven by factors such as policy support and technological
advancements, the global and Chinese hydrogen energy markets
made certain progress. However, challenges remain in aspects
such as cost control, technological innovation and infrastructure
improvement, requiring joint efforts from all parties to promote the
sustainable development of the hydrogen energy industry in the
future.

At the beginning of 2024 during the Two Sessions of China,
hydrogen energy was included in the government work report for
the first time. The report explicitly proposed to “accelerate the
development of frontier emerging industries such as hydrogen
energy, new materials and innovative drugs, and actively forge new
growth engines such as biomanufacturing, commercial aerospace
and low-altitude economy”. This is the first time that the central
government has emphasized the need to accelerate the development
of the hydrogen energy industry in the national annual economic
development plan, indicating the nation’s emphasis on hydrogen
energy as a cutting-edge emerging industry, and positioning it as a
key development industry for building a new energy system, with
an aim to promote the accelerated development of the hydrogen
energy industry and to help it play a greater role in economic
development and energy transition. In addition, last year, a total
of 22 provincial-level administrative regions included hydrogen
energy in their government work reports, with each region actively
developing hydrogen energy from different focal points.

In 2024, hydrogen energy projects experienced a boom. According
to statistics, since 2024, China Energy Engineering Group Co., Ltd,
State Power Investment Corporation Limited (SPIC), China Energy
Investment Corporation Co., Ltd., China Huadian Corporation Ltd.,
China Huaneng Group Co., Ltd, China Three Gorges Corporation,
Shenzhen Energy Corporation, Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group
Co., Ltd., Shuimu Mingtuo Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd,
Envision Group have all been advancing green hydrogen projects,
with a total project investment amount exceeding RMB200 billion.
The price of hydrogen power electrolysis tanks has significantly
declined due to technological advancements and the expansion
of corporate production capacity. Currently, the selling price of
alkaline electrolysis tanks for 1,000Nm>?h in the Chinese market has
dropped to around RMB5 million, signifying intense competition and
severe internal competition. Therefore, many Chinese companies are
turning their attention to overseas markets. For example, Jiangsu
Trina Green Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. signed a cooperation
agreement with the Australian local energy company LINE Hydrogen
(Australia) Pty Ltd; Xi'an LONGi Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd.
invested in the Norwegian green hydrogen company HydrogenPro
ASA; and Sunshine Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Germany’s TUV Rheinland.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite policy support, the construction of hydrogen energy support
infrastructure such as hydrogen refueling stations, which require
significant investment yet yield low returns, has not experienced
a construction boom. Instead, some regions have seen a wave of
closures of hydrogen refueling stations. Beijing has more than thirty
hydrogen refueling stations planned, but only seven or eight are
actually in operation. Overseas hydrogen refueling stations are also
facing the threat of closure. In February 2024, Shell announced the
permanent closure of its seven hydrogen refueling stations for light
vehicles in California, USA, retaining only three stations serving
heavy hydrogen energy vehicles.

The first “Energy Law”, officially implemented since 1 January
2025, has for the first time explicitly included hydrogen energy
in the energy management system. This milestone measure
formally establishes the important status of hydrogen energy
in China’s energy sector. Last year, the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, the National Development and Reform
Commission, and the National Energy Administration jointly issued
the “Implementation Plan for Accelerating the Application of Clean
and Low-Carbon Hydrogen in the Industrial Sector”, which outlined
a clear roadmap for the industrial application of hydrogen energy,
specifying that by 2027, clean and low-carbon hydrogen will
achieve large-scale application in key industries such as metallurgy,
ammonia synthesis, methanol synthesis, and refining, undoubtedly
expanding the market space greatly for hydrogen energy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Development Strategy of the Company

In 2025, the Company will focus on the “hydrogen, engineering,
electricity and services” industry layout according to the five-year strategic
plan, with green energy terminal products as the core, highlighting
technological attributes and forging core technologies in fields such as
hydrogen-based energy, high-end equipment, and intelligent electrical
control, with the aim of improving energy conversion efficiency and
reducing carbon emissions, concentrating on excellent operations and
quality manufacturing on a global scale. In terms of traditional business,
in the upward cycle of shipbuilding, we will strengthen synergy with
shareholder companies and the penetration rate of shipbuilding and
offshore supporting products, and continue to serve green intelligent
manufacturing. At the same time, we will focus on the transformation
and upgrading of existing business, new product development, and
addressing the technology “bottlenecks” of core products, improving
independent design capabilities, exploring products with weak cyclicality
and low risk, stabilizing the supply chain and reducing supporting costs.
In terms of emerging business, we will accelerate the layout of new areas
and new tracks for value creation, realize orders for hydrogen production
equipment, hydrogenation equipment and green energy as soon as
possible, seize market resources and develop commanding heights, and
hope to gain more opportunities and advantages in the competition.

In terms of the hydrogen-based energy industry layout, we will solidify the
attributes of new energy enterprises. CM Green Energy primarily engages
in project operation, focusing on businesses such as green energy
project investment, green energy production and operation, as well as
green energy trading. Huaxia Hydrogen primarily engages in equipment
research and production, focusing on businesses such as hydrogen
production equipment, core component research and development, and
hydrogen production system testing services. The Company will focus
on the two starting points of “hydrogen production” and “hydrogen-
based fuel” to form core competitiveness in the market at the equipment
end and industrial end, develop hydrogen, methanol, ammonia, as well
as small and medium-sized hydrogen production plant projects to set up
upstream and downstream resources in the industrial chain, commit to
the overseas strategy, leveraging its existing mature overseas network to
track local hydrogen production project opportunities, and considering
models such as “domestic production + overseas assembly” or direct
overseas production when necessary. We will do a good job in the reserve
and accumulation of potential future technologies: research and reserve
related technologies such as offshore hydrogen production and storage,
and methanol/ammonia production.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of high-end equipment, we will continue to expand our product
lines, continue to be based on offshore engineering and shipbuilding and
offshore supporting products, seizing the upward cycle of shipbuilding,
expanding the spectrum of offshore supporting products, and provide
shipowners and shipyards with comprehensive full-cycle low-carbon/
zero-carbon solutions, promote the scale of equipment manufacturing
development, continue to expand the field of shipbuilding and offshore
supporting, and continue to make efforts in liftboat, offshore wind power
installation ships, operation and maintenance mother ships, and key
equipment of other ship types, etc., target the recovery opportunities in
the traditional oil and gas energy market, gradually restore the original
team'’s design, manufacturing and service capabilities for offshore drilling
rigs to prepare for potential orders, develop new energy and low-carbon
product production lines, targeting products such as marine sails, carbon
dioxide capture, mass production of electrolysis tanks and hydrogen-
based fuel supply systems, gradually developing serialized, large-scale,
long-term products to solidify and enrich the product list of CM Energy.
At the same time, based on the original electronic control field, we will
seize the market’s hot tracks and find breakthroughs in combining with
electric power control with fields such as Al technology, big data, cloud
computing, low-altitude, biomanufacturing and green technology to
rapidly complete transformation and upgrading.

In terms of global services, with the aim of “serving the global market,
serving energy transition, and serving value creation”, we focus on
marine services, maintenance services and asset management services to
establish a solid global service center, using overseas new energy projects
as an entry point to drive domestic new energy equipment orders, and
actively construct an overseas green fuel trade system, use traditional
businesses such as oil and gas engineering and services as a foundation,
with the principles of substantial returns and controllable risks, to deeply
cultivate localized oil and gas engineering businesses and ensure the
overseas revenue foundation, while also driving orders for traditional oil
and gas products from China Merchants TSC Offshore Tech Ltd. and TSC-
HHCT Control and Drive Technology Co., Ltd.. We will also explore and
develop new technologies, new products and new services for carbon
reduction and emission reduction in traditional oil and gas engineering
businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Advantages in Resources of CM Energy

With years of engagement in the oil and gas, offshore and marine support
industries, CM Energy has addressed many technology and equipment
"bottlenecks” in the industry. It has accumulated experiences in product
design, manufacturing, engineering management and technical support,
leading the industry in the aspects of deck cranes, lifting devices, drilling
rigs and electronic control systems, and receiving the long-term trust of
customers thanks to its reliable and efficient quality. CM Energy owns
a comprehensive system for production base, production organization
and quality control, which allows rapid commercial production of
new high-end equipment and products. In terms of operation and
maintenance services, CM Energy has the capability and experience in
product operation and maintenance in various onshore and offshore
scenarios at home and abroad, which is conducive to the establishment
and improvement of new product operation and maintenance service
system as well as the provision of product operation and maintenance
service support. In terms of marketing, as CM Energy has been operating
in Europe, North America, Southeast Asia, the Middle East and Latin
America and other hotspots for new energy for years, it has extensive
market resources and customer pipelines to quickly launch international
sales of its products.

CM Group's business primarily involves four major sectors: transportation
and logistics, comprehensive finance, real estate and industrial parks,
and technology and innovation industries. Currently, CM Group is
anchoring its goal of becoming an innovation-driven, international,
comprehensive world-class enterprise, accelerating the advancement of
the “third entrepreneurship”, vigorously promoting the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries, accelerating the shift towards
both ends of the “smile curve”, actively cultivating and developing
strategic emerging industries, and constructing a high-quality sustainable
development “Malik curve.” In the future, CM Energy will actively
coordinate internal resources of CM Group to enhance the development
of application scenarios in ports, transportation, logistics and shipping.
In terms of equipment manufacturing, CM Energy will leverage the
resources of CM Industry in the shipbuilding market to vigorously develop
businesses such as marine support, hydrogen-based energy and intelligent
electrical control, creating continuous order income. In terms of finance,
CM Energy will continue to deepen its cooperation with the financial
sector within CM Group, promoting the model of financing to support
production to more projects. In 2024, according to the strategic plan of
CM Group, CM Industry, the controlling shareholder of CM Energy, is
incorporated into the Group's technology and innovation industry sector.
In the future, CM Energy will assist CM Industry in actively planning
breakthroughs in strategic emerging industries, advancing the investment
layout of hydrogen-based green energy, and focusing on core marine
equipment support to create a supporting product system with CM
Industry characteristics and industry-leading capabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Plans for Future Material Investments, Assets and Capital
Integration

In terms of future investment direction, the Company will mainly focus
on the development of green energy terminal products. Based on the
principle of “small investment and controlled risk”, the Company will
focus on the hydrogen-based fuel production process and the upstream
investment opportunities of hydrogen-based fuel, and combine the
upstream and downstream industry chain to integrate the relevant
resources. In terms of project investment, in 2025, we will focus on
the development of green methanol/green hydrogen projects, and
participate in the introduction of technology, later-stage operations of
the projects and green fuel trade by way of equity investment, driving
market orders for hydrogen production equipment and gradually
increasing the proportion of green energy business scale. In terms of
capital introduction, we will continue to play into the layout of hydrogen
production equipment industry company, actively introduce social
capital, and continue to incubate hydrogen production equipment and
technology to build core competitive advantages in the market, striving
to form large-scale market orders and gradually enhance commercial
value and product value in the capital market. In terms of transforming
traditional businesses, the Company will seize the upward cycle window
of the shipbuilding industry, using the existing “engineering” and
“electricity” businesses as a foundation, to seek potential opportunities
to expand business scale and product variety, increase investment in
technological innovation and research and development, enhance the
technological content of the enterprise, and promote energy saving and
carbon reduction in the ship market. In terms of consolidating global
services, we will continue to close down inefficient production and
businesses formed due to historical reasons, and focus on expanding
marine services, gradually expand overseas service outlets, and build a
new ecosystem customer circle covering green energy, marine industry,
and oil and gas sectors to meet the service support demand of CM
Energy’s new products going overseas, while continuing to expand
overseas market product sales channels.

In assessing the potential investment or acquisition targets, the
Company will consider a combination of factors such as alignment
with the Company’s strategic plans, synergies, market position and
strengths, management team capability, valuation, track record, financial
performance and potential growth, etc. The Company will gradually
improve its financial performance through expanding its business
direction and creating a new profit model, so as to provide a firm basis
for future growth in results

Save as disclosed, the Company had no future plans for material
investments or capital assets.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
EHITES

40

Mr. Mei Xianzhi, aged 45, is a senior engineer. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in marine power plant from the School of Thermal Energy and
Power Engineering of Wuhan University of Technology and a master’s
degree in management science and engineering from Zhejiang University.
He was appointed as a non-executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board on 6 June 2022 and 29 August 2023 respectively. From July
2002 to November 2011, Mr. Mei successively served as a technician,
supervisor, ship repairing manager and deputy manager of the
engineering department of Yiu Lian Dockyards (Shekou) Limited; he
served as the project manager, manager of production management
department and assistant to the general manager of China Merchants
Heavy Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. from November 2011 to February
2015; he served as the deputy general manager of China Merchants
Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* (FBEBET(IE)ER 2 F)) from
February 2015 to May 2018; the leader of the cruise construction
preparatory team of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd (“China
Merchants Industry”) from May 2018 to October 2018; the general
manager of China Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.* ({B& B
EEpRE AR A R]) from October 2018 to October 2019; the general
manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* (B
BEI(GIE)ER AR and China Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co.,
Ltd.* (B B E iR 2iEA R A A]) from October 2019 to February 2020;
the assistant to the general manager of China Merchants Industry and
the general manager of both China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd.* (HBEBREI(IH#)ER A R]) and China Merchants Cruise
Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.* (BB EHHm KL EHR A F)) from February
2020 to December 2021; the assistant to the general manager of China
Merchants Industry from January 2022 to June 2022. Mr. Mei has been
the deputy general manager of China Merchants Industry since June
2022 to 26 March 2025. Mr. Mei has been the general manager of China
Merchants Industry since 26 March 2025 to date.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Mr. Liu Jiancheng, aged 49, a senior engineer with a master’s degree
in ships and offshore engineering from Jiangsu University of Science and
Technology in 2018 and a bachelor’s degree in shipbuilding engineering
from East China Shipbuilding Institute in 2000. He currently serves as the
general manager of the science and technology development department
of China Merchants Industry. He was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 23 September 2021; served as a technician of Guangzhou
Shipyard International Co., Ltd. from 2000 to 2001; served as an engineer
of Singapore Keppel FELS from 2001 to 2006; successively served as the
technical supervisor, design manager and deputy chief engineer of China
Merchants Heavy Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2013;
successively served as the deputy chief engineer and chief engineer of
China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2017;
served as the deputy general manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd./Yiu Lian Dockyards (Shekou) Limited from 2018
to 2019; served as the general manager of China Merchants Offshore
Technology Research Center from 2019 to 2021; served as the general
manager of the science and technology development department of
China Merchants Industry since 2021.
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Mr. Tam Wing Tim, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 29 August 2023. He holds a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). He currently
serves as the deputy general manager of the financial department of
China Merchants Industry and a director of Yiu Lian Dockyards Limited.
From October 1997 to July 2000, Mr. Tam worked as a clerk in the credit
department and the remittance department of United Chinese Bank.
From August 2000 to July 2001, Mr. Tam was a clerk in the remittance
department of the Bank of East Asia. From August 2001 to December
2024, Mr. Tam was the deputy director of the financial department,
the director of the financial department, the business manager of the
financial department, the assistant to the general manager of the financial
department, the deputy general manager of the finance department (with
full departmental treatment) of China Merchants Industry, vice president
of CM Energy and also a director and the chief financial officer of Yiu
Lian Dockyards Limited.

EEREE 475 RZZE=FNA=+LBE
ZARIENTES - FABEREBEIANBSHENE
TRETARSITMAG(ACCABE - KREER
AIEVBHABCERRBEMBERATES -
R—INEFETAEZTETFLA  BELEMETF
EHAEITEES  HELXE - R_TETZTFE)N
ﬁzx TTE—FLAH - BAEFRGRITHEIL
B RZIZEZE—FNAEZZT-_NE+=A ' E%
EREREIEYBMEET - BHHEE - B8
EREETSARIR - BITSERAAASIR BN IR © BA TS SR B AR 4K IR
(BPIEBAFS)  EseRBIEE - WRAERE
M AR A FIEE MR -

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT

41



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSREEE

Mr. Zhang Xizheng, aged 28, holds a bachelor’s degree in International
Economics from Beijing Institute of Technology and a master’s degree
in Applied Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a senior
trust manager of the shipping investment management headquarters
of China Minsheng Trust Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 23 November 2023. Mr. Zhang was a data analyst
of the credit insurance department of Asia-Pacific Property and Casualty
Issuance Co., Ltd. (“Asia-Pacific Property and Casualty Issuance”) from
September 2019 to May 2021, was a manager of the claims division of
the credit insurance department of Asia-Pacific Property and Casualty
Issuance from May 2021 to March 2022 and has been a senior trust
manager of the shipping investment management headquarters of China
Minsheng Trust Co., Ltd. from March 2022 to date.
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Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, aged 66, is a co-founder of the
Company and currently serves as a non-executive Director and the
President of Overseas Affairs of the Company. He obtained his
bachelor’s degree majoring in drilling engineering from China University
of Petroleum in 1982 and acquired his master’s degree in petroleum
engineering from University of Alaska-Fairbanks in the U.S.A. in 1989
and he received an executive master’s degree in business administration
("EMBA") from China Europe International Business School in 2012. He
has 40 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding
the Company, he worked for a subsidiary of the group of China National
Petroleum Corporation in China and for Cook Inlet Region Inc. in
Alaska. He is currently a member of several oil industry associations and
professional organizations including the Society of Petroleum Engineers
and the American Drilling Engineers.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BITES

EENRGREEE

Mr. Zhan Huafeng, aged 40, holds a master’s degree in naval
architecture and marine engineering from Wuhan University of
Technology. He was appointed as a non-executive Director on 24 March
2023. He was re-designated as an executive Director and was appointed
as the Executive President of the Company on 29 August 2023. Mr. Zhan
served at China Merchants Industry successively from 2018 to 2022 with
his last position as office director. Mr. Zhan worked at China Merchants
Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* (BBABEL(I&)BR A A]) and
China Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.* (B BEiHEREGR
A R]) successively from 2013 to 2019 with his last position as director of
human resources department; and at Yiu Lian Dockyards Limited* (/B
YR (4 O)ABR A 7)) as assistant to the manager of the human resources
department, and at Yiu Lian Dockyards Limited* (& EtfHiRiA R A ) as
the executive deputy general manager successively from 2008 until Mr.
Zhan has been re-designated as an executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BMFHTES
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Mr. Zou Zhendong, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since May 2018. He also serves as an independent
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd., an A share company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, a senior partner of Sinowing Law LLP, a legal
representative of Sinowing (Beijing) AMC Co., Ltd., and further and
concurrently as a member of the High-tech and E-Commerce Committee
& International Business Committee of All China Lawyers Association.
Mr. Zou served as a staff member of the Chinese People’s Association
for Friendship with Foreign Countries, as a staff member of China Native
Produce & Animal By-Products Import & Export Corp., as the director of
the 4th Department for China Commercial Foreign Trade Corporation,
and as the partner in charge of international business department and
intellectual property department for Beijing Dacheng Law Firm (also
known as Dentons). Mr. Zou was awarded a bachelor’s degree by the
Renmin University of China in 1992, with major in international politics
and minor in international economics. Mr. Zou was jointly elected by the
Ministry of Justice of the People’s Republic of China and Lord Chancellor’s
Office of the United Kingdom to work and train in London.
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Ms. Zhang Zhen, aged 45, is an associate researcher and a doctoral
candidate in industrial economics at the Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences. She holds a master’'s degree in business
administration from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences and a master’s degree in global environmental management
and sustainable development from Hong Kong Metropolitan University.
She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 22
March 2024. She currently serves as the executive dean of China
EV100 Low Carbon Integrated Development Institute and the dean of
Shangdong Institute of Hydrogen Energy Technology. She successively
served as a marketing manager and strategy director of Datang Mobile
Communications Equipment Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2007; successively
served as a project director and partner of He Jun Group Limited (1
EHEABR AT from 2008 to 2013; served as the director of capital
operations department of CITIC Medical & Health Group Co., Ltd.
from 2013 to 2015; served as the chief investment officer of Yinji
Entertainment and Media Co., Ltd. (D42 IR 44E AR D B IR A F)), a listed
company, from 2016 to 2018; served as the executive dean of China
EV100 Low Carbon Integrated Development Institute and the dean of
Shangdong Institute of Hydrogen Energy Technology since 2019 to date.
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Mr. Xue Jianzhong, aged 62, graduated from Henan Radio and
Television University. He is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC,
Certified Tax Agent in the PRC and an auditor in the PRC. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 22 March 2024.
He currently serves as a partner and director of Shenzhen Great Wall
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd., and a member of the 7th Council
of the Shenzhen Institute of Certified Public Accountants, director of
Shenzhen Yongdao Taxation Firm Co., Ltd. and an executive director and
general manager of Shenzhen Zhenzhong Industrial Development Co.,
Ltd. From 1983 to 1984, he served as an auditor at the Tanghe County
Taxation Bureau in Henan Province; from 1985 to 1994, he successively
served as an auditor and a deputy section chief in the Tanghe County
Taxation Bureau, and a director of Tanghe County Audit Firm in Henan
Province; from 1994 to 2005, he served as a partner and director of
Shenzhen Yongming Accounting Firm; since 2005, he has been working
as a partner at Shenzhen Great Wall Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Ltd. and director (including working as the chairman and general manager
from 2011 to 2022); since 2003, he has served as an executive director
and general manager of Shenzhen Zhenzhong Industrial Development
Co., Ltd; since 2007, he has served as a director of Shenzhen Yongdao
Taxation Firm Co., Ltd.; from 2014 to 2017, he served as the chairman
and general manager of Shenzhen Guohua Investment Management
Co., Ltd; from 2015 to 2017, he served as an executive director and
general manager of Shenzhen Guohua Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. In
addition, Mr. Xue has been an independent director of Shenzhen LAY-
OUT Planning Consultants Co., Ltd. (RYITH & 8RB R AR 1D
fR/2 7] , a company listed on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300989) since 2019 and an independent director
of Shenzhen Chuangyitong Technology Co., Ltd. (F 3T Az B TR D
HBRAT], a company listed on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300991) since 2021.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

EENRGREEE

Mr. Zhan Huafeng, aged 40, was appointed as the Executive President
of the Company on 29 August 2023 and is fully responsible for the daily
operations and business operations of the Company. Mr. Zhan served
at China Merchants Industry successively from 2018 to 2022 with his
last position as office director. Mr. Zhan worked at China Merchants
Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* (BBERBEIL(IE)ER A7) and
China Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.* (B BEHEREGR
‘A A]) successively from 2013 to 2019 with his last position as director of
human resources department, and at Yiu Lian Dockyards Limited* (/B
f (B O) 7B PR A A)) as assistant to the manager of the human resources
department, and at Yiu Lian Dockyards Limited* (A E 8B R 2 7)) as
the executive deputy general manager successively from 2008 until Mr.
Zhan has been re-designated as the Executive President of the Company.
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Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, aged 66, is a co-founder of the
Company and currently serves as a non-executive Director and the
President of Overseas Affairs of the Company. He obtained his
bachelor’s degree majoring in drilling engineering from China University
of Petroleum in 1982 and acquired his master’s degree in petroleum
engineering from University of Alaska-Fairbanks in the U.S.A. in 1989
and he received an executive master’s degree in business administration
("EMBA") from China Europe International Business School in 2012. He
has 40 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding
the Company, he worked for a subsidiary of the group of China National
Petroleum Corporation in China and for Cook Inlet Region Inc. in
Alaska. He is currently a member of several oil industry associations and
professional organizations including the Society of Petroleum Engineers
and the American Drilling Engineers.
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Mr. Xie Shaohua, aged 53, joined the Company in July 2018, serves
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and is responsible for the
financial management of the Company. He graduated from Central
University of Finance and Economics in 1993, and received master’s
degree at the University of International Business and Economics and
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003 and 2005 respectively.
Mr. Xie is a Chinese senior accountant. In 2016, he received a certificate
of “National Leading Accountant” (2Bl &5T<EE A4 FE) issued by
Ministry of Finance. From November 1998 to October 2002, he served in
the finance department of Sinotrans & CSC Holdings Co., Ltd. (R EZ4N
ERMEE R F]). From November 2002 to May 2007, he served as the
deputy general manager of the finance department of Sinotrans Limited
(H shares stock code: 00598). From September 2007 to June 2018, he
was appointed as deputy general manager and chief financial officer of
Sinotrans Shipping limited (stock code: 00368).

WMAOESRE 535 —E—N\FEAMALXRF
BEERQRIERMHEE  BEARGNYVBERET
E - ER—NN=ZFEERFRULKRE - W55
RZEZE=FN_FTTAFNEHINCEEZ HKE
MEBPNARBELEN - HEEAFPRSRSE
e RZZT—AF  FEMBRIEEE2HSHES
ATBE  — NN N\F+—AZEZZTZT=F+ 7
BEPEIERMEBARMBHIIE —TT=
F+—AE-_TTLFRA - BECPTHIMNERND
BERAR(HE - BREHIRT : 00598) B 5 2 2 42 48
B —EE+ENAET T N\EXNA  HEZET
BFRINEMEFR AT (RERS - 00368) &1L 12
FTEHBES o

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT

45



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSREEE

Mr. Wang Yong, aged 61, joined the Company in April 2012 as the
Vice President of the Company and is responsible for the operation of
Overseas Business of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he
was the general manager for Weatherford International China. In his 17
years with Weatherford International, he held several managerial roles
including global business alignment manager and business development
manager. He started his career in the oil industry as a drilling engineer
for China National Petroleum Corporation after graduating from the
China Petroleum University in 1982. He also spent five years in the
China Petroleum University teaching drilling engineering courses before
completing his first master’s degree in petroleum engineering from the
Louisiana State University in 1993. He also holds an EMBA from the China
Europe International Business School.
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Mr. Chen Yungiang, aged 58, serves as the Vice President of the
Company and is responsible for the operation of China Merchants TSC
Offshore Tech Ltd. and TSC-HHCT Control and Drive Technology Co,
Ltd. He has served as the chief executive officer of TSC (China) since
2005 and has been appointed as the Vice President of the Company with
effect from 15 February 2020. Mr. Chen studied industrial enterprise
management at the Hangzhou University of Electronic Science and
Technology (ft/NEFEHZAKE). Mr. Chen joined the Group in August
2001 as a general manager of HHCT, a subsidiary of the Group, in Xi‘an,
China till 2005. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked at Xi'an
Petroleum Exploration Instrument Complex (78 % i #) iR % 22 48 ) for
14 years in various positions, including assistant factory head, supervisor
of electric driven production lines and manager of its sales branch for
drilling rigs.
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Mr. Huai Zengmin, aged 52, has been appointed as the Vice President
of the Company with effect from 30 November 2021 and is responsible
for the expansion and management of the hydrogen and new energy
related business. Mr. HUAI graduated from Tiangong University with
a master’s degree in management in 2000. Mr. HUAI is a fellowship
member (FCCA) of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. HUAI joined the Company in December 2009 and has successively
served as CEO Assistant of the Group, Deputy General Manager of China
Region, General Manager of Venezuela Region and General Manager of
Operation Management Department of the Group. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. HUAI served in the oil and gas and offshore engineering
industry for 24 years, and successively held various positions in technology
and sales in CSSC Tianjin Xingang Shipbuilding Industry Co., Ltd., Hong
Kong Tecway and Converteam.
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Mr. Wang Fudong, aged 53, senior engineer, joined the Company
in May 2005 and was appointed as Vice President of the Company on
26 March 2025, and is responsible for the management of technology
research and development and innovation of the Company, and the
green energy business expansion of the Company. He graduated from
the University of Petroleum in 1992, majoring in mining machinery, and
holds a doctoral degree in petroleum engineering from China University
of Petroleum (East China), a master’s degree in mechanical engineering
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, and an EMBA from China Europe
International Business School. From 1992 to April 2005, Mr. Wang
served at the Drilling Technology Research Institute of Shengli Oilfield
of Sinopec, and has years of experience in the petroleum, natural gas,
and offshore engineering equipment manufacturing industries. He
joined the Company in May 2005 and successively served as the deputy
general manager of Qingdao TSC Petroleum Machinery Co., Ltd., general
manager of Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd., general manager
of China region of the Company, vice president of TSC Offshore (OFS),
deputy general manager of China region of the Company and general
manager of Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd., general manager
of China Merchants TSC Offshore Tech Ltd. and general manager of
Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd., assistant to the president
and general manager of CM TSC, assistant to the president and technical
director of the Company, and assistant to the president, technical director
of the Company, and general manager of China Merchants Green Energy
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEEHRES

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the Year. In the future, we will
focus on the “hydrogen, engineering, electricity and services” industry
layout, with green energy terminal products as the core, highlighting
technological attributes and forging core technologies in fields such as
hydrogen-based energy, high-end equipment, and intelligent electrical
control, with the aim of improving energy conversion efficiency and
reducing carbon emissions, concentrating on excellent operations and
quality manufacturing on a global scale, striving to become a leading
technological green energy and equipment service provider, leveraging its
wisdom and effort to contribute to the sustainable development of green
transition.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Company'’s results for the Year is set out in the financial statements
on pages 163 to 164. The Board is not aware of any shareholders who
have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

The Board proposed to distribute a final dividend of HK$0.01 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2024, estimated to be paid
to shareholders on 20 June 2025, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the upcoming annual general meeting scheduled to be
held on 16 May 2025.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy has been adopted by the Company which sets out the
principles to be followed for paying dividends to the shareholders of the
Company. When considering to make dividend payments, the Board shall
take into account factors including but not limited to the Company’s
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five financial years ended 31 December 2024, are extracted from
the audited financial statements of the relevant annual reports of the
Company, and are set out on pages 10 to 11. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

CM Energy considers a high degree of social responsibility, environmental
protection, safety and sustainable economy as key factors in ensuring
business continuity and success. The Company has introduced effective
tools to ensure full implementation of social, safety and environmental
policies within the Company to ensure compliance with the relevant
legal and regulatory requirements as described in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

Details of the Company’s environmental, social and governance ("ESG")
performance for the Year can be found in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” as set out on pages 94 to 139 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE AWARDS

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share capital
during the Year are set out in note 30(b) to the financial statements.
Details of the Company’s Share Award Schemes are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

On 30 December 2024, the Company and China Merchants Innovation
and Technology (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (the “Subscriber”, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Merchants Group Limited* (fBE/m5% #
ABR/AR]), a substantial shareholder of the Company) entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue and allot, and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, 1,621,717,000 shares at the price of HK$0.20 per
share for a total consideration of HK$324,343,400 in cash (the “Share
Subscription”). The ordinary resolutions approving the Share Subscription
and the specific mandate were passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 28 February 2025. Completion of the
Share Subscription has not taken place as at the date of this report.

During the Year, save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 30(a) to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 167, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company as at 31 December 2024, as computed in accordance
with the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
US$41,197,000 (2023: US$44,213,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year, sales to the Company’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 54.5% of the Company’s total sales for the Year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately
15.8% of the Company'’s total sales.

Purchases paid to the Company’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 34.9% of the Company’s total paid purchases for the Year
and purchases paid to the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 14.7% of the Company’s total paid purchases.

Expect for CM Group, none of the Directors, or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital),
had any beneficial interest in the Company's five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Company did not make any donations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Mei Xianzhi

Mr. Liu Jiancheng

Mr. Tam Wing Tim

Mr. Zhang Xizheng

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua (resigned on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Wang Jianzhong (resigned on 5 July 2024)

=

=

=

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Zhan Huafeng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zou Zhendong

Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (resigned on 5 July 2024)

Due to other work arrangements, during the Year, Mr. Wang Jianzhong
resigned as a non-executive Director, and each of Mr. Chen Weidong and
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny resigned as an independent non-executive
Director.

Mr. Xue Jianzhong and Ms. Zhang Zhen, who were appointed as
independent non-executive Directors with effect from 22 March 2024,
have obtained legal advice from the Company’s legal advisers and
confirmed their understanding of the obligations as a director of a listed
issuer in accordance with the requirements under Rule 3.09D of the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company'’s articles of association,
Mr. Zou Zhendong, Mr. Zhan Huafeng and Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Mei Xianzhi has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 6 June 2022,
and has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for the
appointment as the chairman of the Board on 29 August 2023, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice, and such appointment shall be continuous. Mr. Mei
has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

Mr. Liu Jiancheng has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 September
2024, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving either
party to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice, and
such appointment shall be continuous. Mr. Liu Jiancheng has waived
entitlement to annual remuneration.

Mr. Tam Wing Tim has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 29 August 2023
and expiring on 28 August 2026, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice, and such appointment shall be continuous. Since
1 January 2025, Mr. Tam Wing Tim has waived entitlement to annual
remuneration.

Mr. Zhang Xizheng has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 November 2023
and expiring on 22 November 2026, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice, and such appointment shall be continuous. Mr.
Zhang Xizheng has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan has entered into an appointment contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 22 June
2020, followed by a supplemental appointment contract for a term
commencing from 24 March 2023 and expiring on 4 July 2025, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association, and such appointment shall be continuous. Mr. Zhang is
entitled to an annual remuneration of US$313,000 for all his positions in
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Mr. Zhan Huafeng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 29 August 2023,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice, and such appointment shall be continuous.
Mr. Zhan is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$1,800,000
for all his positions in the Company. Mr. Zhan is entitled to variable
remuneration comprising of ex-gratia annual bonus, which is subject to
his performance and the performance of the Company and the approval
of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Zou Zhendong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 17 May 2021,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving either party to
the other not less than three months’ prior written notice, and such
appointment shall be continuous. Mr. Zou Zhendong is entitled to receive
annual emoluments of HK$120,000.

Ms. Zhang Zhen has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 22 March 2024
and expiring on 21 March 2027, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated
by giving either party to the other not less than three months’ prior
written notice, and such appointment shall be continuous. Ms. Zhang
Zhen is entitled to receive annual emoluments of HK$120,000.

Mr. Xue Jianzhong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 22 March 2024
and expiring on 21 March 2027, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated
by giving either party to the other not less than three months’ prior
written notice, and such appointment shall be continuous. Mr. Xue
Jianzhong is entitled to receive annual emoluments of HK$120,000.

The Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory obligations.

Save as disclosed above, there is no information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

BEENRBEN @
EEBELECDRARRNTIRERE m -2
SENA-HABRAYM=F  LEARBEAKS
BANRAAARDBREBFAE FHESRREE
B BEEF—FAS—FBERTOR=EAD
EABEBNTURL - BREEEREEMEN -
EREARRENARANFEBRBREREENS
1,800,000 77 « &5 4 A RIRIVEBHEH - BIEE
BEERLA WA THEBERADANEBETE -
WEEHMES S ERFEEE

BRRALECEHARRTLEZESR AT - —
FHA+LERAY=%F TEARBAKZIZMA
WESERLEEET BRIFET—TRAS—7HE
AR =ZEANELRETMBMATALL - B
REBREEED - FIRREEFRUDMFEH S
120,000 7T ©

REXRTERARARGVYEZAER  r AT ZNF
A+ —HRBETE-_+F=A=-+—HE®M "
RE=F WEARKBEAMBERBAGESREREER
EE BRIIEEFP—FTRAS—AEETLPR=EAMN
EAZABATURILE  BRZEHAEEND -
sk B2+ B REUEF Z B4 120,000/ 7T ©

EEPAEREARARVEFER BT =W
FZA-+-_HRE-ZTE-_+F=ZA=+—HE
W ORE=F  WHARBABERMABRESRK
HEET BRIEEF—FTRS—FEETIR=(E
AMEEEMAMT AR  EEAZEHREETE
H) o BEFE S B EERF E B4 120,000 7T ©

ARRRRBIIFFNTEEZ S D BB

BMEANSETHORRBFAS LIRERECNES
HEARRAHEEMMNBARTERNRA TR —
FABAXNHBECEEEEHRINMELIEZRBE
#) o

Br EXFTEEEN  MEASEARE ETRAE
13.51B(1)E T LAHEFE o

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT

53



54

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group'’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party or were parties and in
which a Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year under
review or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer of the
Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, expenses, losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place
to protect the Directors and officers of the Company against any potential
liability arising from the Company’s activities which such directors and
officers may be held liable.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Key Financial Indicators
Details of business performance and key financial indicators are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise
profitability growth, return on equity and gearing ratio. Details of the
profitability analysis are shown in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. The Company’s return on equity,
based on profit attributable to equity shareholders to total equity
attributable to equity shareholders, decreased from 5.4% in previous
year to 5.2% in the Year, which was mainly due to decrease in net profit.
The Company’s gearing ratio, calculated based on total liabilities to
total assets, decreased from 46.1% in 2023 to 42.2% in the Year. The
Company will continue to safeguard its capital adequacy position, whilst
maintaining a balance between business growth and risk management.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Business Performance and Key Financial Indicators (Continued)

A review of the business of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
Year is set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “CEQ’s
Statement”, “Market Review” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

Sustainability Initiatives

The Company is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a positive framework for motivating
staff and promoting sustainable relationships with customers, suppliers,
service vendors, regulators and shareholders, as well as contributing
to the community in which we conduct our businesses for creating
a sustainable return to the Company. During the Year, there was no
material dispute between the Group and its customers, suppliers and
employees. The Company has implemented energy saving practices in
offices and branch premises where applicable.

The Company has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence to and compliance
with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. These policies and
procedures are reviewed regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it had
complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group for
the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

Further discussion and analysis of the Company’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out in pages 24 to 46 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO™)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company:

EERERTBRAEBRKRG - AEKRH
REFHPHEZRAXRE

RZZE_WNF+A=+—H8 EFERAQEER
TTHRABRARQRINEBE EZE (F&RFH LA
EIEG(FEEOIES71E) ((FEHRBAEKRG])EXV
MIMRG - ARG RESFT - EAREESF LD
EIRBIEIS2EAT E B EITR S LR EARRA A
BEFEMELMAALSOER AR - SBE LT
BOANERHTES R HWZESTRI(RAETAD R
TEEMEARAR MR g AR IT

oK

RELADEBRREBARD ZHR

Number of issued ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company
RABREFREEI10ETHERITEERYE

Personal
interests

Family

Name of Directors interests

BEEpnE AR FKkER

Corporate

Approximate
percentage
of the
Company’s
issued share
capital
(Note 1)
IEARAH
2817
BRAHE A
BaL
(FiFEE1)

Other

interests interests Total

DEER W HtEs it

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan 65,979,100 -

SREELLE

65,979,100 2.03%

Note:

1. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,243,433,914 shares of the
Company (“Shares”) in issue as at 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred
to in Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plans”
and “Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and note 29 to the
financial statements, at no time during the Year, any rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company was granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which is required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and has been recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company:

FERREEMALTRRSG KBRS

PSR

REZZ-ME+-A=+—H U TFALEEER
RAEIEFITHRABRINRAR R R K A8 7RO
o BEREGER RAEERA) EXVERE 2R3 &

ARARR R B ARIEE 75 N S 5553361

RARRBBRMEAERIORE

&8

RAEAFEBRREARDNER

Approximate

percentage
Capacity and nature Number of of the
Name of Shareholders of interest shares shareholding
(Note 5)
FREN
BEEE/E8 SO RERME REAEE BAk
(GED)
China Merchants Group Limited (Note 1) (“CM Group”) Corporate 3,152,089,000 97.18
REREEERAR (M) (HER/EE]) A
China Merchants Steam Navigation Company Limited (Note 1) (“CM Steam Navigation”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BRI BwmMmRmARA R M) (HBEHEt) NG|
China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd (Note 1) (“CM Industry”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BERIEEBERAR (M) (HEIED NG
China Merchants Heavy Industry Holdings Limited (Note 1) (“CM Heavy Industry”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BEREIRRERAR (M) (HBEELD) AR
Prime Force Investment Corporation (Note 1) (“Prime Force”) Beneficial Owner 1,530,372,000 47.18
Prime Force Investment Corporation(Fiz£ 1) ([Prime Forcel) EaAA
Fok Hei Yu (Note 4) Corporate 284,751,000 8.78
Fok Hei Yu (Fii7E4) AR
Aaron Luke Gardner (Note 4) Corporate 284,751,000 8.78
Aaron Luke Gardner (Fitz£4) ATl
Minyun Limited (in liquidation) (Note 4) Beneficial Owner 284,751,000 8.78
Minyun Limited (&8 %) (Fiz£4) ERBEEA
China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 2) (“"CIMC Group”) Corporate 185,600,000 5.72
REEREEREE(GRROERRA (M) (R EKE]) NG
China International Marine Containers (Hong Kong) Ltd. (Note 2) (“CIMC HK") Beneficial Owner 185,600,000 5.72
REEREER R (BB AR A () ((R&EEE]) ERfEAA
China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited (Note 3) (“CSSC") Corporate 174,394,797 538
hEmAEEER A A (EE3) ((FHsE]) AR
CSSC Offshore & Marine Engineering (Group) Company Limited (Note 3) (“CSSC Offshore”)  Corporate 174,394,797 5.38
e F B BRERGER DA FE3) (R hiEsE) NG|
CSSC Huangpu Wenchong Shipbuilding Company Limited (Note 3) Corporate 174,394,797 5.38
("Huangpu Shipbuilding”)
M EE ORI B R A R (1 aE3) (= AR NG|
Wah Shun International Marine Limited (Note 3) (“Wah Shun") Beneficial Owner 174,394,797 5.38
BB MM A R 2 7 (FaE3) ([Z)E]) ERBEEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares of

the Company: (Continued)
Notes:

1.

Prime Force is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
wholly-owned by CM Heavy Industry and CM Heavy Industry is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that Prime Force is
interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

CM Industry holds 100% of the equity interest in CM Heavy Industry, and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CM Steam Navigation which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CM Group. CM Industry, CM Steam Navigation and CM Group
are respectively deemed to be interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that
CM Heavy Industry is interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

The Company has conditionally agreed to issue and allot, and China
Merchants Innovation and Technology (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (“CM
Innovation (HK)") has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 1,621,717,000
Shares pursuant to a conditional subscription agreement dated 30 December
2024. CM Innovation (HK) is wholly-owned by Sinotrans Shipping (Holdings)
Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by China Economic and Trade
Shipping Co., Ltd.* (FEIAE B M AR 2 (“China Econ”). China Econ is
wholly-owned by China Merchants Investment Development Company
Limited* (BB EZERE AR A F]), which is in turn wholly-owned by
China Merchants Innovation Technology (Group) Co., Ltd.* (HE BEIFT %
(£E)ARAR]) ("CM Innovation Group”). CM Innovation Group is a 100%
owned subsidiary of CM Group. Therefore, CM Group is deemed to be
interested in the 1,621,717,000 Shares in which CM Innovation (HK) is
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

CIMC Group holds the entire issued share capital of CIMC HK. Therefore,
CIMC Group is deemed to be interested in the 185,600,000 Shares held by
CIMC HK under Part XV of the SFO.

CSSC holds 35.5% of equity interest of CSSC Offshore, which in turn holds
54.54% of equity interest of Huangpu Shipbuilding. CSSC also holds directly
14.48% of equity interest of Huangpu Shipbuilding, which directly holds
99% of issued shares of Wah Shun. Therefore, CSSC, CSSC Offshore and
Huangpu Shipbuilding are deemed to be interested in the 174,394,797
Shares held by Wah Shun under Part XV of the SFO.

On 2 December 2024, Minyun Limited (in liquidation) was placed into
liquidation pursuant to an Order of the Eastern Caribbean Supreme Court in
the High Court of Justice in the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Aaron Gardner and
Mr. Fok Hei Yu were appointed as Joint and Several Liquidators of Minyun
Limited (in liquidation) on the same day and hence were deemed to be
interested in the 284,751,000 Shares in which Minyun Limited (in liquidation)
was interested under Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,243,433,914 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2024, no person (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had an interest or a short position in Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

*

For identification purpose only

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

FTERRREMATHARS RABBERS
PeERRARE @)

N
MiaE -

1.

AREBERNREARONER © (@)

Prime Force8— MR ABRE LS EMKLZ AF] -
WHBEETIZERAE - Bt - RIEEF KBS K
EXVER - BEE TR B Prime Forceli B s
1,530,372,000% B 5 P #E B # % -

BELEFEREELI00% 2D YABERS
Mz2ENBAR - MBRNRGMAREREEZE
BEWBAR - RIBFHFRBEKRGIEXVEE - BEL
¥ BuRthEkinRfESasii AR BRET
AR5 21,530,372,00008 D R A HER -

BE-—Z-_mME+-B=+A85KERERE
AR BRHERERITREZRMBE BB (HE)
ERAR(BEANEB D ARKHERERE
1,621,717,0008% B 17 - HBEEIRHE ) B INEME
(ZER)ERARZEMRSE - MPINEMEER)BR
ARBHTPESEMBERAR(TRLCE)2EHE
B -FELCEHBERREREBRARZERE -
MBEREEERERARBABERAIFBHE (%
E)ARAR) ([FERaFtEEE) 28045 - 81
RBEFREEEABERE®RI100%E AN BA
Al o FHItt - IRIEFSH REEKGISEXVEE - BERERE
WR AR BREEIR (BB A= 21,621,717,0008%
B fn P A A o

PEEEBEPEFEND D EITRA - Bt - 17
BESRIEGEIEXVE - PEEBPIEASNHFE
&8 15H 2185,600,000/% % () R B 2

R B 15 A TP B 35 5% AN RS - e I
BAEEHMMS454% R AER - FHEBITEES
BEBMM14.48% B A MEBWMBEESE
E)EI9% B BT © FIML « IRIBFFH R HEEHIE
XVED - RN EE ~ RIS F R SIS AR R E
B 2 174,394,797 (D R B #Ex -

MN-Z—pE+=—H=H  Minyun LimitedG5 &)
REEBELZEESSEREMIL SR ERN
AL HETTIE M - Aaron Gardnert 4t K Fok Hei Yust
£RFE BEZ T AMinyun Limited (B8 H) 2 R &
ERIERA - FHit - RIEFEFH KIS EGIEXVED -
BEWHIBERMinyun Limited (BT B E 2
284,751,000/% Az 15 R #E B #E o o

ZEOLTRBER T _NF+ A=+ —HEHET
23,243,433,914 DT E -

B EXPBEBRENRBESHAAM  R_F_F+
ZH=TR #EAL(RRBEEHERETRA
BBESNR AR RO AR O P B ALALR
FIRBES LA EROIEICEETENETMARE

LB A
HIKE o

*

a5

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT

59



60

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted connected transaction or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Particulars of these
transactions are also set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements,
with respect to which the Directors confirm that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those transactions which are subject
to the annual reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules are summarised as follows:

Continuing Connected Transaction — Master Supply and
Purchase Agreement, and Master Vessels Chartering and
Management Services Agreement

On 18 October 2022, the Company entered into a master supply and
purchase agreement (the “Master S&P Agreement 2022") with CM
Industry, pursuant to which the Group will purchase structural parts
and other components (“Structural Parts Procurement”) from and sell
equipment used on offshore platforms etc. (together with installation and
ancillary services) (“Products Sales”) to CM Industry, effective from the
commencement date (i.e. 1 January 2023) to 31 December 2025. On 18
October 2022, the Company entered into a master vessels chartering and
management services agreement (the “Master Vessels and Management
Agreement 2022") with CM Industry, pursuant to which the Group
will charter vessels (“Vessels Chartering”) from the CM Industry and
provide vessels management services (“Vessels Management”) to the CM
Industry, effective from the commencement date (i.e. 1 January 2023) to
31 December 2025.

The Master S&P Agreement 2022 was a renewal agreement of the Master
S&P Agreement, the annual caps under the Master S&P Agreement 2022
for each of the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are
US$200 million, US$150 million, and US$150 million, respectively, for
the Products Sales; and US$35 million, US$30 million, and US$30 million,
respectively, for the Structural Parts Procurement. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the aggregate amount of the Products Sales and the
Structural Parts Procurement under the Master S&P Agreement 2022
were approximately US$24.4 million and US$10,000 respectively.

The annual caps under the Master Vessels and Management Agreement
2022 for each of the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025
are US$19 million, US$26 million, and US$30 million, respectively, for
the Vessels Chartering; and US$40 million, US$23 million, and US$21
million, respectively, for the Vessels Management. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the aggregate amount of the Vessels Chartering and
the Vessels Management under the Master Vessels and Management
Agreement 2022 were approximately US$6.4 million and US$8.7 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction — Master Supply and
Purchase Agreement, and Master Vessels Chartering and
Management Services Agreement (Continued)

CM Industry is a controlling shareholder of the Company and also
a connected person of the Company. As a result, the transactions
contemplated under the Master S&P Agreement 2022 and Master Vessels
and Management Agreement 2022 constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of each
of the annual caps for the Product Sales, Structural Parts Procurement,
Vessels Chartering and Vessels Management exceed 5%, the above
transactions and annual caps are subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. At the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 15 December 2022, the above
transactions and annual caps were approved by the independent
shareholders.

Details of the above transactions are set in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2022.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
confirmed the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXTEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Connected Transaction- Subscription of Shares

On 30 December 2024 (after trading hours), the Company and China
Merchants Innovation and Technology (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (the
"Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue and allot, and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, 1,621,717,000 Shares at the price of HK$0.20 per
share for a total consideration of HK$324,343,400 in cash (the “Share
Subscription”). The Subscriber is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
CM Group, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Share Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and was subject to
announcement, reporting and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The ordinary
resolutions approving the Share Subscription and the specific mandate
were passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 28 February 2025.

The Company intends to apply its current cash resources towards
existing projects. In particular, a significant portion of the Company’s
current cash resources will be reserved for the petroleum drilling rig
modernized modification project of Petréleos Mexicanos. The Share
Subscription would enable the Company to raise funds for investing in
new opportunities as further described below.

The net proceeds from the Share Subscription are intended to be used
for the development of hydrogen, machinery, electricity and service
related businesses, including progressing the Company’s green energy
equipment development and manufacturing, electric drive and control
and other aspects, which will enhance the Company’s manufacturing
capabilities to create competitive products. In particular, the net
proceeds are intended to be used (i) to enhance the development of the
Company’s hydrogen energy business, focusing on the next generation
R&D for core components of electrolyzers such as diaphragms and
electrodes, upgrading automated production lines (including achieving
capacity consolidation and production line upgrades, targeting an annual
production capacity of 100 sets of 1,000 standard cubic electrolyzers),
recruiting more talents and strengthening R&D team; and (ii) in the
operation of green energy related projects, investing in projects with
exemplary value and other investment opportunities as may be identified
in the future, etc. The Company seeks to invest in projects with a focus on
the research and development of core components of water electrolysis
hydrogen production equipment and system design. Given that the
Company seeks to implement such investment strategy in the near future,
the Company proposes to conduct the Share Subscription and raise funds
in advance so that it would be in a position to effect such investment as
and when any such opportunities arise. The Company will also explore
potential project opportunities in other areas of the green energy sector
in order to accelerate its green business transformation. The net proceeds
will also be used to supplement the Company’s general liquidity. The
Company intends to apply proceeds from the Share Subscription towards
developing the basic backdrop for its hydrogen energy business and
energy related projects during 2025 and the first half of 2026.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024

HEXZIRBEBRERS ®

BERS -RBERHG
RIZE-MFE+-A=+H(XFHERE) » XAF
HREREIF R (BB BRAR(RBADT LR
BEinz((RERZED @ Bt - AARBIREREET
KiRE  BERBAGKEREERZRBEESRIAEE
0.208 TR 881,621,717,0000 0% 1) - KRB AIRE
324,343,400 L ([ REEFIE]) - REABLER
AITEREREREER Y HE2ENB AR © Eitt
BARNBZEEAL - At BRORBEIEBELR
NAZEERS  WAEBT EMREANE4AZZ R
S BREBYREIERT o #HERNDREEE
MERIREZ EBREREN-_E-_AF A=+
NBEITZARARREEFR KNS HERB -

ARBBREERBERSERAREBER - K57
o ARBREBERESERKIE D18 ARPetrodleos
MexicanosZ A MR IBR(LBUEIEE - RINDBES
EEFERRTENEEE S AL ETEmE G T X
HE— ) -

BRORBEENSRBFERANRE - # - F R
ABERERE  BEMERQGZBRE HRE
BRI BB EEH R EMFE - W AEERA
NEIRERES TERBUHES - B+ FIERE
SFEERAEl) TR ARENERERERE - Y
T —REMFEZOIH(RRELER) O - F
BECEER RREERERETNEERAL
BEREHRFEESE100 41,000 ZHET H SHEE)
RIEE 2 AA WANRFEEREER - AR >G)BRER AL
FREBEEMES - B RENEEE R AR
FIARRBWOEMBERSE - AQAHONEE
BEREHRKRTEFBZ OIS IFTEN ZH RN
HE - ERARRBERTANBREERBILE
KB - MARRFEETRMAESEITIRNES
B WERIWZERSHRBETEREE
RARTIEFRE B ERIRBE MM ELEEE
e UNREGEERER - EREFAGH
RETREARBN—RABDES - AR REBRMNR
BEEMSRERARNE—_E-_AGEFE T - F
FEAETRES NARIARIEB T EEM Y -



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Connected Transaction- Subscription of Shares (Continued)
Upon completion, CM Group will become interested in more than 50%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The Share Subscription will
allow the China Merchants Group more flexibility and higher efficiency in
supporting the long-term business development of the Company, which
in turn facilitates the Company to realise its own long-term development
strategy. CM Group’s increase in shareholding in the Company also
indicates its confidence in the continued long-term growth of the
Company.

The Share Subscription will also allow the consolidation of resources in
the science and technology fields within the China Merchants Group. This
will allow the Company to further focus on the synergistic development
of green energy technology and assist the Company in becoming a
successful platform for high-end green energy equipment manufacturing.
This will be a key aspect in the Company achieving its medium and
long term goals of being an industry leading provider of technologically
innovative green energy and equipment services.

The Directors (including the members of the takeovers code independent
board committee and the listing rules independent board committee
whose views are set out in the letter from the takeover code independent
board committee and the letter from the listing rules independent board
committee respectively as contained in the circular of the Company
dated 13 February 2025) consider that the terms and conditions of the
Subscription Agreement (including the subscription price) are fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms, and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Details of the Share Subscription are set out in the announcement and
circular of the Company dated 30 December 2024 and 13 February 2025
respectively. Completion of the Share Subscription has not taken place as
at the date of this report.
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SHARE AWARD PLANS

2025 Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2015 Share Award
Plan”) on 16 January 2015. The Company amended the 2015 Share
Award Plan (“2025 Share Award Plan”) by way of adopting the amended
and restated rules of the 2015 Share Award Plan, in order to, among
others, extend the term of the 2015 Share Award Plan for a period of 10
years commencing from 14 January 2025 (the “2025 Plan Amendment
Date”) and ending on 13 January 2035.

Purpose
The purpose of the 2025 Share Award Plan is to remunerate, recognise
and award the contributions of the 2025 Plan Eligible Persons (as defined
below) to the growth and development of the Group through the award
of Shares.

Participants

The administration committee (which is delegated with the power and
authority by the Board to administer the 2025 Share Award Plan) may,
in its absolute discretion, make an award to any employee (whether full
time or part time but excluding any excluded employee) of the Group
who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed
to any member of the Group (the “2025 Plan Eligible Persons”). Excluded
employee is any employee who is resident in a place where the award of
the Shares and/or the vesting and transfer of awarded shares pursuant
to the terms of the 2025 Share Award Plan is not permitted under the
laws and regulations of such place or where in the view of the Directors
or the trustee (as the case may be) compliance with applicable laws and
regulations in such place make it necessary or expedient to exclude such
employee.

Scheme Mandate

The total number of Shares that may be purchased and held by the
trustee of the 2025 Share Award Plan in order to satisfy the outstanding
awards from time to time made under the 2025 Share Award Plan should
not exceed 5% of the total issued Shares at the 2025 Plan Adoption Date
(i.e. 162,171,695 Shares) (the “2025 Plan Limit”). The 2025 Plan Limit
represents approximately 5% of the total issued Shares as at the date of
this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
No maximum entitlement of each 2025 Plan Eligible Person is specified
under the 2025 Share Award Plan.

Where any grant of awards to a selected person would result in the
number of Shares subject to the awards granted under the 2025 Share
Award Plan to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the 2025 Plan Amendment Date, such
grant shall be approved by the Remuneration Committee.
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SHARE AWARD PLANS (Continued)

2025 Share Award Plan (Continued)

Exercise period

As the 2025 Share Award Plan is a share award plan of the Company
instead of a share option scheme, the awards granted under the 2025
Share Award Plan are not subject to any exercise period nor are the 2025
Plan Eligible Persons entitled to any exercise rights.

Vesting period

The awards to be made under the 2025 Share Award Plan shall be
subject to such vesting conditions and periods as may be determined by
the Company.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the 2025 Plan Eligible
Persons upon acceptance of awards granted under the 2025 Share Award
Plan.

Term

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board and
any resolutions by the Directors to renew the terms of the 2025 Share
Award Plan, the 2025 Share Award Plan will remain in force for a period
commencing on the 2025 Plan Amendment Date and ending on 13
January 2035.

Movement and position

There was no unvested award granted to the 2025 Plan Eligible Persons
under the 2025 Share Award Plan as at 1 January 2024. No award was
granted under the 2025 Share Award Plan during the year ended 31
December 2024.

Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award granted to the 2025 Plan
Eligible Persons under the 2025 Share Award Plan as at 31 December
2024; and (i) no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the 2025 Share
Award Plan during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Under the 2025 Share Award Plan, the trustee held 8,446,456 Shares
as at the date of this report, representing approximately 0.26% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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SHARE AWARD PLANS (Continued)

2019 Share Award Plan
The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2019 Share Award
Plan”) on 31 October 2019 (the “2019 Plan Adoption Date”).

Purpose
The purpose of the 2019 Share Award Plan is to recognise and reward
the contribution of the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons (as defined below)
towards the growth and development of the Group through the award
of Shares.

Participants

The administration committee (which is delegated with the power and
authority by the Board to administer the 2019 Share Award Plan) may,
in its absolute discretion, make an award to any employee (whether full
time or part time) of the Group, including directors, senior management
and any other connected persons of the Company and any consultant of
the Group (the “2019 Plan Eligible Persons”).

Scheme Mandate

The total number of Shares that may be purchased and held by the
trustee of the 2019 Share Award Plan in order to satisfy the outstanding
awards from time to time made under the 2019 Share Award Plan should
not exceed 3% of the total issued Shares on the 2019 Plan Adoption
Date (i.e. 88,389,372 Shares) (the “2019 Plan Limit"”). The 2019 Plan
Limit represents approximately 2.73% of the total issued Shares as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
No maximum entitlement of each 2019 Plan Eligible Person is specified
under the 2019 Share Award Plan.

Exercise period

As the 2019 Share Award Plan is a share award plan of the Company
instead of a share option scheme, the awards granted under the 2019
Share Award Plan are not subject to any exercise period nor are the 2019
Plan Eligible Persons entitled to any exercise rights.

Vesting period

The awards to be made under the 2019 Share Award Plan shall be
subject to such vesting conditions and periods as may be determined by
the Company.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the 2019 Plan Eligible
Persons upon acceptance of awards granted under the 2019 Share Award
Plan.
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SHARE AWARD PLANS (Continued)

2019 Share Award Plan (Continued)

Term

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the 2019 Share
Award Plan, the 2019 Share Award Plan will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on the 2019 Plan Adoption Date and ending on
30 October 2029.

Movement and position

There was no unvested award granted to the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons
under the 2019 Share Award Plan as at 1 January 2024. No award
was granted under the 2019 Share Award Plan for the year ended 31
December 2024. Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award granted to
the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons under the 2019 Share Award Plan as at 31
December 2024; and (ii) no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the
2019 Share Award Plan during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Under the 2019 Share Award Plan, the trustee held 62,052,544 Shares
as at the date of this report, representing approximately 1.91% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

SHARE AWARD INCENTIVE SCHEME

A share award incentive scheme (the “Share Award Incentive Scheme")
of the Company was adopted by way of ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016 (the
Scheme Adoption Date”).

“Incentive

Purpose

The purposes of the Share Award Incentive Scheme are (i) to align the
interests of the Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons (as defined below) with
those of the Group through ownership of Shares, dividends and other
distributions paid on Shares and/or the increase in value of the Shares;
and (ii) to encourage and retain Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons (as
defined below) to make contributions to the long-term growth and
profits of the Group.

Participants

The persons eligible to participate in the Share Award Incentive Scheme
are any individual, being any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any affiliate (who is not a
connected person of the Company), officer, consultant or advisor of any
member of the Group or any affiliate (who is not a connected person of
the Company) who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Incentive Scheme
Eligible Persons”).
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SHARE AWARD INCENTIVE SCHEME (Continued)

Scheme mandate

The total number of new Shares underlying all grants made pursuant
to the Share Award Incentive Scheme shall not exceed 3% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the Incentive Scheme Adoption Date (i.e.
21,213,606 Shares) (the “Incentive Scheme Limit”). The Incentive Scheme
Limit was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016. The Incentive
Scheme Limit represents approximately 0.65% of the total issued Shares
as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
No maximum entitlement of each Incentive Scheme Eligible Person is
specified under the Share Award Incentive Scheme.

Exercise period

As the Share Award Incentive Scheme is a share award plan of the
Company instead of a share option scheme, the awards granted under
the Share Award Incentive Scheme are not subject to any exercise period
nor are the Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons entitled to any exercise
rights.

Vesting period
The Board shall determine from time to time such vesting criteria and
conditions or periods for the award to be vested under the Share Award
Incentive Scheme.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the Incentive Scheme Eligible
Persons upon acceptance of awards granted under the Share Award
Incentive Scheme.

Term

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share
Award Incentive Scheme, the Share Award Incentive Scheme shall be
valid and effective for 10 years from the Incentive Scheme Adoption Date
and ending on 26 May 2026.
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SHARE AWARD INCENTIVE SCHEME (Continued)

Movement and position

No award was granted made under the Share Award Incentive Scheme
since its adoption and hence no Shares may be issued under the Share
Award Incentive Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024.
Accordingly, (i) there was no unvested award granted to the Incentive
Scheme Eligible Persons under the Share Award Incentive Scheme as at 1
January 2024; (i) no award was granted under the Share Award Incentive
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2024; and (iii) there was (a) no
unvested award granted to the Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons under
the Share Award Incentive Scheme as at 31 December 2024; and (b)
no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award Incentive
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024.

21,213,606 awards and 21,213,606 awards were available for grant
under the Incentive Scheme Limit as at 1 January 2024 and 31 December
2024, respectively.

Amendments to the Listing Rules relating to share scheme of listed issuers
became effective on 1 January 2023. As provided under the transitional
arrangements, the Company can continue to make grants to participants
eligible under the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules under existing
schemes until refreshment or expiry of the existing scheme mandates.

As no option or share award was granted under all share schemes of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024, no Shares may be
issued in respect thereof.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plans” and
“Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in this report and note 29 to
the financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the Year are set out in note 34
to the financial statements. Save as disclosed herein, there were no other
transactions to be disclosed as related party transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, there were
no related party transaction falling under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the related party transactions which constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates was
interested in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Company, or had any other conflict
of interests with the Company during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total
number of issued Shares (being the prescribed minimum percentage of
public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the
Listing Rules) was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

KPMG resigned as the auditors of the Company with effect from 2
November 2023. At the recommendation of the audit committee of the
Company, the Board resolved to appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as
the new auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of KPMG with effect from the same date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 78 to 104 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER PERIOD

On 14 January 2025, the Company has amended the 2015 Share Award
Plan by adopting the 2025 Share Award Plan, in order to, among others,
extend the term of the 2015 Share Award Plan for a period of 10 years
commencing from 14 January 2025 and ending on 13 January 2035.
The maximum number of Shares to be purchased by the trustee shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the 2025
Plan Amendment Date, i.e. 162,171,695 Shares throughout the term of
the 2025 Share Award Plan.

On behalf of the Board
CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.
Mei Xianzhi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RE PORT

The Board is pleased to present the “Corporate Governance Report” for
the Year.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Group's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the needs of its business. The Board sets the tone and shapes the
corporate culture of the Company, which is underpinned by the core
values of acting lawfully and responsibly across all levels of the Group. The
Board plays a leading role in defining the purpose, values and strategic
direction of the Group, and ensure its culture are aligned. The Company
has continued to incorporate the essence of corporate governance into its
management structure and internal control procedures, with the aim to
maintaining the highest standard in integrity and ethics in all aspects of
our business activities, and to ensure the full compliance of our operations
with applicable laws and regulations. By achieving high standards of
corporate governance, the Directors believe that sound and reasonable
corporate governance practices are essential for the rapid growth of
the Company and for safeguarding and maximising the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole, which is the principal objective
of the Company. In achieving this objective, the Company strives to
insist in its strategy in the development of both traditional energy and
new energy businesses. In the meantime, the Company is committed
to maintain long term value to its shareholders, other stakeholders and
the community at large, for example, the Company is concerned with its
ESG impact to its stakeholders. More details of the Company’s culture
and Company'’s strategies could be found in different sections under the
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Report of the Directors” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had complied with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
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fHuempa

THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
forth in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors had complied with such code of conduct
and the required standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’
responsibilities to create value for shareholders and safeguard the best
interests of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its duties
in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good
faith. The Board is also responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Company’s business. Responsibilities
in relation to daily operation and management and execution of the
strategic business plans are delegated to the management.

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors and senior
management (as well as term of appointment of non-executive directors)
are set out under the “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company. The current and former executive Directors
have sufficient experience to carry out their duties effectively and
efficiently.

The Board comprises nine Directors as at the date of this annual report,
including five non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mei Xianzhi (Chairman),
Mr. Liu Jiancheng, Mr. Tam Wing Tim, Mr. Zhang Xizheng and Mr. Zhang
Menggui, Morgan; one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhan Huafeng
(Executive President); and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zou Zhendong, Ms. Zhang Zhen and Mr. Xue Jianzhong. As
over half of the members of the Board are non-executive Directors and
they have not participated in the day-to-day operations/management
of the Company, the Board is able to exercise independent judgement
on corporate affairs and provide the management with a diverse and
objective perspective on issues. The Board believes that the current board
size is appropriate based on the Company’s present circumstances and
will periodically evaluate the need for increasing or decreasing its size.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As of the date of this report, the Board has complied with the
requirement of the Listing Rules of having at least three independent non-
executive Directors (more than one third of the Board members) and at
least one of them having appropriate professional accounting or related
financial management expertise. To the knowledge of the Directors, there
are no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
the Board members (in particular, between the chairman and the chief
executive).

Non-compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 23
November 2023 and 4 March 2024. Immediately after the resignation of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company failed to comply
with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, pursuant to
which, the number of independent non-executive Directors must be at
least one-third of the Board.

Pursuant to Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules, the Company should have re-
complied with Rule 3.10A within three (3) months from the date of non-
compliance. The Company applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the
Stock Exchange granted a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules and an extension of time to 23 March 2024. On 22
March 2024, immediately after the resignation of Mr. Jiang Bing Hua as
a non-executive Director, the resignation of Mr. Chen Weidong as an
independent non-executive Director, and the appointment of Ms. Zhang
Zhen and Mr. Xue Jianzhong as independent non-executive Directors
respectively, the then Board comprised of eleven (11) Directors, including
one (1) executive Director, six (6) non-executive Directors and four (4)
independent non-executive Directors. Therefore, the Company has since
then re-complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Articles of Association clearly state the procedures for the
appointment of new Directors, re-election and removal of Directors.
Under the Articles of Association, the Board may from time to time
appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any such new Director shall hold office until the next annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the same general meeting.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years. They are
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years, and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless and until terminated
by not less than three months’ prior notice in writing served by either
party on the other. Pursuant to Article 87, Mr. Zou Zhendong, Mr. Zhan
Huafeng and Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan will retire, and being eligible
for election, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 16 May 2025.

The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent persons.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The primary functions of the Board include:

o deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and
financial performance and formulating appropriate policies to
manage risk exposure associated with realising the strategies and
goals of the Company;

e being held accountable for the internal control system of the
Company and responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

o being ultimately responsible for preparing financial statements and
discussing the performance, financial conditions and prospects of
the Company in a balanced, clear and comprehensible manner.
These responsibilities are applicable to interim and annual reports
of the Company, other price sensitive announcements published
according to the Listing Rules and disclosure of other financial
information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and information
discloseable under statutory requirements;

e executive Director(s) overseeing the overall business of the Company
and being responsible for the daily operations of the Company
and the Board being responsible for affairs involving the overall
policies, finances and shareholders of the Company, including,
among others, financial statements, dividend policy, significant
changes to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material
contracts, major financing arrangements, principal investment and
risk management strategies. Implementation and execution of such
decisions being delegated to the management; and

o regularly reviewing its own functions and the powers conferred
upon executive Director(s) to ensure appropriate arrangements
are in place. The management is well informed of its power and
duties with clear guidelines and instructions, in particular regarding
situations under which reporting to the Board is necessary and
matters that require the approval of the Board before any decisions
or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company.

Members of the Board held a total of five meetings during the Year.
The Directors were given sufficient time and information relating to the
matters to be discussed in the Board meetings in advance, or except
in special circumstances, consent to short notice is sought at times of
urgency. In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for
the Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties to
the Company. Moreover, the Company Secretary prepares minutes and
keeps records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are
open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Matters considered and approved by the Board during the Year mainly
related to (i) review of the Company's business; (ii) approval of the 2023
annual results; (i) approval of the 2024 interim results; (iv) appointment
of independent non-executive Directors; (v) establishment of an
environmental, social and governance committee of the Company (“ESG
Committee”) in place of the compliance committee of the Company; (vi)
continuing connected transactions; (vii) amendments to share award plan;
and (viii) review the connected transaction in relation to the subscription
of shares under specific mandate and the application for whitewash
waiver.

The Directors have complied with the code provision of the CG Code
for the convening of Board meetings which requires Board meetings to
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
and held Board meetings for the purpose of reviewing the financial
performance, results of each relevant period, material investments and
other matters of the Company that require resolutions of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the chairman of the Board held
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of the other Directors.

Mr. Mei Xianzhi is the Chairman of the Board, and Mr. Zhan Huafeng is
the Executive President of the Company. The responsibilities between the
chairman of the Board and chief executive are clearly divided to ensure a
balance of power and authority and to reinforce their independence and
accountability.

The chairman of the Board, is responsible for leading the Board
and ensuring that the Board functions effectively and performs its
responsibilities, that Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable and that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The
chairman also encourages Directors to actively participate in, and to make
full contribution to, the Board’s affairs so that the Board can act in the
best interest of the Company.

The Executive President is responsible for the daily operations of the
Company, execution of business policies, strategies, objectives and plans
as formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the management of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which are also included in the terms of
reference of the Board.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance with and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company issue circulars or guidance notes to
Directors and senior management where appropriate to ensure awareness
of best corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors were committed to complying with the
code provision C.1.4 on Directors’ training. The Company provided
training by sending out reading materials with an appropriate emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company’s director, including
the Issuer’s Annual Report Review Report and Annual Report Preparation
Guidelines publications by the Stock Exchange, the “Consultation
Conclusions on the Review of the Corporate Governance Code and
Related Listing Rules Provisions” publications, the issuer’'s ESG disclosure
practices, directors’ guidelines on writing annual report business reviews,
corporate governance communications, the “Consultation Conclusions
on Proposals to Further Expand the Paperless Listing Regime and Other
Listing Rules Amendments” publications, updates to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Code” frequently asked questions
to reflect new climate-related disclosure requirements, etc. Directors
provided a record of training they received for the Year to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development (Continued)
A summary of training received by the Directors during the Year is set out
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as follows:
Name of Director Training
EEnE 23
Executive Director
BITESE
Zhan Huafeng v
EER
Non-executive Directors:
FHTES
Mei Xianzhi v
&
Liu Jiancheng v
Elf=994
Tam Wing Tim v
Zhang Xizheng v
SRERIK
Zhang Menggui, Morgan v
SRETE
Jiang Bing Hua (resigned on 22 March 2024) v
BEREMR_Z-_WF=A=+=HEM
Wang Jianzhong (resigned on 5 July 2024) v
IR (R_T-MF+ARAFME)
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Zou Zhendong v
BIRR
Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024) (4
RERZZTZNF=A=-+-_HAEZF)
Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024) 4
HRER(R-TZNF=A=+tAEEE)
Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024) v
RERMN_TZ_MF=A =+ =HEME)
Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (resigned on 5 July 2024) v

BRBRE (NS _ME+ A 7 BT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Attendance of Meetings

Details of attendance of meetings of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee (Each the "“Audit
Committee”, “Remuneration Committee” and “Nomination Committee”)
and ESG Committee and the general meetings of the Company held
during the Year by the Directors are set out as follows:

BEE2%)
ESHESENER

RAFE  BERHEARFMBTNESRS  BX
ZBe FHEZEE RAZER(RAERIERZ
Bgl [FHZEgIMRRZEBR)RE e

RERZBRURBRRRGHBERNAT

Audit Remuneration Nomination ESG General
Name of Director Board  Committee Committee Committee ~ Committee Meeting
BE HE
B ) RE k&R
EEns =g ZE® ZE® ZE® ZE® REKXE
Executive Director
HTES
Zhan Huafeng (appointed as chairman of 5/5 N/A 212 1”1 171 1”1
the ESG Committee on 23 January 2024)
EEER_Z-_NE-A-T=BEZEA NER
BE HERELZEEER)
Non-executive Directors
FHiTES
Mei Xianzhi 5/5 N/A N/A 11 N/A 11
1§55 NiER NiER TiER
Liu Jiancheng 3/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 17
E:ll=374 NER NER NiER TER
Tam Wing Tim 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1
EEA TEA NER NER TEA
Zhang Xizheng 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
SRERI TEA TER TERA TEA
Zhang Menggui, Morgan 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
REE TER TER TER NiEm
Jiang Bing Hua (resigned on 22 March 2024) 212 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
BREMR_Z-_NF=A=-+=AH#FD) NiER NiER NER TEA
Wang Jianzhong (resigned on 5 July 2024) 1/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
FRAMRZZ-NFL AT AEHE) TEH NER NER TEM
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Attendance of Meetings (Continued)

Name of Director

B

Board

Audit
Committee

ZE8
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Remuneration
Committee

ZE8

Nomination ESG General
Committee  Committee Meeting
BE HE
RA RER
E3 - ZEg RERXE

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Zou Zhendong (appointed as a member of
the ESG Committee on 23 January 2024)

PERA-_Z-_MF—A=1=H
BZAERER HERERZEEKE)

Zhang Zhen (appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, and members of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and
ESG Committee on 22 March 2024)

REW-_Z-_NF=A-1+_-_REZ{T
RBUINIES  BHREES
PMZEE  REZBERRE -
HERERZEEKE)

Xue Jianzhong (appointed as an
independent non-executive Director,
and members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee,

Nomination Committee and

ESG Committee on 22 March 2024

and chairman of the Audit Committee on
5 July 2024)

ERPM_E-NE=A-+-REZ
ERBUFNTES  BEREEE
PMZEEE  REZEQRBE  #E
RERZEBKE WRZT_NF
T AAREZEREREECER)

5/5

3/3

3/3

3/3

1”1

171

2/2

1”1

171

171 71 171

N/A il 1”71

N/A 71 171
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) BEEgn)
Directors’ Attendance of Meetings (Continued)

ESHEERNER®E

Audit Remuneration Nomination ESG General
Name of Director Board  Committee Committee Committee  Committee Meeting
BRE - #E
B 4] RE kER
Espg g8 ZEE® Z88 Z88 Z88 BRRAE
Chen Weidong (resigned as an 112 112 0/1 0/1 N/A N/A
independent non-executive Director, and
ceased to be members of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee on
22 March 2024)
RERM-_Z-ME=A=-+-HEf TEA TER

B TES  UIAEREEREZEES
REZEGRFMEESKE)

Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (appointed as a member 33 212 171
of the ESG Committee on 23 January 2024)
(resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and members of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and ESG Committee on
5 July 2024)

BREMR-Z-_MNE—A —1+= BEZER
BE - HERERZEEEKE)
(ZEZWF+ AT BBHEBL T
52 UIAEREEERZEEERK
REZEE FMREGRFRE #Hak

ERREEKE)

1”1
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ching Fan KOO has been engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. The primary contact person of the Company with Ms. Koo
is Mr. Wu Wei, the Secretary to the Board, or his delegates. Ms. Koo
attended no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the Year in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 October 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Currently,
it comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou
Zhendong (chairman), Ms. Zhang Zhen, Mr. Xue Jianzhong, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Zhan Huafeng.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee mainly include
making recommendation of the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind, pension
rights and remuneration payments (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment), and
making recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The remuneration of each Director is determined
with reference to the Director’s experience, qualification, duties,
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate. The Remuneration
Committee will consider and give due regard to both the performance
levels of, and a fair reward for, the chairman, executive Director(s) and
the senior management and to the interest of all the shareholders of the
Company in light of the financial and commercial circumstances of the
Company from time to time. No Director shall be involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also made
recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, and to review
and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
and proposed to consider the remuneration packages of the executive
Director, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors and approve the terms of Directors’ service contracts or
appointment letters. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
reported the findings and provided recommendations to the Board after
the meetings. The Remuneration Committee also assessed and considered
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
and considered that no share award/option was to be granted during the
Year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision

FMEEES®)
EEMEFBHINGAMEMEN T o Boh -
BIETAEXEE1SE  BE-S-mNE+-A=

E.1.5, the annual remuneration of members of the senior management +—HIFFE @ SREEABFEME S RN
by band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below: N
Number of
Remuneration band (US$) individuals
&5 & (ET) A
Less than 100,000 0
4#4100,000
100,000 to 200,000 2
100,000%200,000
200,001 to 300,000 3
200,001 %300,000
300,001 to 400,000 2
300,0012400,000
400,001 to 500,000 0

400,001%500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 5 June 2009 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises
a majority of independent non-executive Directors. Currently, the
members of the committee were Mr. Mei Xianzhi (chairman), a non-
executive Director, Mr. Zhan Huafeng, an executive Director and, Mr. Zou
Zhendong, Ms. Zhang Zhen and Mr. Xue Jianzhong, each an independent
non-executive Director.

The Company has adopted a policy concerning the diversity of Board
members. In determining the Board composition and selecting candidates
for the Board, the Company considers a range of elements, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments of the
Board are made based on merit and objective standards while fully taking
account of the benefits of a diverse Board. No single-gender Board is
allowed. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
diversity policy, as appropriate, or at least on an annual basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The selection of candidate will be based on a range of diversity
elements. The final decision will be made according to the strengths of
the candidate and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board.
In accordance with the Company’s nomination policy, it shall identify
suitable individuals qualified to become Board members through a
number of established channels including internal referral, open sourcing
and recruitment agencies and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
and assess the independence of independent non-Executive Directors.
In selecting new Directors or filling casual vacancies, the Nomination
Committee will consider the candidate’s professional qualification and
skill, integrity and reputation, achievement and experience in the industry
in which the Company operates, as well as his time commitment.

Measurable objective that the Board set for implementing the diversity
policy is that at least one Director should be female. As at the date of this
report, this measurable object has been fulfilled. The Board comprises
nine Directors, of which three are independent non-executive Directors
and five are non-executive Directors, which enables critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity whether in terms of gender, nationality, professional
background or skills. The female representation is respectively about
11.1% at Board level and about 18.2% at workforce level (including
the senior management), which is considered to be reasonable within
the industry in which the Group operates. The Board is mindful of the
objectives for the factors as set out in the diversity policy for assessing
the candidacy of the Board members and will ensure that any successors
to the Board shall follow the diversity policy. Similar considerations will
also be in place to assess the candidacy of the senior management team
from time to time. The Group is determined to maintain gender diversity
and equality in terms of the whole workforce, and to procure the senior
management team to achieve gender equality in terms of the gender
ratio. The Nomination Committee will discuss periodically and when
necessary, agree on further measurable objectives and plans for achieving
diversity, including gender diversity, on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption. The nomination committee will review
annually the need for achieving higher gender diversity in the Board and
the workforce where necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review
and discuss the appointment of independent non-executive Directors, and
made recommendations to the Board. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee reported the findings and provided recommendations to the
Board after the meetings.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee, mainly include
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors,
identifying suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the Board
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board in respect
of such candidates and/or the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and monitoring the implementation of the Board diversity policy and
the nomination policy. Before an appointment is made, the Nomination
Committee evaluates the candidates or existing Director’s skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and prepares a description of the
role and capabilities required for a particular appointment based on its
evaluation. If deemed appropriate, external consultants may be engaged
to identify suitable candidates. After identifying a suitable candidate, the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be submitted
to the Board for assessment.

ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee was established on 23 January 2024 with written
terms of reference. The composition of the Committee shall comply with
the requirements of the Listing Rules from time to time. It comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Zhan Huafeng (Executive President), three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou Zhengdong, Ms.
Zhang Zhen and Mr. Xue Jianzhong.

The ESG Committee is mainly responsible for: (i) reviewing, developing
and guiding the Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
vision, goals, strategies and structure and making recommendations
to the Board on ESG matters, strategies and structure; (ii) identifying,
determining and assessing the key trends in corporate ESG and the risks
and opportunities related to ESG and report to the Board in this regard,
if applicable; (iii) reviewing and assessing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the relevant framework of ESG matters, and reviewing and monitoring
the Group’s ESG policies and practises to ensure compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (iv) establishing risk management and
internal control systems, such as ESG policies and programmes, to
manage and mitigate ESG risks; (v) monitoring the channels and methods
of communication with the Group and its stakeholders, and considering
the impact of the Group’s ESG issues on stakeholders, so as to ensure
effective communication and relationship with stakeholders; and (vi)
reviewing the ESG reports and make recommendations to the Board for
approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. To ensure on-going
compliance with the CG Code, the Audit Committee’s terms of reference
takes into account the Board's responsibility to review the adequacy of
financial reporting staff and oversee the Audit Committee. According to
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee currently comprises
a minimum of three members with a majority of independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xue Jianzhong (chairman), Mr. Zou
Zhendong and Ms. Zhang Zhen, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one member having the appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The main roles and functions of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for accounting and financial reporting, compliance
officer or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed, fees and terms of engagement, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; and

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to consider
and review the interim and annual results of the Company, discuss the
risk management and internal control system with the management,
discuss the audit plan and strategy, discuss compliance with applicable
accounting standards and requirements and ensure adequate disclosure
and recommend to the Board the appointment of new auditors. The
Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice to discuss the audit
plan and scope and identified significant risks and other areas of focus to
be addressed by the external auditor.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditor.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. The Directors must ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 153 to 162 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing non-audit functions
(if any) performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on
the Company. During the Year, the Company paid an aggregate of
approximately US$306,000 (2023: US$306,000) and US$Nil (2023:
USS$Nil) to the external auditor for its audit services and non-audit
services, respectively.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF
BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, ASSET, ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND FINANCE

The Company has an independent and complete business system and
has the capacity for independent operation in the market. The Company
is independent from its substantial shareholders in respect of its
business, personnel, asset, organisational structure and finance, and they
independently proceed with audit and assume the responsibilities and
risks.

(1) Business: The production system, purchase system, auxiliary
production system and sale system of the Company are independent.
The Company owns the intangible assets such as industrial property,
trademark, non-patent technology independently.

(2) Personnel: The labour, personnel and salary management
institutions of the Company are independent and the system is
complete. All of the Company'’s staff and senior management are
paid by the Company.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF
BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, ASSET, ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND FINANCE (continued)

3)

Assets: The property rights between the Company and the
substantial shareholders are clearly delineated, with complete
procedures. The property rights are managed by the Company
independently. The substantial shareholders do not occupy or
govern the assets of the Company nor interfere in its operation
management of the assets.

Organisational structure: The Board, the ESG Committee and other
internal institutions of the Company are complete and operate
independently. The substantial shareholders perform their rights
according to the law and assume the corresponding obligations
without directly or indirectly interfering with the business activities
of the Company by overstepping the general meeting.

Finance: The finance department, financial accounting system,
financial management system and bank account of the Company
are independent and the Company pays taxes independently.

During the reporting period and as at date of this annual report, the
Company has not provided undisclosed information to the substantial
shareholders and the de facto controllers, and there were no other non-
compliance governance issues.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be reviewed
annually by the Board:

o At least one-third of the Board are independent non-executive
Directors in compliance with the Listing Rules requirements, and the
Company will assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors on at least an annual basis.

e The Nomination Committee will assess the independence of a
candidate who is nominated to be a new independent non-executive
Director before appointment and the continued independence
of the current long-serving independent non-executive Directors
on an annual basis. All independent non-executive Directors are
required to submit a written confirmation to the Company annually
to confirm the independence of each of them and their immediate
family members, and their compliance with the requirements as set
out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

e All Directors and committees of the Board are entitled to retain
independent professional advisors as and when it is required.

o All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and
candid manner during the Board/Board committee meetings.

e The chairman of the Board will meet with the independent non-
executive Directors at least annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

. A Director (including independent non-executive Director) who has
material interest in any contract, transaction or arrangement shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving the same.

o No equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements
has been granted to independent non-executive Directors.

The Board would review the implementation and effectiveness of the
above mechanisms on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness at least annually. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board, through the established internal audit function, conducts
annual reviews on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control management, and promotes the coordination of risk
control and supervision functions such as audit and compliance, as well
as the resources of the Company’s financial and accounting reporting
departments and ESG working group, in accordance with the applicable
legal requirements and other risk management and internal control
supervision and inspection requirements. The reviews include evaluation
methods of the Company’s qualifications and experience, as well as staff
training and management budget. The Board considers the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Year.

During the Year, the Company implemented internal supervision and
inspection procedures and measures. Adhering to the orientation of
service strategy, risk prevention, compliance promotion and quality and
efficiency improvement, the Company improved the work process and
management system by optimising the risk and internal control system
based on risk assessment and problem identification, strengthened the
closed-loop management of risk resolution and internal control defect
identification and rectification, and deepened the integration of risk
control and business operation to create a comprehensive, full-staff, full-
process and full-system risk control management model to support the
steady, healthy and sustainable development of the Group.

With respect to internal control for the handling and dissemination of
inside information, the Company shall assess the circumstances under
which inside information may arise from time to time and disclose inside
information as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with the
SFO and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its business affairs
with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission and imposes a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information
by Directors, employees and other relevant persons (such as external
service providers and project working team members).
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Group has continued to strengthen its corruption management
and integrity risk prevention and control system by giving priority to six
key areas, namely overseas anti-corruption, personnel management,
investment decision-making, capital control, tendering and procurement,
and project operation. The Company comprehensively identified integrity
risks in key aspects, analysed potential risks, eliminated management
loopholes, and established corresponding policies and systems, including
the Code of Business Conduct and Staff Handbook, which contain
provisions prohibiting bribery, illegal transactions, misappropriation of
public funds, corruption and fraud.

The Group developed a whistleblowing policy to encourage and provide
a well-defined and accessible channel to stakeholders (i.e. both internal
and external) of the Group, including those who deal with the Group, to
raise concerns over any unlawful conduct, financial malpractice and/or
other wrongdoings. During the reporting period, there was no reported
incident pertaining to whistleblowing. The Group has set up a complaint
and reporting column on the official website. Employees or any other
persons may report suspected matters of wrongdoing affecting the Group
to the executive Director via the following email: ir@cm-energy.com.
Other reporting channels including handphone and postal address are
also included within the whistleblowing policy.

Major Risk Identified

Industry risk: Although the global economy slows down, the oil and
offshore markets are showing signs of recovery, however, there are no
orders for the new platform for the time being as the market supply and
demand are still restructuring, and orders for wind turbine installation
vessels have already completed. In view of this, the Company will
proactively move towards new energy business and expand its presence
to hydrogen and hydrogen-based fuel business, so as to follow the
market trend, hedge against the strong cyclical business and seek further
development in the future.

Government policy risk: The oil and gas industry as well as the new
energy industry are among the industries of concern in the “14th Five-
Year Plan” of the PRC government. The development of the Company
will be affected by the direction of relevant policies.

Operational risk: As stated in this annual report, the Company is
dependent on a few customers. If the Company fails to secure new
contracts from such customers, the Company’s operating results will be
affected significantly. In light of the above, the Company has established
certain level of alliance with these customers to maintain long term
relationships and to enhance the Company’s future development.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024

BREERAIPERE &

AEBFBEMRBIABMEZRARMITE AR
®EMEINRE ABEE RERK BTE
7 BERE  BEEENEEHRE  REER
RET - 2EAMBHERZRARE  ITERES
BEERRF - BYBEERBRENGE - BEEET
REJRBETFM  EPHABRLHE  JFER
5~ MARK - BREMFERTE -

REERNERICRFEI BAEENFHE BRI
RONER) - BiEEAEEENRE  RE—(FEHEAFE
ENEE  UREMEETE  UBEER (A
MTETARLRE - RI|EHAN - NEBEWEE
RAEMBERKHEEANEMS - REBEHEM EF
WFRBHER - B TRTMEMATHAEBBMN
TETFBHARTESREFZEAEENRUTE
17/ © ir@cm-energy.com o E A ERIRE BB FEFH
K@t TR A SRR ISR o

Eb 2 EEmE
TTRER  2REERZRNE - AamEMETH

SERTSAR BEaRMERFINERSE
oEENEYARE  RERKMITECEAR
B ARE ARRSRGEIAEIRER - M
BEERQEMRES - JERETISERBE - 19
SRBHIMERTY  SRRKEEHE -

BAFERER - BYRAMERARITEMIERTT
ERTFEBAI+EAIRENEETRZ— - AR
AMERGZIERBRT AN E -

BEE L - MAFRATE - ARBEBELBER ©
WARRRERZEELPHESH AL ARFALKL
BREBRIEATE -ERULER - AAFE
HZEEFPRYATREENBRE  URSRABE
NERF AR RHRFER ©



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Maijor Risk Identified (Continued)

Currency risk: As an international company, the Company signs certain
sales contracts in US dollar while production costs are denominated in
Renminbi as its major production center is located in Mainland China,
therefore fluctuations in the Renminbi exchange rate may result in
currency risk. Given the nature of our business, the Company will use
more domestic bank borrowings in order to mitigate its currency risk.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors. The chairman of the
Board as well as the chairmen of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence and where applicable other members of
the respective committees together with the external auditor are available
to answer questions at the general meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships
with its investors. Designated Directors or senior management maintain
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website http://www.cm-energy.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s business development and operations,
financial information and other information are posted.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy on an annual basis. The Board
considers that such policy remains effective in enhancing timely,
transparent and open communication between the Company and the
shareholders and has been properly implemented given the multiple
channels of communication in place.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Annual reports and interim reports offer comprehensive information
to the shareholders on operational and financial performance whereas
annual general meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board. The general meetings of the
Company provide an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. The chairman of the Board and Board
members of the Company attended the general meeting held on 17 May
2024 to answer questions.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the
re-election of the retiring Directors.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted by show of hands. As
such, all the resolutions set out in the notices of the general meeting
will be voted by poll and the procedures for conducting a poll shall be
explained at the general meeting. Representatives of the share registrar
of the Company will be appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count
the poll votes cast at each general meeting. The results of poll will be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as “the requisitionist(s)”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Save for the following, shareholders do not generally have a right
to propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures set out
in the paragraph headed “Procedure for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting” above.

Where notice of a general meeting includes the election of Directors, any
shareholder of the Company may propose the election of any person as
a director of the Company at the general meeting. Pursuant to Article 88
of the Articles of Association, if a shareholder wishes to propose a person
other than a retiring Director for election as a director of the Company
at any general meeting (including the annual general meeting), the
shareholder should lodge a written notice (the “Nomination Notice”) at
the Hong Kong branch share registrar or the head office of the Company
at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the general meeting of
election but no earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election. The Nomination Notice
must be accompanied by a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected as a director of the Company and
such notice must also state the proposed person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD (continued)

Shareholders who put forward proposals at general meetings or wish
to make inquiries to the Board about the Company may contact the
head office in Hong Kong and/or the Hong Kong share registrar of the
Company:

Head office in Hong Kong: 3/F, Office Building,

No. 1=7 Sai Tso Wan Road, Tsing Yi Island,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Hong Kong branch
share registrar:

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established various communication channels with
investors to provide updates on the latest business development and
financial performance to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
ensure equal dissemination of information.

The Company has always adopted a positive attitude in communicating
with investors, the media and potential investors to increase the
Company’s brand recognition, strengthen investors’ understanding
and recognition of the Company, and ultimately realise the increase in
shareholders’ value.

The communication methods adopted by the Company include, but are
not limited to:

o Annual and interim reports and online annual report

o Annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting
o Investors’ Roadshow

. Announcements, press releases and circulars

e Voluntary announcements

o Media Press Conference

o Investors’ Conference

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Industry analyst communication: The Company encourages analysts
to publish their analysis reports actively to help investors evaluate the
Company and its development opportunities and challenges.

Investor Relations Email: ir@cm-energy.com

The Company’s website: http://www.cm-energy.com, which is the
Company’s main medium of marketing promotion media, displays
comprehensively the information about the business and activities of CM
Energy.

Social Media: The Company also has a WeChat official account, on which
it publishes company news, industry news, short films, photos and major
events.

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The second amended and restated articles of association of the Company
have been adopted by way of a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2024 (“AGM"). For
details of the amendments, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 March 2024, the circular dated 19 April 2024, and
the announcement on the poll results of the AGM dated 17 May 2024.
An up-to-date version of the second amended and restated articles of
association is available on the Company’s website at www.cm-energy.com
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “ESG Report”), which
comprehensively outlines the Group’s positive performance in terms
of environmental, social and governance, fully demonstrating our firm
commitment to creating a long-term sustainable and green development
of the Company.

The Board of the Company has always regarded ESG as a cornerstone for
the realization of the Company’s sustainable development. To this end,
we have comprehensively incorporated ESG into the Company'’s strategy
and operation, and have not only strengthened the Board’s supervision
and management of ESG, but also continued to improve and optimize
the ESG governance system to ensure the effective control of ESG risks.

The Group is committed to becoming an outstanding corporate citizen
in all regions of the world in which it operates. We deeply recognize that
a high level of social responsibility and a strong sense of environmental
sustainable development are keys to the continued growth and success
of our business. We are firmly committed to the concept of sustainable
development and attach great importance to ESG governance. Based
on the scientific and professional ESG governance structure and
comprehensive management system, we have continuously strengthened
the participation of the Board and endeavored to continuously improve
the level and performance of ESG governance, so as to promote the
comprehensive and in-depth integration of the concept of sustainable
development with our corporate development strategies and operational
decisions.

In order to achieve a balance between the environmental and
social impacts and the business objectives of the Group, we have
carefully formulated effective strategies. The Group has formulated
a comprehensive ESG development strategy, ensuring that the Board
conducts regular assessment and review of the data required for ESG risks
and in-depth discussions to review the relevant strategies and measures.
The aim is to accurately assess the impact of different ESG scenarios on
the Company’s financial position and ensure a high degree of alignment
with the development strategies of the Group.

As responsible corporate citizens, we take ESG as an important guide
and insist on being driven by customers’ needs. While highly emphasizing
on product research and development, we provide customers with high-
quality new energy equipment-related products and services, and jointly
promote the sustainable development of green energy, which not only
embodies our corporate social responsibility, but also earns us the trust
and support from our customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD (Continued)

With the unremitting efforts of the management and all employees,
the Group is willing to work hand in hand with customers, suppliers,
investors, partners and other stakeholders. We are moving towards
our goal of becoming a leading technology-based new energy
enterprise and continue to create more value for all stakeholders. We
are firmly committed to the path of long-term sustainable high-quality
development, and we believe that by working together, we will realize a
brighter future.

This report has been reviewed and approved by the Board on 26 March
2025. The Board accepts full responsibility for this ESG Report.
Mei Xianzhi

Chairman

26 March 2025
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B - HERERERE

ESG PERFORMANCE IN 2024

In 2024, the ESG management system of CM Energy has been gradually
upgraded and improved, and it has continued to be guided by its ESG
objectives and has been deeply engaged in ESG practice to achieve
continuous breakthrough in ESG performance.

ESG AWARDS AND RATING

On 31 May 2024, CM Energy was awarded the “Exemplary Innovation
Contribution TOP10" in the “2024 Green ESG List Exemplary Cases”
in the 7th Annual Conference for China Energy Industry Development,
based on its outstanding technological innovation strength and positive
contribution in leading the industry’s green transformation and promoting
zero-carbon emission, which gained wide attention and recognition from

the market.
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Certificate of Exemplary Innovation Contribution TOP10

In 2024, the ESG rating of CM Energy in Wind was upgraded from “BBB”
to “A". The upgraded rating also reflects the continuous improvement
and enhancement in sustainable development management, compliance,
product quality, production safety and customer service. The Company
will persistently incorporate ESG issues into its daily operation, and
actively draw on the successful experience of its domestic, foreign
and industry peers to continuously optimize its corporate governance
and code of conduct, so as to ensure that the Company will continue
to enhance its ESG management level and promote the Company’s
sustainable development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG PERFORMANCE IN 2024 (continued)

Wind ESC
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AWARDS AND HONORS

On 6 December 2024, CM Energy was awarded the “Excellent High-
end Manufacturing Enterprise of the Year” in the 6th “Golden Award”
organized by Shenzhen Gelonghui, the outstanding product performance
and green and intelligent manufacturing capability of which was fully
recognized.
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B - HERERERE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report published by CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. (the “"Company” or
the “Company”), together with its members, the “Group”, "CM
Energy” or “we"”. The report has been compiled based on the principles
of materiality, quantification, balance and consistency, provides
comprehensive elaboration on the Group’s policies, measures and
performance in relation to each of the key ESG issues, and discusses
issues of stakeholders’ concerns as well as the Group’s sustainability
efforts.

STANDARDS OF THE REPORT

The content of this Report was compiled in accordance with the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG
Report Guideline”) as set out in Appendix C2 to the Main Board Listing
Rules of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), as well as the actual
conditions of the Group.

This Report is published annually in each financial year together with the
annual report of the Company for the year.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The reporting period starts from 1 January 2024 and ends on 31
December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”). The report fully elaborated on
the progress and performance on the ESG of the Group.

The members included in this report are consistent with those in 2023.
This report covers the main production and operating activities of
four members that the Group deems significant, namely Qingdao TSC
Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd., TSC Oil and Gas Services Group Holdings
Ltd., TSC-HHCT (Xian) Control Technologies Limited and Zhengzhou TSC
Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd.

Looking ahead, the Group will review the scope of our report regularly
and gradually expand the scope of disclosure based on the principle of
materiality to provide more comprehensive information to stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, adhering to the four principles of materiality,
quantification, balance and consistency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

PRINCIPLE OF MATERIALITY

Regular research and evaluation are conducted from two dimensions of
both the internal and external stakeholders of the Company to identify
key environmental, social and governance issues other than those related
to the Company’s sustainable development, ensuring that such issues are
reflected in our report.

PRINCIPLE OF QUANTIFICATION

The Company conducts quantitative management on key environmental,
social and governance issues covering governance, safety, climate change,
environment, employees and society.

PRINCIPLE OF BALANCE

This report seeks to provide a comprehensive and objective disclosure of
the Company’s ESG efforts and performance during the Reporting Period
and avoids disclosures that may inappropriately influence stakeholders’
decisions or judgment.

PRINCIPLE OF CONSISTENCY

This report follows the principle of consistency to ensure comparability of
data disclosed in previous years. In 2024, the contents and data disclosed
in this report, as well as the statistical methods and calibrations used,
are consistent with those of previous years. If there are any changes that
may affect the meaningful comparison with previous years’ reports, those
changes will be explained in the corresponding places.
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B - HERERERE

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company attaches great importance to sustainable development
management and integrates the concept of sustainable development into
its business operation and management process. Meanwhile, the Board
also deeply recognizes that ESG is a key element in promoting sustainable
development of enterprises and that excellent ESG governance will be
conducive to the smooth implementation of the Company’s sustainable
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development strategies. The ESG governance structure of the Group CZARBUIERTEFENNIERE g RER
has the Board as the supreme controlling authority, and the Group VIR HERERZEGEERS - BIE
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established the ESG Committee in 2024, chaired by an executive director AJES
THETTEE - BHEMESE -

and comprising three independent non-executive directors, which is
responsible for reviewing and formulating the ESG vision, objectives,
strategies and structure of the Company, as well as supervising, managing
and guiding ESG-related matters.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF CM ENERGY EHRIRESCRERE

Board

EEg

Remuneration Nomination Environmental, Social and Audit
Committee Committee Governance Committee Committee
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ESG leading group
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ESG working group
ESGIT{E/ )\
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (continued)
ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF CM ENERGY (Continued)

Responsible subjects
EEEXE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - -HERERERE

ERaRBE@®
EHARESCIRERB ()

Major duties

TERE

The Board
(decision-making)
EEE

(RZE)

Environmental, Social
and Governance
Committee
(supervision)

R HEREREZEES

(E8)

The highest decision-making authority for ESG affairs of the Company, fully responsible for the
Company’s ESG work;

NAESGEBHZRAKEE - 2 HAEARESGTIE

Considers the Company’s ESG development strategies and objectives, considers ESG-related
matters, and ensures that the Company’s operating activities are in line with the Company’s
strategic plans;

FEZNAESGERMMNE R FRESGHEBEE - BRARNKLFDHTE QA RIHBER
2l

Approves the annual ESG report of the Company.

BEH AR FEESGRE °

Reviews, develops and guides the Group’s environmental, social and governance vision,
objectives, strategy and framework and makes recommendations to the Board on relevant ESG
issues, strategy and framework;

wat o BETRIEEAKRERE g RERMS - BR KR
MREERESSRERS

Identifies, determines and evaluates major corporate ESG trends and related ESG risks and
opportunities and, where applicable, reports to the Board thereon;

HH - BEMHAREESGEEBE U REHESGRAR RS - AR (ER) MILREZSIE
HE#R

Reviews and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of ESG related structures, as well as
reviews and monitors the Group’s ESG policies and practices to ensure compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

Et RAHMEESGHEBRE RS B R AR - Winstf RERARNEB ZESGRE RFE# - AR
BERREERE

Establishes risk management and internal control system, such as ESG policies and plans, to
manage and mitigate environmental, social and governance risks;

B RBEEMAIELGIE - ESGEBURMA R - MEBMFRERE - (g RERRK
Monitors the Group’s communication channels and methods with its stakeholders, and considers
the impact of the Group’s ESG matters on stakeholders to ensure that effective communication
and relationships with stakeholders are maintained;

ERAKEEARMHENBREERTN  FRAKEERR HERERFEEFHENT
- DERER D E R UOERRBER

Reviews the ESG report and makes recommendations to the Board for approval.
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B - HERERERE

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (continued) ERER®
ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF CM ENERGY (Continued) EFRRESCHRIEEE (&)

Responsible subjects Major duties

ExExE FTERE

ESG leading group e Formulates ESG management strategies, objectives and implementation plans and submits them
(execution) to the Board of Directors for consideration;

ESGHE/NE o FIFESGEERE - BIENER:E  EXEEGER

(#1197) e Executes the resolutions of the Board of Directors, manages and supervises the ESG governance

of the Company, and ensures that the relevant strategies, objectives and management policies
are implemented;

o HITEFERZE  HAFESGRIBENETEEMEY - BRAEFEERE  BEENEBREEE
BIfL

e Reviews ESG-related reports and management proposals submitted by the ESG working group to
continuously improve the Company’s ESG governance.

o BRESGI{E/MARRWESGHEMMEMEIR TIFRE - FHENEAFESGERE -

ESG working group e The Board Office is responsible for assisting in ESG-related daily affairs, coordinating various

(execution) functional departments to launch ESG-related daily management, and organizing the compilation

ESGI /N of ESG reports;

(#17) o EFRENAEZBEMBERESGHEMREEY - BHEXBEMPIFRESGHEMBETEER - A%
IRBESGHE

e Each functional department is responsible for ESG-related work within its own scope and the
implementation of relevant policies and measures in accordance with the ESG work breakdown
targets;

o FBAHPHRRESGIIENMR AR - AE X B HENESGIEM LIE - SEEHABERMEE

e Establishes and improves ESG-related supervision and evaluation mechanism, supervises and
evaluates the ESG performance and risks of each subordinate enterprise, identifies problems
and risks in a timely manner, reports to the ESG leading group, and proposes improvement and
optimization opinions;

o BEUMTEESGIHEEMATMME - HX TEEENESGRE A EITEE MM, - ki
HHMBEMAR - MESGES/NMAER - WiRESCEMELER

e Executes and implements the requirements of the Company’s ESG governance work, and
promotes the progress of ESG work and objectives;

o HITMEBRAESGARETIEENR - HEESGTIERIHHERBR

e Organizes data collection and compilation of ESG reports and ESG disclosures.

o ABESGHREMBERRERFRETIE  URESGHEETIE -

In 2024, the Board actively fulfilled its duties and participated in the —“ZE-NFEHSEHEBETIERS  FEL2HED
Company’s ESG work, considered the Company’s ESG development — RIESGT{E + FE A RIESGE R BRI B 2 R HE =
strategies and objectives and related matters, to ensure the effective 18 * UERE QA RIESGREBHEN B B HEE -
tracking and supervision of the Company’s ESG issues. The Board ZEEYEHFWIBE T2024FFIRE L@ RERR
considered and approved the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance %

Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has long been emphasizing the importance of establishing
effective communication and cooperation with various stakeholders,
and continues to develop extensive communication with stakeholders,
including employees, customers, shareholders and investors, suppliers,
community organizations, research institutes, the media and
governmental authorities, through various channels. To fully understand
the expectations and concerns of various stakeholders, the Company
adopts a variety of communication channels and methods, including
annual reports, regular meetings, interviews, teleconferences and
surveys. At the same time, the Company also continues to communicate
and interact with various stakeholders through new social media
such as WeChat. Through effective communication and interaction
with stakeholders, the Company further clarifies the expectations and
demands of stakeholders, and converts the relevant demands into
sustainable development actions and solutions, so as to strengthen
its own sustainable development capability and safeguard corporate
development.

Major stakeholders

Major communication methods

FERHE TEEBEEFN

Company’s internal network communications

BE - -HERERERE

FOENSHEREREN

BFHESH
AEBREARERBEF ) ERTE BN EEHR
BERE  BSEBBZERESRKNE  BESR
T BF BEREREE  HER EAS -
THE  RENBTRESRAREZNER - BT
RO THRBEFNENRLEEBY) - RRRAZE
BBREMTE  BREFE®RS THE€H &
# BRGHRARBNE - BERE - ARBREE
BBMBE AR SRR RS0 EET
BEMEE - BBARBSHEFRNBERETS £
— SRR D E N EEFFR - AR RE(
RAFEERTHNSTER  JEMBRE FAHESR
RAENER  RELEHR -

Staff meeting

Employees NCITAEE SR R BIEE
BT Employee activities Staff training
'Y I BIEE B I3
'/ | Y Employee satisfaction survey

BT REERE

Employee visiting Teleconferencing
Customers BEFED BHEEE
EF E-mail Company website and social media
@ BF a1 NSIEENAYSEaoy S
%2 ESG survey

ESGHAE A &

Investors/shareholders

Company website and social media

PNGIEEV Y e o

REE/BRR .
° — Company’s announcements
— NCINGS
Y ESG survey
M= ESGHB %

Meeting and communications
T B

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT
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B - HERERERE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY (Continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Major stakeholders

Major communication methods

BFHRENWSEEEEM @)
BhESHEE)

FEFOE FEBERA
. Regular exchange and communications Assessment on suppliers
Suppliers s ea ey
m TEHAZ A HEmEZ
{/\E% . . .
Official website of suppliers
\“_ HEBE®
ou’ ESG survey
ESGHER S
comggl‘;‘%“ity organizations  Charity activities Irregular meeting and communications
HEA RHEH) FESHEEAR
P o - ESG survey
111 ESGHRZE %
Media Interview and reporting Company website and social media
R Rah RRE DR KA X 1788
C n 0 Investigation and research
: c A
Re::g%\ institutes Company website and social media Visiting
ik AR B R 2H5D
ﬁ Investigation and research Company’s announcement and press release
A NANERFEEM
Government authorities Regular report and declaration Government supervision
BB FEHR A K R 055
ﬁ Company’s announcement and press release Policy consultation
YNCIVNCDSE ik i) BERE A
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY (Continued)

FEEDBACK FROM STAKEHOLDERS

The Group welcomes stakeholders to communicate and interact with us
on ESG policies, initiatives and related issues of concern. Please contact us
at ir@cm-energy.com or +852-3919 6300 for suggestions or comments.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

CM Energy attaches great importance to the identification, evaluation
and disclosure of material issues, and conducts analysis on materiality
issues on a regular basis, comprehensively taking into account domestic
and international sustainability standards and regulations, industry
development trends, capital market concerns and other dimensions, as
well as the actual situation of the business development of the Company.

Step 1: Issue Identification

Through studying and analyzing the requirements and recommendations
of major domestic and foreign sustainable development standards,
industry development trends, sustainable development hotspots, as well
as the Company’s development strategies, we identified 18 materiality
issues that have a significant impact on us and are generally valued by
our stakeholders.

Step 2: Issue Assessment
Through online questionnaires, internal and external stakeholder survey
was conducted to assess the importance of sustainability issues.

Step 3: Issue Analysis and Disclosure

After careful assessment, we have formed a matrix for analyzing the
materiality issues in the 2024 ESG report of CM Energy in terms of two
dimensions of “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to the
development of CM Energy”, and based on the results of the analysis, we
will carry out targeted information disclosure in the report.

BE - -HERERERE

BOENSRERRERME®

HiERE

REBE B & EESGHT &1 « 5 R B8 XAV AR B R
BETEBELY - FEEH Zir@cm-energy.comsi
B+852-3919 6300A K MIRHEEHEXRER -

BEEMFME

ERRRFEFTEREEMZENHE - TEIRE
T SAEREANATFAEZERABREMNR
ETEERBE  BATHSWIESHE &4
RAEBERERNERBER  THHREZEZRED
e

HEE—  EmEES
BRMTESTEAINE B FEERIFEZ KM
BETERRBY  THBRRAMURLAE
RBR - BBIH1SHEASGFEERN FNELE
BERMEREHRE -

= BB
BRESRBERMNTN  HHUKERREED
BEZRERMAANIISBFNEZTERSE -

AE=  HEANTREE

LERETE - RIEBOENEENIFEERmER
EEMNEZHIMESE - EKEREIR20245ESG
BRESSURBOWMERE - WIRESMER - Bt
M TERERETEEEE
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BiR - HERERBRE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY (Continued)
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

BFHRENWSEEEEM @)
BEMFTG )

Materiality Matrix of ESG Issues in 2024

siapjoya»els 01 Ajljeliaien
WEEWRFYHEF

2024 FESGEEEEMEME

@ 9@

HRARBROEEM

Materiality to development of the Company

Materiality Issues BEEMEE
Environment Issues Social Issues Management Issues
RIGHE HERE EREE
1. Waste 6. Employment 13. Governance structure
FEEY) &R AT AETE
2. Energy consumption and greenhouse gases 7. Health and safety 14. Governance mechanism
BERERERERE BEEZ 2 Bl 1]
3. Use of resources 8. Development and training 15. Innovative development
BIR{EM R EIES BT E R
4. Environment management 9. Labor standards 16. Supporting Awards
RIRER £ TR RIEEE
5. Environment opportunities 10. Supply chain management 17. Business ethics
RIEHS HIEEE R [EESEEES
11. Product liability 18. Operation management
EmAE BEER

108
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ESG GOVERNANCE

A

Environmental Protection

The Group always upholds a high sense of social responsibility and
deeply recognizes the importance of environmental protection
to the sustainable development of the enterprise, and has made
environmental management a core component of its corporate
strategy. We have strictly complied with national and local
environmental laws and regulations and established a comprehensive
environmental compliance management system to ensure that our
operating activities comply with the latest environmental protection
requirements. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any serious violations of major environmental laws and
regulations relating to emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gases, pollution of land or water and hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, which had a significant impact on the Group.

In terms of environmental compliance, we have fully complied
with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Protection, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Conservation of Energy Resources, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Noise Pollution, the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Soil Pollution Prevention and other laws and regulations
system. Meanwhile, we have established a dynamic monitoring
mechanism to keep track of policy and regulatory updates in a
timely manner, to ensure that our operations always comply with
the latest environmental requirements.

To enhance our environmental management, we continue to
optimize our environmental management system, strengthen
environmental risk prevention and control, and ensure the effective
implementation of environmental protection measures through
regular environmental compliance audit and employee training.

R

A

BE - -HERERERE

B ek ERaE

RERE

AEBERERBSENLEETR  RARE
IRFREUCEVHEZRNERN - IH
REEEE/RBEBOZOERID o HAF
BAR SRR Rt 7 W RBERER » BT
TENREAREERR  BRELEYNA
RHTHRRENR - RMEHA - ARERAE
THHREERAFRERMAEREHN ML
WHKEBESAREEERETEREMEENIRE
BRER  AHARBEEAYENEEH -

EREARTE  RAI2EETEE(IEA
REAMBRRFREE) - (PEARKNMBE KRR
ARGAE) - (REARKXMBENS R
E)  (REARKXMBEE RS RAMREA
) (PEARKMBESHNERE) - (hE
ARKMBERBISAPAE) - (hEARKM
BRRFENELD)  (PEARAMBELES
RPDAER)FERNERERER - A - K
PIZL T BRE RIS - RERMBRERE
o EREEEHIRRTAERNRREL -

BERFEEKY  BMAFEECREEE
BB MRBRIRERDE - WiBEERRRR
BAEMRBANEBETE - BESERREES
HBEREE -

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEERBERK2025FE B EZ

Goal achieved for the year 2024
2024F E BIRERIE N

Goal for the year 2025
20255 B1F

Goal: Zero environmental violation of laws and regulations Achieved
B RRERZEERHERT BIEK
Zero environmental violation of laws and regulations
REBEFERBERT

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT
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RIE -#HERER

|E

ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

1.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Emission control

Although the Group does not operate in a highly polluting
industry, we deeply recognize that environmental protection
is an important cornerstone for the sustainable development
of the country. As an enterprise with a high sense of social
responsibility, we have always regarded environmental
protection as a core element of our business operations,
actively responded to national policy directions and proactively
assumed the responsibility for environmental protection.

In terms of environmental protection, the Group has
formulated an environmental management direction centered

n “prevention and comprehensive governance”, and fully
implemented the “3R" principles — Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle, and continue to improve resource utilization efficiency
through technological innovation and process optimization
to minimize environmental impact. Meanwhile, we are
committed to promoting green operation and reducing energy
consumption and waste generation at source, so as to achieve
a win-win situation in terms of economic and environmental
benefits.

In addition, the Group attaches great importance to the
important role of our employees in environmental protection.
We have established a smooth communication mechanism,
actively adopted the environmental improvement proposals
put forward by our employees, and recognized and rewarded
those who have made outstanding contributions in the field
of environmental protection. Through this series of initiatives,
we have not only enhanced the environmental awareness
of our employees, but also further raised the awareness of
environmental responsibility among all stakeholders, and
jointly promoted the harmonious coexistence of the enterprise
and the environment.

* Annual Report 2024

A

BIE -dHERERRE®
BB RE R
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PRI

BEAREAEITELFSSREE - &
HIPVRARBIRERERHR A AR
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FREREZEFE  AEEHET MK
(Bl AE - HREREIAZLWNIERE
ERGH 2EEBIBRIRA-AE
{t.(Reduce) + BFI A (Reuse) 1 FH & Ix
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A Environmental Protection (Continued)
1.  Emission control (Continued)
1.1 Reduction of Exhaust Gas Emissions
During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly selected
environmentally friendly materials during the renovation
stage of its office premises and conducted comprehensive
air quality tests before commissioning to ensure
compliance with the national standards. In the course of
operation, we focused on major emission sources such as
paint spraying workshops, shot blasting workshops and
welding workshops and adopted a series of advanced
pollution prevention and control measures:

1. Paint spraying workshop
exhaust treatment:

=t

BE - -HERERERE

5 - HERERRE®
A BiERSE

(#)

1 BERUESI(E)

1.1

B EERBEIK

RNE BT E R QISR
BB ERRAME - WERAMRE
RAETE2ENERE 2800 - #
REGBERZEERAAIMA - £
ERER  BMEHBEIERE
M WhEBMNEZEREETERE
FEERUR - WERI T —RIEER

BRBIAEE

adopting “water curtain + activated carbon + filter cotton” three-stage
filtration system to efficiently remove harmful substances in the exhaust to

ensure that the emission reaches the standard;

EREEERAE

2. Shot blasting workshop
exhaust treatment:

RRAKEGE R+ BRI =ZFURR E 5T
B BRYHOER

Equipped with double purification device of “cloth bag dust removal +
cyclone dust removal”, effectively reducing the emission of particulate

BRERBERTOHEEY

matter, and regularly carrying out inspection on exhaust gas;

WMHERERAE

3. Welding workshop exhaust
treatment:

Tl R E+IERAREILEEF(CRE - BRI EER B - I0F 5
HEITRERROA

installing welding smoke collectors on welding equipment, equipping the
flame cutting machine with a fume treatment system, and using vacuum
cleaner, cutter purifier and other dust removal equipment during the cutting
process to ensure that the exhaust gas meets the emission standards after

treatment.

RIESHERAE :

ERERIN ERRIERRE

W N IAYEI AL BIEEE R IR R 4T - ¥

FBREP A EERERMYEIHF LR FIRERE - MARERLBRE

IRIRZRBER o

In addition, we have set up a comprehensive emission
monitoring mechanism and conduct regular gas emission
tests to ensure that all emission indicators comply with
national and local environmental protection requirements.
Through these measures, we have not only significantly
reduced the impact of our operation on the environment,
but also set an industry benchmark for green production.
In the future, we will continue to explore more efficient
environmental protection technologies to further improve
our environmental management.

besh o BB T e E MR R A
Wl E SRR TTAROA
RARMAMRERTEERRE M
BRREK - BB L BRAT
ERERETELHRANTE
BERERABECEEBITIER
2o KRR BPBEERRERR
MR - - B RARFER
IKF o
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BR - HERERERE

ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)
A Environmental Protection (Continued)

BRE - HERE
A BERED

BIRE )

1.  Emission control (Continued)

1.2 Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
The Group deeply recognizes that greenhouse gas
emissions are one of the major drivers of global
warming, and energy consumption is an important
source of greenhouse gas production. In order to
proactively respond to the challenge of climate change,
we have incorporated carbon emission reduction into
our corporate sustainable development strategies and
adopted a series of systematic measures to effectively
control energy consumption and reduce greenhouse gas
emissions:

Key Control Measures

Travel Management. Reducing non-essential
travel, prioritizing remote collaboration
methods such as online meetings, and reducing
transportation carbon emissions from travel.

Localized Procurement. Prioritizing local suppliers
to shorten transportation distances and reduce
energy consumption and carbon emissions during
the transportation of goods.

Energy conservation equipment and products.
Prioritizing the use of low-energy consumption and
high-efficiency equipment and products to improve
energy efficiency and reducing operational carbon
footprint.

Use of renewable energy. Where conditions
permit, actively utilizing renewable energy sources
such as solar energy and wind energy to reduce
reliance on traditional fossil energy sources.

Supply chain carbon reduction. Promoting the
concept of carbon reduction in the supply chain
and encouraging partners to adopt green practice
to jointly reduce overall carbon emissions.

Advocating low carbon transportation.
Promoting walking, cycling, public transportation
and other low-carbon travel methods, and
encouraging employees to choose environmentally
friendly means of transportation to reduce carbon
emission from transportation.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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BE - -HERERERE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) BIE -dHERERRE®
A Environmental Protection (Continued) A BRERE®
1. Emission control (Continued) 1 HEpiEsl(E)
1.2 Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 1.2 HLBERBGHC)HEM (E)
(Continued)
As a result of the effective implementation of the above BRBALEENEREE - TRE
measures, the following table shows the major GHG TABRERARMEERBENTE
emissions from the place of the Group’s operation, S HMNIAZEEMEAETER
including Qingdao, Zhengzhou and Xi‘an, during the EREVNEAOTE
Reporting Period:
GHG Emission Volume 2024 as compared
GHG Emission Sources Consumption (equivalent of carbon dioxide in tonnes) with 2023
BERRERE ZEIRER
BERROEHR #E (E=SltHEE) —E-=%
Percentage
In 2024 In 2023 In 2024 In 2023 change (%)
—BomE ZBCZE o 1}:3 —BCzZf BIELLE(%)
Scope ! &E
Diesel consumption (litres)’ EmEE (L)
Mobile source ek 2,867 4,575 7.95 12.68 -37.30%
Fixed source il 4,098 2,521 10.72 6.60 62.42%
Gasoline consumption (litres)’ REE (DT
Mobile source RENR 33,197 45,483 89.89 123.16 -27.01%
Total propane consumption (kg)' AR EFEZ(AF)’ 25,600 31,650 77.24 9549 -19.11%
Acetylene consumption (kg)' LRAE(RT)! 730 962 247 325 -24.00%
Carbon dioxide fire extinquisher ~ —&{tIAAERE
consumption (kg) (Bfr) 732 336 0.56 0.26 115.38%
Sub-total' N 188.83 241.44 -21.79%
Scope 2 #E?
Power consumption of HERBAER
manufacturing facilities (kWh)? (T EB)? 3,505,399 4,745,295 1881.00 2,706.24 -30.49%
Sub-total? g 1881.00 2,706.24 -30.49%
Total GHG emissions mEREBOFNAE 2069.83 2,947.68 -29.78%
GHG emission intensity REREHNTE 0.2150 0.2408 -10.71%
(equivalent of carbon
dioxide in tonnes/
US$10,000)
(=& g
EBET)
“E_NFEFR c EEERNRROGERAT
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RIE -#HERER

|E

ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emission control (Continued)

1.2 Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
(Continued)

1.

Scope 1:

Scope 2:

Website:

Refers to gasoline and diesel consumed by motor
vehicles as well as propane, acetylene and diesel
consumed by manufacturing. The conversion
complies with the emission factors for CO2 volume
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange reporting
guidelines.

Refers to electricity purchased from electricity
suppliers. The emission factors used are the latest
available factors: the contents published in the
Announcement on the Release of 2022 Electricity
CO2 Emission Factors.

https://www.mee.gov.cn/xxgk2018/xxgk/
xxgk01/202412/t20241226_1099413.html

Against the backdrop of the Group’s ongoing
diversification strategy and significant adjustment
to its business structure in recent years, with the
proportion of conventional oil and gas drilling,
mainly steel manufacturing, declining year on year
and the proportion of lightweight products, such
as electronic control system, increasing, the Group
has decided to adjust the unit of measurement
of greenhouse gas emission intensity in the ESG
report to the internationally recognized “tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent per US$10,000 of
operating revenue” since the financial year 2024
in order to reflect the effectiveness of its low-
carbon transformation in a more scientific manner.
At the same time, we have specially supplemented
the disclosure of the trend data of the change in
emission intensity from the financial year 2020 to
2024 (please refer to the table below for details), so
as to help investors, partners and other stakeholders
to more accurately assess the Group’s management
efficacy and the progressive results of the carbon
reduction path in the previous year through the
construction of a complete time-series benchmark.
The emission intensity data in the following reports
have been changed to per US$10,000 of revenue.
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A

1.2

BE - -HERERERE

RIE - HE8RERREW
Environmental Protection (Continued) A RERE®H
1. Emission control (Continued) 1+ BERRIESI(E)
Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 1.2 HLBERBEGHC)HEM (E)
(Continued)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Year FE ZBCBF B CZBIZHF ZEBIZF ZBIQRF
GHG emission intensity (equivalent of BREREENZEM =4
carbon dioxide in tonnes/US$10,000) tiREE/BET) 1.0139 0.6010 04117 0.2408 0.2150

The greenhouse gas generated by the Group in the
course of its production operation originates from two
major sources: direct emissions from the consumption of
energy such as gasoline, propane and diesel fuel (Scope
1) and indirect emissions generated in the course of the
use of purchased electricity (Scope 2). The Group has
implemented a series of emission reduction strategies to
address these emission sources. Given that purchased
electricity is a major source of GHG emissions, the Group
places particular emphasis on reducing emissions by
minimizing electricity consumption. To this end, we have
adopted various measures, including the establishment
and optimization of an energy conservation management
system, introduction of advanced energy conservation
equipment and enhancement of energy efficiency
through technological innovation, in order to achieve our
emission reduction targets.

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEERBERR2025FERZ

AEBELEELBETELNR
TEREMAL@E  —
FREIRIBREATE

ERE
R ~ Rk R SR E S
EMEER(EE) - —RINEE
TERBEPEENBEER(EE
2) c STHELENER - ASEEEHE
—/%ﬁlﬁ)ﬂ#%ﬂk o EERINEE S
ERAERBHERNEZRIR A&
@%%é%ﬁki@ﬁd\%ﬁﬁﬁXM
BN - Bt - BRI T 2152
UMTEMMETIRER - S| L#E
RMIENRERR B ~ DA N iR B i Bl 1R
SEEMEZERER - AERRBHE

Z o

Goal achieved

2024 EEIRE
Goal for the year 2025

2025F [E 512

for the year 2024

AP BiF:

Target: 3% reduction in GHG emission intensity indicator
RERBHRBEEE 3%

3% reduction in GHG emission intensity indicator

Achieved
B

REREHRTEEE 3%

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emission control (Continued)

1.

1.3

1.4

Reduction of Wastewater Discharge

The Group’s production processes and technological
procedures do not require significant water consumption
and therefore do not generate industrial wastewater. The
use of recycled water system in the paint spraying waste
gas treatment plant further reduces the consumption
of water resources. Currently, the Group's wastewater
discharge is mainly from daily office activities. To enhance
the efficiency of water resources utilization, the Group
has actively implemented water conservation measures:

e Raising awareness of employees of water
conservation: Putting up water conservation signs
in washrooms, pantries, canteens and dormitories to
constantly remind employees of water conservation

o Upgrading water conservation facilities:
Replacing traditional faucets with automatic sensor
switch faucets to effectively avoid wastage of water
resources and reduce sewage generation.

The Group will continue to pay attention to the
management of water resources and proactively seek
better water conservation solutions to contribute to
environmental protection.

Reduction of Solid Wastes

The Group has always adhered to a stringent
environmental protection management philosophy and is
committed to minimizing the generation of solid waste:

o Enhancing oil management: Through a
comprehensive management system and operational
regulations, the Group effectively prevents leakage
of various types of oil and reduces the generation
of related waste at source.

o Launching lean production: For paints that
are used in smaller quantities, small packages
are adopted to effectively reduce the amount of
hazardous waste, such as waste paint residue and
discarded paint buckets.

o Optimizing production processes: Actively
improving production processes, such as adopting
centrifugal casting technology, to completely
eliminate the emission of asbestos waste and
reduce the impact on the environment.

* Annual Report 2024
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BE - -HERERERE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) RIE - -HERERRE®
A  Environmental Protection (Continued) A RREREE)
1. Emission control (Continued) 1 HEpiEsl(E)
1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued) 1.4 JEEIRBEEY (4E)

During the year, a total of 280.17 tonnes of non- REE - NBERSOEE B K
hazardous waste was generated at the operating sites EE28017HAMEERY) - AEA
covered by this report, the types and distribution of RommTRMAR - BAT - 2%A
which are shown in the table below. Currently, the NEZEEEEVERE - BEhA
major hazardous waste identified includes: waste paint B EHAMKEREDR  2FR
sludge, waste paint drums and waste mineral oil, with a FTEE430.380 ©
cumulative total of 30.38 tonnes generated throughout
the year.

Emission intensity
per US$10,000

Total volume (tonnes) of operating revenue

Type of Waste BEYESR 2 FHE (W) BEERERFEREBE
In 2024 In 2023 In 2024 In 2023

—E-_ME ZZE-= —EBoNE Z—EB-=
Hazardous wastes BEEEY 30.38 19.41 0.0032 0.0016

Non-hazardous wastes EEEZEY

Scrap steel e 8l 204.45 328.51 0.0212 0.0268
Scrap paper cartons REAR R B 7.06 4.81 0.0007 0.0008
Scrap wooden boxes RERBEERE 20.27 17.10 0.0021 0.0024
Domestic wastes A TERIIR 47.89 49.32 0.0049 0.0050

—TomEsR - gEEAREREARAT 117
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

1.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Emission control (Continued)
1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

At the same time, in view of the principle of
consistency, the unit of measurement of greenhouse
gas emission intensity in the ESG report is adjusted to
the internationally recognized “tonnes per US$10,000
of operating revenue” since the financial year 2024 to
better align with the current status of the Company's
business adjustments and reflect the effectiveness
of the green transformation. We have also specially
supplemented the disclosure of the trend data of the
change in emission intensity from the financial year 2020
to 2024 (please refer to the table below for details).

A

B -a8RERRE S

RERE®)
Perhaz®I ()

1-

1.4

WL EIREER Y ()

FfF - ER—BMERA Aa=F=
PUBAEFH#E » HSESGHRE PRI EEE W HE
MEEFEEMARLSEARBITH
Mg,/ BETeW]  UWEEHEAR
A E R IR I S MR A 2 8 R AR
BT REE—_S T E
EZTPUEF AR A BERE S &
LBBHEFGFATR) -

2020-2024 waste emission intensity (unit: tonnes per US$10,000 of operating revenue)

CECEFE_F_NEEEVHREEEN B BEXTER
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Year FE —ECERF EC-F ZEBEICF ZEBC —E-IE
Hazardous wastes BEEEY 0.0043 0.0052 0.0032 0.0016 0.0032
Non-hazardous BMEBEZEY
wastes
Scrap steel REHAM 0.0217 0.0308 0.0048 0.0268 0.0212
Scrap paper cartons BEMR R B 0.0015 0.0015 0.0006 0.0008 0.0007
Scrap wooden boxes BERBEERE 0.0019 0.0029 0.0011 0.0024 0.0021
Domestic wastes A SERIIR 0.0167 0.0147 0.0047 0.0050 0.0049

* Annual Report 2024
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A Environmental Protection (Continued)
1.  Emission control (Continued)

1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

BE - -HERERERE

RiIR - HERERBER

A BRERESE
1 BERUESI(E)

1.4 B EIRRERY (&)

To minimize the generation of waste, the Group has RBBLVBEEMEE  AEBBEBRE

actively adopted the following measures: BUA TR -

e Waste paint residue recycling: recycling of waste e REIHAREEW - BBEBKERS
paint residue through water curtain system, in EUREERMRE - — T M H#

2024, a total of 2.90 tonnes of waste paint residue

were recycled.

o Dust recycling: Recycling of dust by vacuum o
cleaners and cutting purifiers, reducing dust
emissions by 0.26 tonnes in 2024.

e  Waste gas and dust particles treatment: cyclone o
dust collector and cloth bag dust collector were
adopted to effectively reduce the emission of waste
gas and dust particles, and the total amount of
waste was reduced by 11.12 tonnes in 2024.

The Group will continue to focus on the quantification,
resourcefulness and harmless treatment of solid waste
and actively explore more environmentally friendly
production methods, contributing to the building of a

green and sustainable future.

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEEERBERN2025FERZ

Mg o

W o

(o] LAt B8 Jph 3R 75 2 . 90MA ©

BEE W : FAEZERERM
DENFEREENE  —F
“OEHR A MESREO0.26

BREVEENER - HAKk
[BLBR BE AN AR SRR EE AT - B
WMAOBEREMEBNEER - =
TR OEMEE1.12

AEE B HERTEREZRMAR
B BREMEFT(CRE - BiK
RRERRONEET A - BEEK
BAFENARREBRIE

Goal achieved for the year 2024
2024FE BIRERIBE R

Goal for the year 2025
20255 E B 1

Goal: Decreasing trend in waste emission intensity
BiR : BEEVHREE TEB%
Decreasing trend in waste emission intensity

BEEMHBETE N8BS

Achieved
BEK

“ECFEFR c EEEENEROERAT

119



120

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B - HERERERE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) R HERERRES
A Environmental Protection (Continued) A RERESE
1. Emission control (Continued) 1 Hepzsl(E)
1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued) 1.4 WL EBEEY(E)

Hazardous waste management and optimization EEBERYEEEBLAR
plan
The Group has established a systematic hazardous ZK%LiT AL EEEED
waste management system to achieve standardized ERBE  BRANTHEKBRERRS
management through the following measures: {LER :

o Strategic plan: formulating annual hazardous
waste management plan and specifying quantitative
emission reduction targets for each department;

o Process control: Establishing a regular assessment
mechanism, implementing dynamic monitoring and
taking timely optimization measures;

e  Classification management: Strictly enforcing
waste classification standards and setting up
standardized warning signs in storage areas;

e Professional Disposal: Selecting qualified
contractors to ensure compliant, safe and
professional disposal of waste.

e HRARB: FTFEATEE
MEIRE > PESHMENL
BB R

o BRIEH ST MK
Bl EHEARE - RAFIRER
BLFEHE

e EEE:BRBATEEYD
BEE  ERFERERERE
LERIRH

o HERE:MEAHRARR-
HMREZMSIGR  LE2EH
ERERE -

The purpose of this management system is to RNEBBREEFEREKEEDE
continuously reduce the amount of waste generated, £ BRAZERMASE  BRE
improve the efficiency of resource utilization, and ensure BRE

environmental safety.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

1.

Emission control (Continued)
1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

Reuse of waste materials

The Group actively promotes the strategy of waste
reduction and resource utilization, and achieves recycling
through the following measures:

o Quality optimization: Strengthening quality
control throughout the entire process to reduce the
waste of resources caused by quality problems;

° Material Recycling: Establishing a material
recycling system to use steel from substandard
products for non-production purposes, with an
annual recycling volume of 34.5 tonnes;

e  Recycling production: iron filings generated
during the processing process were professionally
recycled and re-invested into the casting production
process, realizing closed-loop utilization of
resources.

Through the implementation of the above measures, the
Group has effectively enhanced the efficiency of resource
utilization, reduced the consumption of raw materials,
and put into practice the concept of sustainable
development.

Waste recycling system

The Group has established a comprehensive waste
recycling management system, focusing on the
implementation of the following measures:

o Classification management: Strictly enforcing
waste classification standards, and requiring
employees to accurately classify and label recyclable
waste;

o Professional recycling: establishing strategic
cooperation with certified recycling organizations to
ensure that waste is professionally recycled;

e Recycling: focusing on promoting the recycling of
packaging materials to recycle discarded cardboard
boxes and other paper packaging through
professional organizations, with the total annual
recycling volume reaching 5.85 tonnes.

The system has significantly increased the utilization rate
of waste recycling and reduced the consumption of raw
materials, demonstrating the Group’s commitment to
sustainable environmental development.

BR - -HERERBRE

RIE -HERERAE®
A BERE®)
1 HERUESI(E)
1.4 HLERREEY (&
BEZ2 Y& BAL FIF (Reuse)
AEBEGHREEEDRE(LRE
BALERE  BBATHEBEIRBR
FIA -

e HEFt:mt2BREHER
# - FREEREHEEHNE
TRRE

o HMBEW : EIZME @Y
% BAEREMTB M A
RIFEERZE - FE BN A
£3E34.51

e MWREE:HMIBREFEAL
BB BT (B EE -
EHRABELEERRE  ER
BREIRFIA -

BBERALER  SEAMEA
TERMAME - BD T RMEE
o OBITTAREERRES -

BERVBERBLERR
AEBET T TENEEYRERRS
EEERG  ERBRA TG

e NEEE:EBEBATEEYD
BRE 2RBEIHATHFLE
FEEYETTERE D BAL R BT
i

o EEOW: ERE@MUKER
VBBEAE BREEWER
BEADWERE

o BRB4L: BEYEEAEMH
BERAB BEEEREY
BEEAESREOENETE
ERIE FEBEREESSS
g o

ZRERBERAT TEEMWERCH

RE BT RMEER BT
SEHRIR A RER R ARG o
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BiE HERERHRE
ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) BIE -dHERERRE®

A Environmental Protection (Continued) A RERERE
2. Effective Use of Resources 2. BERFERAER

The Group consumes resources mainly through material
procurement, product manufacturing and office operations,
and has formulated policies in these 3 aspects for managing
the effective use of resources and reducing wastage:

Formulate policies related to the efficient use of
resources, including:

Green Procurement Policy:

In order to realize the concept of sustainable development,
the Group has formulated a green procurement policy that
incorporates ESG principles into the procurement process:
given priority to suppliers with environmental certification;
electronic implemented procurement process to reduce
paper consumption; given priority to the procurement of
renewable and biodegradable materials, restricted the use
of disposable plastics; procurement of chemicals required
the conduct of an environmental and safety assessment, and
replaced toxic or hazardous products with non-toxic or low-
toxicity products; regularly launched ESG communication and
training for suppliers to promote the green transformation of
the supply chain. Through various measures, we ensure that
our procurement activities comply with the requirements of
environmental protection, social responsibility and corporate
governance, and realize the balanced development of
economic and environmental benefits.

Green Manufacturing Policy:

The Group has been committed to establishing an
environmentally friendly production system and gradually
implementing green manufacturing: adopting cleaner
production processes and optimizing the energy structure;
implementing energy conservation and emission reduction in
the entire production process and establishing a mechanism for
resource recycling; strictly enforcing environmental standards
to ensure that pollutants are discharged in compliance with
the standards; and implementing eco-design of products to
extend the product lifecycle. Through technological innovation
and management optimization, the Group has realized low-
carbon, cleaner and more efficient manufacturing processes
and promote sustainable development.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

2.

Effective Use of Resources (Continued)

Formulate policies related to the efficient use of
resources, including: (Continued)

Green Manufacturing Policy: (Continued)

For example, the newly procured equipment shall meet the
national energy consumption level, and purchase of high
energy consumption equipment listed in the national phase-
out catalogue is prohibited; further procurement/replacement
of energy-saving and low energy-consuming digitally-
controlled plasma cutting equipment to replace the old flame
cutting machine has increased the working efficiency by 2-3
times and saved the amount of propane used; the replacement
of fuel-fired forklift trucks with electric forklift trucks, etc.; the
procurement of digitally-controlled multifunctional bus bar
machining machine and digitally-controlled drilling machine
to improve efficiency and reduce energy consumption;
optimization of the chemical process to increase the utilization
rate of steel materials and reduce the amount of waste steel
materials; on the one hand, the Group has been committed to
recycling the packaging cartons of waste products. to reduce
the emission of wastes and at the same time save paper
resources.

Green Office Policy:

The Group has implemented an all-round green office
system, focusing on the implementation of the following
measures: 1. paperless office: full implementation of
double-sided printing system; prioritization of the use of
electronic document management system; establishment of
a digital approval process; 2. energy and water conservation
management: full adoption of water-saving device in office
facilities (high efficiency flushing toilets, sensorized faucets);
implementation of energy-saving lighting solutions (LED
light fixtures, light-control acoustic system); implementation
of renewable energy applications such as solar energy;
3. greening of office equipment procurement standards:
strict enforcement of national energy efficiency standards;
prohibition of the procurement of eliminated types of energy-
consuming equipment; prioritization of the use of energy-
saving certified products. Green procurement standards for
office equipment: Strictly enforcing national energy efficiency
standards; prohibiting the procurement of obsolete energy-
consuming equipment; prioritizing the use of energy-saving
certified products. During the year, the Group replaced energy-
consuming lighting fixtures with LED lighting fixtures, totaling
105 sets.

BE - -HERERERE
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)
A Environmental Protection (Continued)

2.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Effective Use of Resources (Continued)

Formulate policies related to the efficient use of
resources, including: (Continued)

Green Office Policy: (Continued)

Through the above systematic measures, the Group’s
headquarters and its subsidiaries’ offices have effectively
reduced operational energy consumption and realized the
Company’s sustainable development philosophy.

RE -

A BRERE
2 N

HERERRBE®)

Dx(/wﬁ,g)
BERERERGE)
FEBXEAEFRHEBRE - 6% © (8)

SEWAETHBER - (B)
Liﬂlxkj:%, MR
NEMREEBEE T &
NEIAHBEEES -

REBERETB
ERERE  BTTT

Consumption intensity

per US$10,000 of
Consumption operating revenue
BEETERMN
Resources = HE REXRE
In 2024 In 2023 In 2024 In 2023
—EmE ZZEZ= —EmMFE —ZEC-=

Fresh water (cubic metres) FrEEHK (2 K) 8,932 14,391 0.9278 1.1757
Package material (tonnes) BEE IR (E) 37.92 149.34 0.0039 0.0122

The Group has adopted a number of effective measures
to reduce the consumption of fresh water and packaging
materials through its green manufacturing and green office
policies. In 2024, the consumption density of fresh water and
packaging materials decreased significantly as compared with
2023, by 21.09% and 68.03%, respectively.

* Annual Report 2024
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

2.

Effective Use of Resources (Continued)

Formulate policies related to the efficient use of

resources, including: (Continued)
Green Office Policy: (Continued)

Also, to maintain consistency, the unit of measurement of
greenhouse gas emission intensity in the ESG report is adjusted
to the internationally recognized “consumption intensity per
since the financial year
2024 to better align with the current status of the Company’s
business adjustments and reflect the effectiveness of the S Sy K S

US$10,000 of operating revenue”

green transformation. We have also specially supplemented

BRIE -HERERRE®
A

R RE B

2. BAXERERE)

RERANEBR
RREF—

1t|:57|\ ’

RARE]

the disclosure of the trend data of the change in consumption
intensity from the financial year 2020 to 2024 (please refer to

the table below for details).

2020-2024 resource consumption intensity
(unit' consumption intensity per US$10,000 of operating revenue)

FEBXEAERHEBEE - B1F © (8)

: (%)

B AT _MHEF
CESGHRET BRI NEEAE
fiﬂ%ﬁ.[%LTTE’]rH“%E 2 U EY
NEEREAARREBRHE
Bk R RBR AR B RUR R+ I B T
T — B F B AR
RZER(CBEHEFETR)

CECERFECRNEEREAEE(EN  BEERERNEREE)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Year FE —E-ERF B - ZE-C 2= —EB-WF
Fresh water FEF K 9.2967 5.2366 3.5229 1.1757 0.9278
Package material BEME 0.0294 0.0337 0.0058 0.0122 0.0039
Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BERERERR2025FE B
Goal achieved for the year 2024 Goal: Decreasing trend in fresh water supply and Achieved
intensity of packing material consumption
2024F F BIRERIE R BiR - B MUKNMBEM AR E TRBE BIEK

Goal for the year 2025

2025F Bz

3% decrease in fresh water supply and intensity of

packing material consumption

KM BEM AT E 3%

TECNFEFER

cEBHHEEANRROERAF
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A Environmental Protection (Continued)
3. Education on Environment

3.1

3.2

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Environmental Protection Training to Employees

To coordinate with the implementation of the
environmental policies and strategies, the Group has
formulated an environmental training programme
of employees for continued enhancement of their
environmental awareness and competence in the
implementation of relevant measures. During the year,
the number of employees that participated in trainings
on the environmental emergency plans, hazardous waste
planning management and environmental protection
laws totally reached 496 persons, with a total of 1,117
training hours, which is of 7% and 9% higher than 464
persons/1,020 training hours achieved in previous year,
respectively. The Group attaches great importance to
employee training related to environmental protection,
as regular high-quality and efficient training will more
effectively reduce the environmental risks posed by
relevant operations.

Promotion of Environmental Protection along the
Supply Chain

Suppliers are important partners with the Group. The
Group intends to enhance the environmental awareness
of its suppliers by taking advantage of its influence in the
supply chain. Therefore, environmental performance has
also become one of the evaluation standards. Through
such methods, the Group aims at enhancing suppliers’
awareness of environmental protection and reducing
carbon emissions to the environment.

* Annual Report 2024
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ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued)
A Environmental Protection (Continued)

4.

Minimising of Significant Impacts to Environment and
Natural Resources

Suppliers are important partners with the Group. The Group
intends to enhance the environmental awareness of its
suppliers through its influence in the supply chain. As such,
environmental performance has also become one of the
evaluation criteria. Through such method, the Group aimed at
enhancing suppliers’ awareness of environmental protection
and reducing carbon emissions to the environment.

In addition to the policies and measures implemented as
mentioned above to reduce emissions and utilize resources
in an efficient manner, all products in the operations of the
Group are strictly certified by classification societies and/
or quality certification authorities in order to meet the
environmental requirements for offshore or onshore products.
Meanwhile, the Group has put in place effective procedures
to ensure that risks to the environment are minimized in the
course of the operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any
operating site with any violation of regulations relating to
environment nor receive relevant complaints.

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEERBERK2025FEHE
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Goal achieved for the year 2024

2024 BIRER BN
Goal for the year 2025

2025F X B 1%

Goal: No violations of environment-related legislation

Achieved

was involved or street-related complaints

B 8

zero complaints

RIEABITEZTER

35 MR RRIRERA DI S BRI AR

No violations of environmental-related aspects and

TR

BEK

Climate Change

The Group is deeply aware of the impact brought by climate
change, actively responds to the government’s proposal of
“carbon peak” and “carbon neutrality” goals. We continuously
explore opportunities in the new energy industry, enhances
capability of response to climate risks, and makes contributions
to business of environmental protection. During the Reporting
Period, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Group was
not materially affected by any climate-related issues.

RixE L
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Employment Policies and Practices

1.

Employment
1.1 Employment Policies

The Group regards employees as its most important
assets. We adhere to the concept of common
development of employees and the Group, and
guarantee equal rights for every talent by establishing
a fair, open, diverse and inclusive employment system.
We have always paid attention to the growth of our
employees and strived to create a good working
environment to improve their job satisfaction.

The Group has always strived to maintain equal
employment opportunities. All vacancies in the Group is
publicly advertised through online or other appropriate
channels. A fair selection process is conducted strictly
based on the competence, skills, etc. of applicants. The
Group has developed and followed the equal opportunity
policy with regular reviews on implementation. We will
not refuse any job applications for attributes such as race,
skin colour, gender, language, religion and/or political
views, etc., and the treatment of employees will not be
affected by the above factors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any legal violation or complaint relating to discrimination
or other employment practices. Meanwhile, the Group
strictly complies with legal requirements relating to
termination of employment contracts in each of its
operating locations.

In the future, we will continue to adhere to our fair,
open, diverse and inclusive employment policies, and
encourage more talents of different backgrounds and
from different regions to join the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

1.

Employment (Continued)

1.2 Composition of Employees
As of 31 December 2024, the four operation sites
covered by this Report had 313 employees, all of whom
were full-time employees. There were no part-time
employees. Among which, 57.50% of them ranged in
the age group of 31 to 45, representing a slight decrease
of approximately 2.17% as compared with 2023.

BE - -HERERERE

B #H28EF®
BERERER®)

EEE)

1.2 EEHAK
BEZ-HWNF+=_A=+—80"
AN FR A R 2 O PO E S i B R 1
T33RETIT  -HAEZBET  &F
BB T o Heh » 57.50%M B T F#k
BRI E4A5E oM T - =4
BEAK492.17%

By Gender Number of employees Percentage
g lk-e) ETAH fhtE
Female ik 49 15.65%
Male S 264 84.35%
By Age Group Number of employees Percentage
RERASIES BTAK fhits
18-30 46 14.70%
31-45 180 57.50%
46-60 85 27.16%
>60 2 0.64%
By Geographical Regions Number of employees Percentage
Rt B & 2 ETAH i tE
Shandong iR 167 53.35%
Shaanxi i} 84 26.84%
Henan A 62 19.81%
By Employment Type Number of employees Percentage
RERERES ETAH fhtE
Full-time £ 313 100%
Part-time 304 0 0%
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) B #HE@FF®
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued) EEBEEXRERE)
1.  Employment (Continued) 1- EBE®HE)
1.2 Composition of Employees (Continued) 1.2 ESHMK(E)

The average monthly employee turnover rate for the year REFEWEAFHESRE Xl
is summarised as follows. As compared with 2023, the T BT =FiEE - AFE
total average employee turnover rate of the Group for REEETHE TRAEN0.43%
the year increased from 0.43% to 0.47%, representing FAZE047%  F18AE9.3% °

an increase of 9.3%.

2023 Average 2024 Average

Monthly Monthly
Employee Employee
Turnover Rate Turnover Rate
(%) (%)
ZE=F ZEDNmEF
SATHERE SATHER
TS E (%) i 5 (%)
Gender 4 51

Male S 0.29 0.53
Female ey 1.20 0.21

Age group ETF#
18-30 18-30 1.46 0.40
31-45 31-45 0.13 0.57
46-60 46-60 0.61 0.16
> 60 > 60 0 0
Overall average: #E 0.43 0.47

1 30 CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) B #HEEF®

Employment Policies and Practices (Continued) EREBEEXERERE)
1.  Employment (Continued) 1- EE®HE)
1.3 Employee Benefits and Public Welfare Activities 1.3 BEIFFARAzZ8

In order to attract more talents in various positions, the
Group’s remuneration system is based on job grade
and performance. The wages paid by the Group and its
subsidiaries have reached the minimum wage standards
of the regions in which the Group is operating. In
addition to assuring employees’ stable income from
the basic salary, the Group also provides bonuses
in association with the employee’s performance to
encourage and retain outstanding employees.

The Group purchases additional commercial insurance
(covering critical illness, traffic accident, etc.) for those
employees of certain seniority to offer them additional
coverage. In addition, each mainland Chinese employee
is entitled to sick leave benefit better than the statutory
requirement: While the statutory requirement allows
for a 30% deduction in employees’ wages during a
sick leave period, the Group provides employees with 6
days of paid sick leave in a year during which no wage
deduction is required. Other employee benefits include
major holiday benefits, transport allowances, phone
allowances, and lunch subsidies, etc.

In 2024, with the core concept of “Culture Empowers
Development”, the Group deepened its development in
corporate culture through multi-dimensional measures.
On the basis of inheriting the cultural essence of
“bloodline of China Merchants, gene of Shekou, spirit
of Hailiao, and strength of third entrepreneurship”, the
Group has innovatively created an immersive culture
cultivation system: relying on systematic professional
training to consolidate the cultural foundation, launching
culture-themed salons to promote the collision of ideas,
organizing a historical achievement tour exhibition
to manifest the accumulation within the century,
and planning trekking and development activities to
strengthen the spirit of teamwork. This series of cultural
immersion projects not only vividly interpreted the
cultural heritage of China Merchants Group and the
characteristics of the spirit of Chinese merchants, but
also fostered the value identity of employees in the unity
of knowledge and practice, continued to strengthen
the centripetal force and synergistic creativity of the
organization, and incentivized all employees to continue
working hard to build their dreams, and to work together
to write a new chapter of high-quality development.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

2.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to its employees. As
an employer, we are committed to protecting the health and
safety of all employees. To continuously minimize the impact
of our operation on occupational health and safety, the Group
is committed to not only complying with laws, regulations and
industry norms as the bottom line, but also striving to achieve
the safety targets of “zero occupational diseases” and “zero
major injuries and fatalities”.

We have established a comprehensive safety management
system covering risk assessment, accident prevention,
emergency response and continuous improvement, and we
enhance management efficiency through regular monitoring
and data analysis. The Safety Committee regularly reviews and
optimizes our policies, adhering to a “stop-work” policy that
empowers employees to stop work at any time when their
safety is threatened. We prevent occupational diseases through
comprehensive safety policies, training and improvement
measures, provide regular occupational health check-ups
for employees in high-risk positions and cooperate with
professional medical organizations to establish a mechanism
for preventing occupational diseases. A comprehensive
emergency response mechanism and regular drills ensure that
employees can effectively respond to emergencies. We are
actively building a safety culture, encouraging employees to
participate in safety management, making suggestions for
improvement, and continuously optimizing measures through
performance evaluation and data analysis. Occupational
health and safety is included in our annual ESG report, and we
publicly disclose relevant data and progress.

The Group provides suitable personal protective equipment
free of charge to its employees including helmets, safety
goggles, protective masks, safety gloves, safety belts and
purifying respirators. For employees exposed to occupational
disease hazards, including those who work in painting and
shot blasting processes, the Group arranges annual, free-of-
charge physical examinations by qualified medical institutions
to ensure their health. During the year, the Group has
arranged for a total of 203 employees to undertake physical
examination, from which no case of occupational disease was
diagnosed.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

2.

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

On the other hand, the Group strives to raise the safety
awareness of its employees through promotion on bulletin
boards and posting of safety signs, and the Group has also
established a safety training and education system. At the
beginning of the year, the Group developed an annual
training plan, and conducted regular occupational health and
safety training courses, the contents of which include general
occupational health and safety education, correct usage
of personal protective equipment, and safety precautions
for various hazardous work, such as safety of dangerous
chemicals, safe use of gas, safety of welding, safety of painting
operation, sand blasting operation and lifting operation, fire
safety and safety of operation at heights. The total number of
the Group’s employees trained in the year was 2,129, reaching
a total of 3,091 training hours.

Moreover, the Group has paid attention to the mental well-
being of employees, and has alleviated employees’ working
pressure through holding mental well-being courses and
organizing group sharing activities, with a total of 13 cross-
team exchange activities held in the year to promote the
physical and mental health of employees and enhance team
cohesion.

Some of the subsidiaries within the Group (such as Qingdao
TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd.), have established and
achieved the OHSAS 18001 safety management system and
the occupational health and safety management system
(ISO45001:2018). In accordance with the requirements of the
management system certification, we have identified clearly
the origins of dangers in the workplace and conducted risk
assessment at those areas. Relevant companies have evaluated
the workplace on the occupational hazards in plants in 2024
for ensuring appropriate controls in all high-risk positions. In
addition, the Group has established a 6S inspection system
for regular check of workplaces and inspection of fire and
electrical equipment, and at the same time has formulated
plans for regular maintenance of equipment.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group identified neither
any legal violation against the key regulations relating to
occupational health and safety, nor any incident of work-
related fatality or working days lost due to work-related
injury. The Group had no employees involved in work-related
fatalities in the past four years.

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEERERK2025FEBE
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Goal achieved for the year 2024

Goal: Zero workplace fatality rate and no employees

Achieved

was involved in work-related fatalities

THESMETERRT  MEIPRAIRTESN  2EK

2024 F B IRER BN BiF:
Goal for the year 2025 Zero workplace fatality rate for employees
2025 B F THEBEINTXRAT
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

3.

Career Development and Training

The Group has always adhered to the principle of
“meritocracy”. Within the career development and training
system, the Group regularly evaluates the performance and
professional capabilities of the employees to provide them
with fair and transparent promotion opportunities, and at the
same time, focuses on exploring and cultivating high potential
talents by formulating customized development plans by its in-
house dedicated training team, and systematically upgrading
employees’ competency by combining skills enhancement,
practical projects and diversified courses (covering skills
enhancement and management capability development), to
ultimately realize two-way empowerment between employee
growth and the Group’s development.

The Group has established strategic labour capital reserves
through the “cedar program” and the “spring rain program”
dual-track talent projects. In particular, the “cedar program”
focuses on the development system of high potential talents
and sets up a dual-channel cultivation path for managerial
and technical talents. Focusing on four groups, namely, high
potential talents, global key talents, local key talents and
technical experts, the program combines 3-5 years of staged
growth cycle through modularized courses, such as leadership
sand table, professional certification and cross-border project
practice. Over 100 core technical backbones have been
cultivated to become the backbone of the Company’s business
expansion; the “spring rain program” creates an endogenous
knowledge transfer system, with the fissured cultivation model
of “one backbone leading three reserve talents”. Through
systematic training such as transmission of knowledge and
skills and implantation of cultural value, the transmission rate
of core technology standardization and the penetration rate
of corporate culture have been increased year by year. The
two programs provide long-term motivation for the Group's
sustainable development through the dual-wheel drive of
talent echelon construction and accumulation of organizational
experience.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) B #HE@FF®
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued) EREBEEXERERE)
3. Career Development and Training (Continued) 3. BERRHEIZIGE)
At the Qingdao, Zhengzhou and Xi'an sites covered in this ZE_MERRESEHEE - BM
Report in 2024, there were a total of 1,014 employees RAZELE 28 TRFE014A
participating in the training and a total of 3,790 hours of R BRI R 3,790/ s ©
training.

Monthly Average Proportion of Trained Employees (%)
BEZEINEENESAFHEE (%)

In 2024 In 2023 Change (%)
—E-mEF —Eo=5F B10(%)
Gender 4 7l
Male ks 34.25 33.51 2.20
Female 7 31.02 26.40 17.5
Employee Rank EE &5
Senior management BREEE 61.59 61.53 0.09
Middle management HREREE 34.25 32.30 6.04
Junior employee THET 33.81 35.59 -5.00
Overall average #Eg 33.75 32.40 417
Monthly Average Training Time of Each Employee
(hour)
BEEENE B FIHEINFE(NE)
In 2024 In 2023 Change (%)
—E-mE T E1(%)
Gender 4 71
Male ks 1.58 0.52 203.0
Female g 0.86 0.50 72.0
Employee Rank EE&A
Senior management BREEE 1.65 1.61 2.5
Middle management FRERE 0.82 0.55 491
Junior employee THETLT 0.95 0.55 72.7
Overall average B3y 1.01 0.74 36.5
Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEEERERK20255EBE
Goal achieved for the year 2024 An average 1 to 2 hours vocational training for Achieved
employees per month
20245 [ B IBEMIER B TREEIRRI A1 22/ B
Goal for the year 2025 An average not less than 1 hour vocational training for
employees per month
2025 B1IZ B TH 2353 A B ME RN
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

4.

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the Labour Law, the Law on
the Protection of Minors, the Prohibition on the Use of Child
Labour and the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, and has
raised the compliance standard to a higher level: all candidates
are required to go through the public security system/identity
card to verify their age before joining the Company to ensure
that their actual age is 18 years old or above, so as to eliminate
the risk of child labour from the source. In the hiring process,
employees are entitled to an independent review period of no
less than three working days before signing a labour contract
to ensure that they sign the contract voluntarily on the premise
that they fully understand the rights and obligations of the
contract.

To protect labour autonomy, the Group has implemented a
threefold control mechanism:

e Compliance management of working hours: overtime
work is strictly enforced under the Labor Law of the PRC
and the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, and the
Group does not encourage overtime work. All overtime
work has to be confirmed in writing by employees and
approved by department managers, and overtime work
throughout the year is strictly controlled within the legal
limit;

e Anti-forced labour system: Incorporating the relevant
requirements of ILO’s Forced Labour Convention into the
Employee Handbook, monitoring abnormal working hour
data through the digital time and attendance system,
and cross-checking with wage payment records;

o Family-friendly policy: advocating the principle of
integrating family and work, and implementing services
such as localized office and telecommuting for some
employees to effectively enhance employee satisfaction.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any
complaints or legal violation relating to child labour and forced
labour.

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEERBERR2025FE R Z
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Goal achieved for the year 2024

20245 F B 1
Goal for the year 2025

2025FEHIZ

and forced labour

TEKER Bz :

forced labour

Goal: no complaints or violation relating to child labour

Achieved

BRERETNEHS THRFIE@OERENF CEX

Zero complaints or violation relating to child labour and

BT RaHS TIRFIEREMHEART
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)
5. Supply Chain Management

51

52

Supplier Selection and Management

The Group’s supply chain management follows the
QHSE system, incorporates suppliers’ corporate social
responsibility performance into the assessment system,
and requires the signing and fulfillment of supplier codes
of conduct containing environmental protection and anti-
bribery clauses. Through a multi-channel communication
mechanism, the Group promotes social responsibility
standards to our suppliers, and works together to achieve
a win-win situation in terms of responsibility goals and
business values.

The Company’s core products include ocean/land
drilling platform equipment, covering wind power
installation equipment and hydrogen energy equipment,
and involving complex processes and precision parts
assembly as well as a stringent certification system for
supplier qualifications. The Company has established a
stable supply chain based on standardized processes,
realized full-cycle control through a systematic supplier
management system, and ensured competitive fairness
and process transparency in the procurement process
by focusing on quality compliance, environmental
performance, service response and cost advantage
as the core evaluation dimensions, and continued to
deepen strategic cooperation with material, electronic
component and equipment service providers.

Distribution of suppliers

The Group conducts regular multi-dimensional
assessments by professional supplier quality assurance
(SQA) personnel and annual audit of designated suppliers
to ensure that their operations meet the Group’s
standards. As of 31 December 2024, there were 677
qualified suppliers supplying materials to the Group,
mainly in China, U.S.A., Singapore, Canada and Italy.

As the 1,600-ton wind power installation vessel
completes delivery in 2023, the relevant supporting
suppliers have successively stepped away from the
cooperation, and the number of suppliers of the
Company in 2024 saw a significant decrease. Such
change is mainly due to the adjustment of the supply
chain after the end of project cycle, and also reflects
the active strategy of streamlining cooperating parties,
optimizing procurement costs and such measures by the
Company to address industry demands.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

5.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

5.3 Evaluation of Social Responsibility/Environmental
Performance Aspects
On the basis of regular assessment, the Group prioritizes
the selection of local suppliers (representing 98.81%)
that meet the same criteria in order to reduce logistics
and transportation distance to lower greenhouse gas
emissions, and initiates overseas procurement only when
there are no suitable local suppliers. For the year 2024,
49.33% of the suppliers passed the special assessment
on social responsibility and environmental performance.

5.4  Supplier Evaluation Results

During the Year, 87 new suppliers passed the access
evaluation, some of which were required to complete on-
site audit to meet the Group’s and customers’ standards.
Existing suppliers were subject to annual dynamic
evaluation, with more stringent on-site assessment for
suppliers with significant business impact. In 2024, 27
new suppliers and 312 existing suppliers passed the on-
site assessment.

Product Liability

The Group strictly complies with the ISO 9001 quality
management system and implements a whole life cycle risk
control mechanism, and has established closed-loop risk
identification and monitoring procedures for product design,
production and manufacturing, installation and commissioning,
and operation and maintenance. All products are subject
to a full process of quality inspection covering research
and development, design, production and manufacturing,
installation and commissioning, and testing and validation to
ensure compliance with international standards, industry norms
and requirements on customers’ technical parameters, and
have passed the mandatory safety certification and compliance
verification by third-party authoritative organizations (e.g.
classification societies). During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not have any cases violating relevant regulations of product
liability, nor did it have any product recalls due to safety or
health issues.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

6.  Product Liability (Continued)
On the basis of product quality assurance, the Group
simultaneously strengthens the security and privacy protection
of customer data: 1) Signing confidentiality agreements with
all employees, strictly prohibiting the disclosure of product
and customer data to unauthorized parties; 2) Implementing
confidential storage and transmission of electronic data related
to customers and product specifications, drawings, etc.; 3)
Clearly promoting the policy on the protection of personal
information in the induction training of new employees, and
requiring the signing of employment contracts and employee
handbooks containing confidentiality clauses. Violators are
subject to immediate dismissal and legal recourse; 4) Deploying
firewalls, anti-virus software and anti-spam solutions for
information system to continuously resist cyber threats; During
the Reporting Period, there was no violation of personal
information protection laws and regulations.

In addition, the Group attaches great importance to the
protection of intellectual property rights and holds a cumulative
total of 43 technology patents. The Group continues to
promote technological innovation of its core products and
strengthen its market competitiveness by combining patent
applications. The patents granted during the year include:
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Name of product/technology patent
Em/ HirEF L8

Registration authority

S

A speed redundancy detection system for generators

—RAREERANFRITHRRA AR

A configuration method and communication method of a chain
master-slave serial communication device

—REA s BRRENREET ARBAT A

A marine integrated management system

—EMRsAERERS

A marine power station management system

—EMMBELEERR

A modular bi-directional DC-DC conversion device and apparatus

A kind of wind power platform elevation system pile leg chord tube
deviation automatic adjustment device

—REEFEAREGERZEREEDIANEE

An AC voltage stabilization system with reactive power compensation

—RABENMENIRRBERS

State Intellectual Property Office
B HBEHE R

State Intellectual Property Office
B B EE D

State Intellectual Property Office
B MBERE D

State Intellectual Property Office
B R AN B EE )

State Intellectual Property Office
B HERE R

State Intellectual Property Office
IR MBERES

State Intellectual Property Office
BIR MBERE D
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

6.

Product Liability (Continued)

In addition, the Group constantly improved its technological
innovation and technical research and development capabilities
during the year, and its subsidiaries were honored with the
following accolades for their outstanding performance:

Title of award/achievement Awarded units

B #H28EF®

BREBRRRER@)
6 EmEEHE)
AN - ARFE R B ETR & R AT 8

Issuing Authority

SRR EAT - TRARDBEERNE
BRI TRE -

Date of award

RIB/MHERE BAREN IR BERAH

Qualification for “National TSC HHCT Control and Drive  Shaanxi Province Department ~ December 2024
High-tech Enterprise” Technology Co., Ltd. of Industry and Information

Technology

REBRAETRMEE] BRI ER) 2RI pREEE TEFERILE “ZWFE+-A
BB BRAA

Qualification for “Specialized  Qingdao TSC Offshore Qingdao Municipal Economic ~ August 2024
and New"” Small and Equipment Co., Ltd. Management Bureau
Medium-Sized Enterprise

R BRI SEREEFAHERS FEEMRECBEERER —EZNFENA
=81 BRAF]

Customer rights and feedback mechanism P R BB

The Group has always put the interests of customers in
the first place and has established a systematic complaint
response mechanism: 1) the marketing and sales department
is responsible for receiving customer feedback and confirming
the details of the problems; 2) the quality management
department takes the lead in interdepartmental analysis of
the root causes and formulation of corrective measures;
3) solutions and implementation progress are tracked by
specialists and feedback is provided to customers in a closed
loop. On this basis, the Group regularly reviews complaint
cases to optimize the service process and ensure that
quality improvement is dynamically matched with customer
needs. No customer complaints were received during the
Reporting Period, confirming the effectiveness of the quality
management system.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) B
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

6.

Product Liability (Continued)

Customer rights and feedback mechanism (Continued)
In addition, the Group was presented with certificates of
management system from relevant institutions in the Year for
recognition of the Group's product quality and technological
achievements:

RiIE HERERKRSE

Htes5xT@

BERERER@®

6 EREEGE)
BSR4
e - SRS B SRR
EWBARELE  HREEOHEIKT
R HRR B

Name of Product Award Issuing Authority

EmREEH MBS

TECNFFER c EHRRNERGERLE
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

6.

Product Liability (Continued)

Customer rights and feedback mechanism (Continued)
To fully fulfill its responsibilities, the Group has established a
multi-dimensional compliance management framework: 1)
deepening supply chain collaboration and requiring suppliers
of key components to synchronize the implementation of
quality management system; 2) dynamically optimizing the
design of product safety and redundancy based on customers’
application scenarios; 3) establishing a database of product
quality to drive continuous iteration of production processes;
4) launching internal quality audit and external certification
reviews on a regular basis to embed ESG risk control into the
whole chain of quality management to effectively safeguard
product performance, safety and reliability, and at the same
time responded to the regulatory requirements of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for sustainable value creation of listed
companies and the protection of customers’ rights and
interests.

Anti-corruption

Business ethics and anfi-corruption

The Group has always maintained a high standard of business
ethics and is firmly opposed to any form of corrupt behavior.
We strictly comply with the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong, China, the Competition Ordinance of Hong
Kong, China and other relevant anti-corruption covenants. We
understand that business ethics and anti-corruption are not
only important components of corporate governance, but also
one of the core issues of ESG. Therefore, we are committed to
practicing these principles in all aspects.

In terms of institutional development, the Group has
formulated a series of stringent internal policies and system,
including the Code of Business Conduct and the Employee
Handbook, which are required to be complied with by all
directors, management personnel, employees and agents of
the Group’s companies, etc. The system specifies the code
of conduct that employees should follow in their business
activities, and prevents the occurrence of anti-corruption
behaviors at source. Meanwhile, we have also established
a compliance reporting system to encourage employees to
actively report irregularities and to ensure the clean operation
of the Company.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

7.

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Business ethics oversight and risk management

To effectively manage and control the risk of corruption,
we have established the position of chief compliance officer
and set up a dedicated compliance team to oversee the
implementation of various compliance policies. We regularly
conduct internal audits and risk assessment to ensure that our
financial and business activities comply with the requirements
of laws and regulations. We are determined to investigate and
deal with any irregularities found.

Integrity management of suppliers

To create a clean business environment and favourable
business partnership, we strictly require suppliers to sign
the Code of Conduct for Suppliers and the Anti-Bribery
and Anti-Corruption Commitment, specifying the contents
of the anti-corruption code of conduct and strengthening
the management of suppliers’ anti-corruption efforts in the
procurement process. We have established long-term and
stable cooperative relationship with our suppliers to jointly
maintain a favorable business ethics environment.

Integrity culture building

To deepen the culture of integrity within the Company, we
also put emphasis on enhancing the awareness of business
ethics among our employees. The Group’s procurement
employees are required to strictly comply with the Code of
Conduct for Self-discipline in Procurement Chain of Personnel
(Revised). We conduct anti-corruption training on a regular
basis to ensure that our employees are able to identify and
prevent corrupt behaviour. Through training, employees
not only enhance their awareness of compliance, but also
demonstrate proper behavior at work.

Report management and whistleblower protection

CM Energy strictly complies with the relevant regulations on
whistleblower management and whistleblower protection
to ensure the transparency and integrity of the Company’s
operation. We have set up a dedicated reporting channel
to encourage our employees, suppliers, customers and all
stakeholders to actively report any violation of national laws
and regulations or policies of the Company.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)
7.  Anti-corruption (Continued)
Reporting channels

Htg2sF®
BERERER®)

7 -

RBH (&)

Phone: 00852-39196300

B3 1 00852-39196300

Reporting website: www.cm-energy.com/complain
HERABUE © www.cm-energy.com/complain
Reporting e-mail: jubao@cm-energy.com
HEREFE © jubao@cm-energy.com

=2

e
=

".-Td New Territories, Hong Kong, China

Address for correspondence: 3/F, Yiu Lian Dockyards Office Building, 1-7 Sai Tso Wan Road, Tsing Yi Island,

EfFiit : PEEEMASTREAEER-TREBN RS F12318

To ensure that the interests of whistleblowers are adequately
protected, we have adopted strict confidentiality measures,
including but not limited to keeping the identity of the
whistleblower, the content of the report and the handling
process confidential, so as to prevent the whistleblower from
being subject to any form of retaliation.

We have formulated a detailed report handling process to
ensure that all reports are investigated and handled in a timely
and fair manner. Meanwhile, we encourage whistleblowers to
provide as much evidence and information as possible so that
we can assess and handle the reports more accurately.

We will investigate all reports in a fair and impartial manner
and take corrective measures in accordance with the
investigation results. We are firmly against any form of false
accusation and framing, and we will pursue the relevant
responsibilities for malicious or false reports in accordance with
the law.

We strongly believe that through effective whistleblower
management and whistleblower protection measures, we
can further enhance the Company’s compliance and ESG
performance to create greater value for all stakeholders.

In the future, we will continue to strengthen our business
ethics and anti-corruption efforts to continually enhance our
corporate governance. We believe that through our efforts,
we can create greater value for the Company, shareholders,
customers and society. At the same time, we look forward to
working with partners from all walks of life to promote the
development of business ethics and anti-corruption.
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B SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

7.

Anti-corruption (Continued)
Relevant data of anti-corruption of the Group for the
yvear 2024:

Indicators EBE

BE - -HERERERE

es5F@®

BREBERERE

JS_LF%,E&(Z?)
AEE—FE-NFEERETIHEEE

2024
g

Number of anti-corruption cases filed against the Company
or employees

BRAFEBTRENRESHLRMFHE 0

Effective report handling rate (%) BB REIEE (%) 100%
Anti-corruption training for employees BT REFE 1
Coverage rate of anti-corruption trainings for employees (%) 8T RE/55EHIEE R (%) 80%
Number of anti-corruption trainings for the Board (times) EEgREFEIIREOR) 1
Number of anti-corruption trainings for the Board (persons) & EH& X EFEIIAZ(A) 9
Coverage rate of anti-corruption trainings for the Board (%) ZHEERESHEIBEX(%) 100%
Number of audit conducted (times) FERETREOR) 2

Goal Achievement and Goal for the Year 2025
BEEERBERR-_ZE_HFERRE

Goal achieved for the year 2024 Goal: the Group maintained zero incidents of fraud, Achieved
bribery or corruption.
ZENFEBIRERER BiR AEEBFHTHGE  RESE N - BER
Goal for the year 2025 Zero incidents of fraud, bribery or corruption
S = HGF - MRS ESEHERT
8. Community Contribution and Engagement HESEHESH
The Group has always placed importance to its corporate REEBKREREEGET - BRETT

social responsibility and actively fulfilled its community
building obligations by participating in public welfare activities,
supporting the underprivileged and promoting environmental
protection practice.

We maintain communication with local community
organizations to understand their needs and do our best to
provide assistance, such as organizing employee volunteers
to carry out basic public welfare activities such as caring for
the elderly and helping students. Meanwhile, the Group
encourages its employees to voluntarily participate in
environmental protection initiatives, advocating the green
office concept of conserving resources and minimizing waste,
as well as paying attention to the impact of the environment
in our business operations and contributing to the sustainable
development of the community. In the future, the Group
will continue to explore more effective modes of social
participation, balancing corporate resources with community
needs, and gradually deepening its social responsibility
practice.
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APPENDIX INDEX TABLE OF ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

This Environment, Social and Governance Report is prepared in
accordance with the Environment, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

General Disclosures
and KPIs Description
—REERAREREE  H

e & BB T GRIR ~ E & REBRS
EEIVEE | E S

x @ BRI TYIRAR £ AR R 827 AR
# 8 R E R RE SR -

5
}Eﬂﬁﬁ

Sections (page no.)

B2 (H8)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CM Energy
Tech Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to “the Group”) set out on pages 163 to 281,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F., Chubb Tower, Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
BRETTEE®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments business and right-of-use
assets in relation to the leased diving support construction vessels
FRAREEATFARBERZYE BERREURFAHEHNBE K SHZEAEEENGE

Refer to Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.2.

AR B IRA T 1200 R iE3.2608
The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

BT ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETFOMEEZEE

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment of approximately US$12,587,000 in relation to
manufacturing of rigs equipments business and right-of-use
assets of approximately US$16,954,000 in relation to the leased
diving support construction vessels under assets management
and engineering services business were allocated to their
respective cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which they
belong

RZZEZWNF+—A=+—H FAKEEHTARBEEL
Z%% 5 K BRI 4912,587,000%X T2 BREE - BARE
BEEEENTRRRBERE T HEANE K2 ER
HEERNHK6,954,0005K T 2 REE » DA D EEEME
WREELSM(REEELSM] -

When it is determined that indicators of impairment of a CGU
exist, management assesses the value in use of the CGU by
preparing a discounted cash flow forecast and that value in use
is compared with the carrying value of the CGU to determine if
any impairment is required.

EEEXR - HeEABNFERETR  BEEEBERERITH
RentEl  EhrEZReELELNERER  RRE
ZHREELABUNEREETHL  UETEEFTEELE
fAlRAE °

Assessing the value in use of a CGU is complex and requires
management to make a number of judgemental assumptions,
particularly relating to the revenue growth rates and future
gross margins.

X -—ReELBUNERERRIEEM BEFEERE
LERHWABRECGEFTE AR EEKT) RARRKEHN =X
e Z H A BT RER
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property, plant
and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments
business and right-of-use assets in relation to the leased diving
support construction vessels included the following:

B EEAREBATERBEB2DE - BENIREN
REBEHEMMERKI R EAEEENBENEAREF
B TFEIA

° Understanding the key controls in respect of the
impairment assessment process of property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets;

o  THBHEWE  HWEKEREAREBEEERENGR
TR H) RASE IR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of its scope of work and
terms of engagement;

o FMEBUAERIEEMABRINBEED  FEENRE
B W T ERE TEEE KRR AR

e  Evaluating the management'’s identification of impairment
indicators of each CGU, with reference to the internal
sources and external sources of information;

o RBERNIRIINTERKER FHEEEHSHESEE
BALHIBEIZRHA

e If any such indication exist, obtaining an understanding
on its methodology and basis applied in calculating the
recoverable amounts for the respective CGUSs;

s WMEEENBEBIR @ THRAESEEEESLAKE
DRERT PTER A Y 5 VR B A

e Evaluating the management prepared recoverable amount
calculations of the relevant CGUs by 1) checking the
mathematical accuracy of the impairment assessment
models; and 2) assessing key assumptions applied in
value in use calculations for those CGUs where their
recoverable amounts are determined and evaluating the
methodology and challenging the reasonableness of the
key assumptions and inputs adopted; and

o HMEEREERENHEBRCELBLNFTKESEE
T BEBN)BRERENEREA N EEBEREN 0 R2)T
A ERSELBUNEREEBUERE T KRE )
HhER SRR - I B AT ER AN B SR AR K B A BUR
el &



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRENTEE®

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Valuation of property, plant and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments business and right-of-use
assets in relation to the leased diving support construction vessels (Continued)
FRAREEATARBERZYE  BERIEURFAHEHNBE KX SHZEAEEENHEGE

Refer to Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.2.

BLRIE B IREM T 12 R 5E3. 260 S 5THE ©
The Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAENBSNAEEZEER

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment
in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments business and
right-of-use assets in relation to the leased diving support
construction vessels under assets management and engineering
services business as a key audit matter because of the
significance of corresponding carrying values of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to the consolidated
financial statements, and determining the level of impairment,
if any, involves a significant degree of management judgement
in forecasting future cash flows and estimating the value in use
of these assets both of which are inherently uncertain and may
be subject to management bias.

BMEEAREBEF TARBEB2WE - BERREUK
EHEEEBRIERBEBIETHEMNE K ®
REEENGHEINSBRETFE  HRYE  BERRE
NRERAEEENHEROENGEMBRANEEZM AR
BEEREKRT (A S K EIREH R ARKIE € nE Rfbat
ZEEENEABEELEXRAL  MatimER~E F191F
ENEEN A egXIETRENREMEMTE -

° Engaging our internal valuation experts to review and
assess whether the valuation models used by management
were appropriate and whether the key assumptions used
in the valuation models were reasonable.

e HBHEHMONMHEEZREENFEELREMANGE
BREEREEARGEREMANERREES AR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRENTEE®

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate, Hua Xia Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huaxia Hydrogen")
REE AR EBERIERMN(EP)ERAB(TEET ) WERSNRETE

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.2.

BRI E I EREN 17U R 7326085 B °
The Key Audit Matter
HREEEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNETFTOOEEZEE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had interest in Huaxia
Hydrogen with carrying value of approximately US$11,145,000.
Huaxia Hydrogen is engaged in research and development of
electrolysed water equipment.
RZZE_WNE+_A=+—HB > &5EH
7 BREMEA/A11,145,000% T - EES
B

REETREEEE
ERNESTIEEE N EYIN

Based on management’s assessment, no impairment loss was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2024.
EEEEEEREE T _MFE+_A=1T—HILFEIE
wRBEEE -

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in Huaxia Hydrogen, based on the past
performance of Huaxia Hydrogen and the expectations from the
Group’s management for the market development estimate.
The value in use calculation is based on the investor’s share of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated by Huaxia Hydrogen, based on certain key
assumptions and inputs, namely revenue growth rates, terminal
growth rates, gross profit margin and discount rate, used to
estimate future cash flows.
EEENEREZREB LS EREEGLEMBREREE
ESfrfRERRAR BESEEEEHTSERMATOHE
HEETREESRNEAN AT KT ERE - FFEEREEERN
KREERLEAHEEIRBEENGFTRKRERENR
B8 - mEMAETTERE THREER LB A - BMha R RkR e
MEMANBARRE  RiKERE - ERXRRTEEK -

We identified the impairment assessment of interest in an
associate, Huaxia Hydrogen, as a key audit matter due to
significant judgment and estimates are involved in determining
the recoverable amount of interest in Huaxia Hydrogen.

HFIR RS AR EETENESARENAHEERERE
FTEIE - RHNEFENEE IR E R 2 A W0 £ 55 K&
BRI R ARG -
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of interest in
Huaxia Hydrogen included the following:

HAFERNEET N ER[BENETEFEEATAR

o Understanding the key controls in respect of the
impairment assessment process of its interest in Huaxia
Hydrogen;

o THRERERSEEmBEMNGREFNEREITER

3 Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of its scope of work and
terms of engagement;

o  HMEBUESERBEMEMOBEEN FEENRE
B X TERRE TESE R RGN

o Evaluating the management prepared recoverable
amount calculation of Huaxia Hydrogen by 1) checking
the mathematical accuracy of the impairment assessment
model; and 2) assessing key assumptions applied in
value in use calculation for Huaxia Hydrogen where its
recoverable amount is determined and evaluating the
methodology and challenging the reasonableness of the
key assumptions and inputs adopted; and

e HEEEEGIMNEESEFAIWNOESETESL B
BRERENGELNEHCERE © R2)FHAEE
E SRt AEE (R LA E AT = £ 58) 1 e B0 RR SR (R
#® o WHE RIS R R R A BRI - &

o Engaging our internal valuation experts to review
and assess whether the valuation model used by
the management was appropriate and whether the
key assumptions used in the valuation model were
reasonable.

e HEFEMNABLEZRBTELTEEREEMANMGE
RE TR EEARMMEEEFTANBRERESSE -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRENTEE®

Net realisable value of inventories

FENTREFE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.2.

BRI A AN 19 R M3 2608 5HBE -
The Key Audit Matter
HREEEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNETFTOOEEZEE

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying value of the Group's
inventories was approximately US$37,184,000. The inventories
held at the year-end covered a wide range of capital equipment
and spare parts and the demand for these in the future may be
adversely affected by many factors including market demand,
competitor activities, pricing and the introduction of substituting
products and technologies.

RZZZWHF+—A=+—H  EEEFENEEAENR
37,184,000 7T - FARFENTFERESBERRELE
o RRZEZERE OB RAEZINFZARN T
2 BEMEEX HEHFNEY  BRoRRTOEE
RHEE ©

The Group's inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Determination of net realisable value involves
key judgements and estimates made by management.
EEENGFERKAETERFEFHNREEALR - BEEA
B FEY REEEEL 52 R 5T

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter because of the significance
of inventories to the consolidated financial statements and the
assessment of net realisable value of inventories is inherently
subjective and requires significant management judgement,
which increases the risk of potential management bias.

B EFEEN2RFENGEREREREFFE  REAR
GELHGAVBEHRERNEZYN  BFEUEEFENGER
AEFEGFEN  UHEEEEEELERAE - BmEn
BEEEERRORERE

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

HAFAFEEN AR R ENETEFERE TIISA

e Understanding the key controls and evaluating the basis
of how slow-moving or obsolete inventories are identified
by the management and their assessment of the net
realisable value of inventories;

o T HRBABEREETIIE M AT (L E IR B A BRI SR E
B EE N H B S A S IR E R R

e  Testing the accuracy of the inventory ageing, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis with
underlying documents, including purchase invoices and
goods receipt notes; and

o  FEBRBAMHE—IAR BB (BEREBERE LR
BEETLER  MEARATFERROERLE &

e  Testing the net realisable values of the inventories by
reference to current and subsequent selling price and
assess whether allowance is properly provided for if
required.

e ZEZRRARNEBARAFTENTERFE  WRY
ERFHE R Z AR -

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRENTEE®

Loss allowance for trade receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables

BESRVRRREREEUAREERRRNEERE

Refer to Notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.2.

BRI E AN 20 R 21X RITEE3. 269 85T BE
The Key Audit Matter
BRETEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANENAEEZSEE

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying values of the Group’s
trade receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables
was approximately US$112,932,000, net of allowance for
impairment losses of approximately US$60,880,000.
REZFE_WNF+=—A=+—H ' BXENEIERERK
U SR IR A N A & e R EI B 49 /3112,932,00036 7T » HIBR
BB E5 1R 15 4960,880,0003 7T,

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit loss (“ECL") which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables.
EEEEARRVBEREENZORGA A ERMEES
B(FEREERE] - HAMEE SRR R E N E R E R
FHEATREMEE E5IE -

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and bills receivables
and lease receivables have been assessed individually for trade
receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables with
significant balances or credit-impaired, or collectively using
a provision matrix for trade receivables and bills receivables
and lease receivables which shared credit risk characteristics.
Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and bills receivables
and lease receivables and are adjusted for forward-looking
information and involves a significant degree of judgement.
RTEEHREEER  REGEAREHAEERENEFE
Wit B 0 T B A 32 4 DA % T & B WK B BT 1 B B R AR R I
EWERFE AR EERU KN BB HRAFERREHENE
S REBERR R BN ERIA RS R - SRAREERE LR
A A BEEDRBEESRKERRERERAREE
FEWCKRIRERRIME A FHRNELBRENEFE - WRKRAE
MERREITHAE - B REAFIE -

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables and bills
receivables and lease receivables as a key audit matter because
of the significance of trade receivables and bills receivables and
lease receivables to the consolidated financial statements and
the assessment of loss allowance for trade receivables and bills
receivables and lease receivables is inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement, which increases
the risk of potential management bias.

BN E F YRR RN EEIARE S R E RS B3R
FH)E B R E 5 R IR R R I W R AR A I 7 & e K
FREEBRECAE FARFEE  UYHEEBEREELEAH
k- EmignEEERERRNRR - MBEMAEE S RUER
ARERRBEAREERKFNEREBRRBRESE
18 o
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade
receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables included
the following:

ARG E Z R U AR TR % P U SR 45 DA B FE R UK Y S 48
HEHEIZFBE FHIEIE

o Understanding the key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables and bills
receivables and lease receivables;

o THREBENMGHFTESBRKERRERZEEREAREE
R EE R E s

° Challenging the management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables and
bills receivables and lease receivables as at 31 December
2024, including their identification of significant balances
and credit impaired receivables and, the reasonableness
of management’s grouping of the remaining debtors
into different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each individually
significant balance, credit-impaired balance and each
category in the collective assessment (with reference to
default rates and forward-looking information); and

s HREHEErRN_ZT_NF+_A=+—HBEZHEK
ERARERZBEAREERKESBIEREONELER
H e - BIEEEERNGEREERERKERROHET
AR EIR BN EEERE P ERISRERA D B IREARIE
BEUEARBRIZEARERR  EEREAERIAREET G
PEFEREAN M EEERNKE(K2E R R RATE
HERD) - &

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix, including
trade receivables and bills receivables and lease
receivables ageing analysis as at 31 December 2024, on
a sample basis, by comparing individual items in the
analysis with the relevant sales invoices, bills and other
supporting documents.

o FREOWPHERIER HBHAEERR R RKHAM
FRAEREITEE R - HBOR B 1R E ) B B 4 AR RE P AR
BEHMTEYE  BER-_Z_NF+_A=+—HHE
55 FE U AR 5K % FE WL R 4R DA T 7R 5 PR WK BR R 9 AT o



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on
the Group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purpose of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE B i s Bt RS MBRRAENER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (&

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, #EE AR BRNEIADR » FIFIHE T B L EIEE A
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit HI&GFA B BHENEATAEE - AMBKERE
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and  5t38 o I ERIRE P HMELETE @ BRIF
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our JAZEBAAFAFRBPEEELEHE  REBIKER
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about ~ BJIER T » IR A RFEHAER FIHE B BEEE
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that &AM EEREBBELENATIZ @ BFIRED
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse — FEFETRE R BRZEE ©

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent W A KBV R HMBEN RS EEAZALES

auditor’s report is Cheung Wang Kei. Ho

Salb 3SR EXRR(ER FHAEBFERAT
Certified Public Accountants S

Cheung Wang Kei RRE

Practising Certificate Number: P07788 HEEZEYE - p07788

Hong Kong I

26 March 2025 —E-RE=A=+xH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) 2 —F —/I#F+ = A=+—H1F FE(AETZ5)

2024 2023
—EomE —T-=F
NOTES US$'000 Us$'000
B sE FEx FEx
Revenue WA 5 166,773 181,337
Cost of sales Fiz k=1 N (125,294) (140,340)
Gross profit EF 41,479 40,997
Other income, gains and losses, net EAblg A - e R ESEFEE 6 2,732 4,207
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHEAY (2,600) (2,496)
General and administrative expenses —REITBAY (26,002) (25,454)
Other expenses EHbRE (219) (822)
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FEEEEEERERIE R 2
loss model, net of reversal EEE (GERER) 31(b) (1,257) (2,274)
Profit from operations £ i A 14,133 14,158
Finance costs B SRR AN 7(a) (80) (123)
Share of results of associates PaR(aY: i /NCIE (1,893) (78)
Share of results of a joint venture AME—HEEERREE - (2)
Profit before taxation R 51 B g A 7 12,160 13,955
Income tax expense Frisfif >~ 8(a) (2,966) (4,346)
Profit for the year & N A 9,194 9,609
Profit for the year attributable to: IATEFEIEFERER
— Owners of the Company A N/NEIEZ 2= DN 9,160 9,502
= Non-controlling interests - PR 34 107
9,194 9,609
Earnings per share &R 11
— Basic and diluted - BEARREE US0.29 cent US0.30 cent
0.2931l 0.303 1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEBEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) &2 =F = [1F+=HA=+—HIFFE(UETZ5)

2024 2023
—E-NmEF —E=F
US$'000 US$'000
FXx FEx
Profit for the year F A5 A 9,194 9,609
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREAM R E (F ) W
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to EE TS EHHIEEEZR ZIHE -
profit or loss:
— Fair value (loss) gain on investments in equity ~ — ZAFEEFF AHtE2EKE
instruments at fair value through other (MERAFEEGS AEMEE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") W) B m TARER
NHEE(EE) K (3,779 837
— Share of other comprehensive income of - EhE—HEE R AREMEE RS
a joint venture - 325
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BEENEENOEEER2EHAE ¢
profit or loss:
- Exchange differences arising on translation - MEBINETSFTEA 2
of foreign operations VE =58 (3,545) (1,559)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEEmFARZ (7,319) (397)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EWEETE 1,875 9,212
Total comprehensive income for the year AR & A EAFASERZEEE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company - RRAREBA 1,841 9,113
- Non-controlling interests - JEIE R A 34 99
1,875 9,212
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) IR =F =14+ —=H=+4—H(XZET L)

2024 2023
—E_MF —ZE-=
NOTES US$'000 Us$'000
BT 5 FEx F=T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment LIE S 12 31,364 53,237
Investment properties B 12 1,038 1,316
Goodwill GEES 13 362 389
Intangible assets EBREE 14 1,443 1,743
Interests in associates RESE N T Z R 17 15,349 16,497
Financial assets at FVTOC| BATFEES AR RE
MEEE 18 1,648 5,422
Prepayments SEENES 20 438 888
Lease receivables FHE R 21 = 100
Deferred tax assets T IBE = 26 1,647 1,854
53,289 81,446
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories T8 19 37,184 39,950
Trade and other receivables B 5 M % H A R U IR 20 101,757 110,457
Lease receivables FAE R UBGR 21 33,266 15,479
Tax recoverable A] Y B 7 1E 15 146
Pledged bank deposits ERRIRITE R 22(a) 759 5,457
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESZED 22(b) 84,100 73,366
257,081 244 855
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Trade and other payables B SR R H A ER 5/ 23 50,755 60,185
Contract liabilities aHAaE 24 28,167 34,165
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 45,399 29,707
Tax payable &I A IE 3,223 4,284
127,544 128,341
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 129,537 116,514
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERABERE 182,826 197,960
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBaE 25 3,579 22,136
NET ASSETS EEFE 179,247 175,824
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BRI R

As at 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) R = =14+ = H=+—H(XZETZ%)

2024 2023
—EomE —T-=F
NOTES US$’000 US$'000
B E FERT FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#iE

Share capital [N 30(b) 41,418 41,418
Reserves &t 30(c) 136,773 133,623

Total equity attributable to owners RAREE AEIGER LR
of the Company 178,191 175,041
Non-controlling interests eI A 1,056 783
TOTAL EQUITY R 179,247 175,824

The consolidated financial statements on pages 163 to 281 were ZF163ZE 2831 BEMGANBHREAELEETeN T - H
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March = 8 =+ /X Bt & RIERETIZE - WHAT AT

2025 and signed on its behalf by: xXH=
Mei Xianzhi Zhan Huafen
wEE EERE
Director Director
0 S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 =F = IF+=HA=+—H1FFE(UETZ3)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARG
Shares
held for Safety  Fair value
share award Statutory fund  reserve Non-
Share  Share  Merger  Exchange scheme  Capital Revaluation Reserve  surplus (non- Accumulated controlling ~~~ Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve reserve  reseve  reseve  funds  reserve  recydling) [osses Total interests  equity
HERf ZhffE  OTEE
RRitH HERE  SREG i 30
Bt ROEE AGEE EXRE  ROEE EXEE  ERRE 08¢ B EE  ZiER i B AR
US§'000  US§'000  USE'000  US§000 USF000  USS000  USS000  US$000  US§'000 LS00 USS000  US§'000  US§'000 LS00
Hr T A T T T A T TR Hr T i T
At January 2023 H-gzzf
-B-A 48 54632 2161 (18279) (3631) 548 68271 1034 - 8214 (115379 169,167 (141) 169,026
Proft forthe year Engf - - - - - - - - - - 950 95 0 9609
Other comprehensie A2 (A% e
(expense) income - - - 1,551) - - - - - 1162 - 389) [ (397)
Totel compreensive 2E(FR hatE
(expense) income - - - 1,551) - - - - - 1162 9502 9113 9 9212
Capita contribution from -BRERTZAR
non-<ontroling shareholders ke
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 85 825
Establishment for saety fund
surplus resenve - - - - - - - - 813 - - 813 - 813
Dividends recognised a5
distributions (note 30(d) - (0% - - - - - - - - - 05 - 405
Transfer ofresere upon disposal of R-RREATLE
investments by ajoit venture REKERGRE = = s = = = - = - 358 3508) - - -
Transfered to reseme funds E N - - - - - - - 16 - - (1615) - - -
At31December 2023 and 1 January 204~ H=%==%
t2Bzt-AR
B 48 250580 2161 (19826) (3631) 548 01 11%! 813 (3544 (11,0000 175,041 8 1584
Profit forthe year EREH - - - - - - - - - - 9160 9,160 W 919
Other comprehensve expense Ep2ERY - - - (358) - - - - - (3 - (1319 - (139
Tota comprehensive 2EERhaaE
(expense) income S c - (354 = S o = - 37 9160 1841 W18
Capita contribution fiom ~BRERTZEAR
non-controling shareholders ke
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 39 39
Deregistration of subsidiaries HBARmEER - - - S = 3 S (183) o S 3 (183) = (183)
Estabihment for safety fund RUZ2BREC AR
surplus eserve - - - - - - - - 149 - - 1492 - 149
Transferred to eserve funds SRCRENGS - - - - = 3 S 620 S = (620) = = =
At31 December 2024 HZg=RE
t2B=t-A 4418 250580 2161 (3311)  (3631) 548 67 1239 2305  (7318) (102.460) 178191 1056 17947
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) &2 =F = [1F+=HA=+—HIFFE(UETZ5)

2024 2023
—E-MEF =5
NOTES US$'000 Us$:000
B aE FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mExER
Profit before taxation R 5 B g A 12,160 13,955
Adjustment for: AT EIEED AR :
Depreciation e 7(c) 13,358 16,180
Amortisation of intangible assets A E R 7(c) 254 147
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEREREZ
plant and equipment & 18 (W) 7(c) 208 (10)
Gain arising from early termination of iR R RIEREHEEED
existing lease g 6 & 7(c) (1,082) (62)
Gain on sub-leasing of offshore PEABERENHHE
drilling rigs classified as finance leases 8 AT B IE 5(a)(i) (856) (858)
Loss on disposal of an associate & — B S A E 2 EE 8 =
Write-down of inventories TFEMOR 7(0) - 576
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FBHEIEEEERNE T ZHE
loss model, net of reversal Eia (kR E) 7(c) 1,257 2,274
Provision on safety fund T2 EeEE 1,492 813
Finance costs TSR AS 7(a) 1,632 2,568
Interest income FE WA 5(a)(i) & 6 (1,927) (2,889)
Share of results of associates DL E R BEE 1,893 78
Share of results of a joint venture SME—EEERRIEE = 2
Operating profit before changes in LBESBERIEE R
working capital 28,397 32,774
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEER A 306 (2,924)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 W % H th FE U G IA
receivables (38 0m) 5k > (18,955) 11,837
Decrease in lease receivables FEREBGUR L 8,505 26,148
Increase (decrease) in trade and other B S R E AR IR
payables 30 Gk 4) 341 (11,880)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities EHAECHRD) M (5,531) 3,800
Cash generated from operations B EA S 13,063 59,755
Income tax paid BETER (3,030) (2,148)
Interest received from sub-leasing of BoERmEEENSHE
offshore drilling rigs classified as finance /8 _E$&HF & WA F &
leases 5(@a)(i) 303 302
Interest paid as sub-leasing of offshore ROBARMEEENSHE L
drilling rigs classified as finance leases EHTFEZMHFE 7(a) (559) (558)
Interest paid as sub-leasing of vessels RO BREEHER
classified as operating leases DM T EF B 7(a) (993) (1,887)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K&K ELHSFHE 8,784 55,464
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n'l_\ é iﬁ; ﬁ 5ﬁ % %
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in United States dollars) 2 —F —/I#F+ = A=+—H1F FE(AETZ5)

2024 2023
—E-WEF —E=F
NOTES US$'000 Us$:000
B aE FEx FEx
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 & #5817 17 U 4> (3 0) 4,643 (4,299)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B&E¥1% - B/E & & HE (1,482) (1,021)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEEEEMNK (5) -
Interest received BUFI B 6 1,624 2,587
Repayment from its shareholder AR E K 16,569 =
Repayment from a joint venture —HEEREER = 44,360
Acquisition of additional interest in an W BB & A A 2 FEIME RS
associate 17 = (352)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate s — A QR TS RUR 127 =
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a WHE—BEK 2 RE R
business FEE 27 = (1,874)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEWZE « WE MERE
and equipment FR5 3R 396 90
Capital contribution to an associate M —fEEE A EEE (6,703) =
Payment on behalf of its fellow subsidiaries X3 [F Z ki &2 7)1 3% - (5,972)
Dividend received from an associate B —REE A RRE 75 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REEXRELRSFHE 15,244 33,519
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERE 2 BRI 33 (11,692) (37,644)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfNHEERS 25 B 33 (51) (93)
Advance from a non-controlling interest of 3% & — &t B A 71 3F4% A%
a subsidiary T aR ) B - 262
Payment of interest element on JERHRER S 2 5K
consideration payable 7(a) (29) (30)
Payment of principal element on EWRBAREHD 2[R
consideration payable (754) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ —f& BB A & 3HE AL AR R
shareholders of a subsidiary AR 239 825
Dividends paid BT E 30(d) = (4,052)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BAE%BHFARS
FE (12,287) (40,732)
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS T HNHEE 11,741 48,251
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHRERRELEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 73,366 24,915
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERSBHN
CHANGES (1,007) 200
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHE  ~ F£REERBRLSZEEY
END OF THE YEAR 22(b) 84,100 73,366
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GENERAL INFORMATION

CM Energy Tech Co., Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
and registered as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s controlling shareholder is Prime Force Investment
Corporation, which shares are indirectly owned by China Merchants
Industry Holdings Co., Ltd (“CM Industry”), a company established
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”). CM Industry’s
ultimate holding company is China Merchants Group Limited (“CM
Group”), which is a PRC enterprise regulated and directly managed
by the State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council. CM Group is owned and
controlled by the PRC Government.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) design,
manufacturing, installation and commissioning of equipments
related to land and offshore drilling rigs and equipments related
to offshore wind power installation platform and rigs, leasing
of self-owned land drilling rigs, and manufacturing and sales of
windwings; (i) provision of supply chain and integration services in
relation to oilfield expendables and supplies; and (iii) provision of
assets management, engineering services and sub-leasing of land
and offshore drilling rigs and diving support construction vessels.
The Company'’s principal activity is investment holding. The principal
activities of subsidiaries which principally affected the results or
assets and liabilities of the Group are set out in note 16.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). Subsidiaries of the Company have their functional
currencies other than HK$, mainly Renminbi (“RMB"), Singapore
dollars (“SGD"), United States dollars (“US$"), Pound Sterling
("GBP") and Mexican Peso (“MXN"). In view of the Group operates
in various foreign countries, the directors of the Company consider
United States dollars, being an internationally well-recognised
currency, can provide more meaningful information to the
Company’s investors and meet the needs of the Group’s global
customers. Therefore, the directors of the Company choose United
States dollars as the presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In current year, the Group has applied the following amendments

to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA") which are effective for the Group’s

financial year beginning on 1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and the related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards
("HKAS") 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.

R REETE B BREE
RI(TEBMBRELER D)

RAEE  AEECERATHEREEA
S((EREFMAE)AHRLINAKE —F—
ME—A— BRI RFEERNKERTE
B EREER

FEM R EER ERBLOMHERE
165 (BRI A)

BB gt £l RIEZTEBRB IR
(BB E B REBABEESS
R FE 1R (CF_FFHFH
CCHEY, KON — EHAHR

BEREELRIEERF
KA ER RS A 75
H)H A1 ET

BAGTER
EALACHEN)

BB gt £l
FTRREBY
s AERIET
UACCHEN)

& 2t e I B B (A

HEBMELH

R E RIS R] B8 M 15 3 S 22 RN R ¥
REBERARAR KB ERR 2 PRI KRR
R/ SEZEEAMBRRABRBEESER

=27
4=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements’®
Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures’
Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to the
Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent Electricity?

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume 117

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

2  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2026

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2027

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Except as described below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements and it will replace HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements. HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and the consequential amendments to other HKFRS
Accounting Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2027, with early application permitted.

The application of HKFRS 18 is not expected to have material impact
on the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
but is expected to affect the presentation of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of cash flows
and disclosures in the future consolidated financial statements.
The Group will continue to assess the impact of HKFRS 18 on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2.

R REETEEUBREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting
period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3.1

3.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GEVBBRENEERERS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BERER @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXSHBRER#E)

Basis of consolidation (Continued) RERERE)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights MAEERERETNRERELNRKRS

of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting B AEREEREUE TASEERE T

rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct B FEEEHIRE 7RG ER - K

the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group SERNHHIRERHEERES - AEBERET

considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing HASERERETNREESS T AR
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are THENGZEMBHEBSERER &

sufficient to give it power, including: R

e the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative o AEBERFEREEORERHNE
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote MIEEEFEAFTAREENOHAER
holders; RAOBIEE

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote o AEE - HMBREEFEASEM
holders or other parties; ATHBNEERRRE

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and o HMENRHELENEN: &

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that o FEEHAER  KAAXAEEER
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to A EE A5 SRS E e ae
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions IHEMEMEERER  BiF%E
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous AR A EMIREEL -

shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains EASEEESHE QR A G RER - HHT
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses BARGE AR EXASELREHZMME
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses NARIEGIRER - B IEARE AR - B
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are iMnE -« 5 A ATUEE sk & AT B A BRIk
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from ARFAXZBAREEESEG#EE BREA
the date of the Group gains control until the date when the FEERR  BEASETEIEGZME
Group ceases to control the subsidiary. AEIEB AL -

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive BmkHEMEEKENSHoBZBRAR
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to AIEA ARIEERER - HBAFTMNEZE
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of s 4a %8 55 B N AR Rl EA A MIEZERR#E
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and o BIfE L S EUIE AR S IR B AL A
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non- B o

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MNE - REBSHNE AT BEERE
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in ER AR  FESHECREASENSR
line with the Group's accounting policies. R —B -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Bassis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity including reserves
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

REVBBRREREERERS T
BERER @

3.2 EXEHBERER @)

REEEE)

MIBERAEEKERARIZEARXZEBNE
EARBRNEENREE - Hm - W -
R R MIGRER A AR BB o

TRM B A R FE R i 25 B AN SR B o
MigEmORZ - BETESEARNR
BRI A DGR E AR EEFE
YIRS B MR AR o

REBRBEEIE A A iR e =
B
REENHIE R RSN B B
REBKREZSHB DR RS - BIA
EEXHAR - NEBRER 2 G BK D
(BREFHR) RIS REEE(E
SRR ENHE QRN A kRS
B o HEIFERESNSHRECNACK
REZAFENEMNEE  FEENER
THERLFEBRNARBHEEA -

i AN 52 B R P8 A BRI BIRE » BIAR IE
HRZMBAR 2 EERAERTAES
NHEZEA) - WaRBENIERERIL
BT MmE 2 R =B ()P ER
DB R AT R B R 2 1O 2 (B 2 0 B (i)
ARAREAAEEZHBARNEE(R
EEE)MBENREE - SAREMLE
HREER RN ERT R 22 8%
BMARB D BRI EEREEREBA
RR(ENZERB BB REERFAETA/
RAHAMEF D RERRNERERERE
&) - REREEHEE B AT E QR
BOEARENATE  SRETEME
WEERFORD T AREER AR
FIEEIRFERR A FE - RIER - FIR
TERRH A AR E R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HEMBBRREHREERE RS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BRER )
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (cContinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXRSHERER®E)

Business combinations or assets acquisitions

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations or assets acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

o leases liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (i) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (i) the underlying assets is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMBBRGEHNEERERSH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BRER@®
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXSHERER#E

Business combinations or assets acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or
group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is amortised for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs). Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates is set out in “Investments in associates” below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

GAMERREHREERERE
BERER ®)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXGHBERER#E)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. If the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are unrelated to the Group. The Group's
share in the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated.

Changes in the Group’s investments in associates

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer,
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties,
discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

For details of the Group’s revenue recognition policies are as
follows:

(a) Sale of equipments related to rigs and oilfield

expendables and supplies, and windwings

e  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control over the products which is generally the
point in time when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are
a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the
total transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

e Made-fo-order contracts
Revenue arising from made-to-order contracts are
recognised progressively over time if the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has
the right to be paid for work done to date in case
of customer cancellation before the order was fully
completed. Progress is measured using output
method, i.e. direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(a) Sale of equipments related to rigs and oilfield
expendables and supplies, and windwings
(Continued)

Made-to-order confracts (Continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customers obtains control over the
products, which generally is when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.

(b) Rental income from leases

Operating leases

Operating lease income is recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term, which is the
non-cancellable period for which the lessee has
contracted to lease the properties together with any
further terms for which the lessee has the option
to continue to lease the properties, with or without
further payments, when it is reasonably certain that
the lessee will exercise the option at the inception
of the lease.

Finance leases

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group
recognises the minimum lease payments receivable
as a finance lease receivable. The difference
between (a) the aggregate of the minimum lease
payments and the unguaranteed residual value
and (b) their present value (presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
lease receivables) is recognised as unearned finance
income. Minimum lease payments are the payments
over the lease term that the lessee is or can be
required to make plus any residual value guaranteed
to the lessor by the lessee, or a party unrelated to
the lessor.

Unearned finance income is allocated to each
period during the lease term using the effective
interest method that allocates each rental between
finance income and repayment of capital in each
accounting period in such a way that finance
income is recognised as a constant periodic rate of
return (implicit effective interest rate) on the lessor’s
net investment in the lease.

(c) Assets management and engineering service fee
income
Assets management and engineering service fee income
is recognised when the related services are rendered.

3.

GAMERREHREERERE
BRER @)

3.2 EXEHBERER @)
BEFEHBAGE)
(o) HEEHFEMERAREARMEFE
BERMBLARER (E)

EFE[E ()

BRI WEREFPRBERE
HIERER  —RATFESR
KR MEMRES

(o) AEESKA

REHEWRAEHENRNAE
BORTER - RETHEM AAE
HiRE A R AR HEY
FH) M - Rz MR AAE T
BERAETEHERGRERES
EEXNERAEEEES -
BER&BEEAMER K&
o

BEHEE

RIEEHMARE  NREBERR
RERKHEEN R ABREEE
FEUR © (a)RIEBEE MR AR
PEREME BN ER () B IRME (R
EEFBIKARP 2 AEE
FEUWR) 2 R Z R AR R
BEERA - RERENKE
ERHEEHABEARL AR
1 H 9 5 3R 55 N AR A 3k £ i
HMAEBN— T HHBEAMRE
HEREOEFIERE

REREELE W AREE AR
REBRNEED K T & &8
B AR E At HES SR
HetERBERAEEREEZ
BT ADE - BEREEEH
EH=(BEERENE)REE
MHEAFRETEBRE K
A °

(c) EEEERIERBEEKRA

AEEERTIRRSBR AR
AR RSB HER -

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF

185



186

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract or modification date,
as appropriate. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

REVBBRREREERERS T
BERER @

3.2 EXEHBERER @)

Leasing (Continued) HE®#E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) KEBERRBA (B)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEEE)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

e the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest
rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

o A lease contract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term
of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
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date of the modification. e e
Right-of-use assets EHEESE

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received. Whenever the Group incurs an obligation
for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
a provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37. The
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”.

The Group applies HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine
whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with
respect to all of its investment properties and leased diving
support construction vessels. Leases for which the Group is a
lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

GREMERREREEREAS
BERER @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EASHBEKRER®E)

Leasing (Continued) HE#)
The Group as lessor (Continued) KEBERBHFEA (B
Sublease THE

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
rather than by reference to the underlying asset.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into presentation currency (i.e.
US$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (and attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in
relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income, gains and losses, net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMBBRGEHNEERERSH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BERER@®
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EASHEEER#E

Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payments

Share award scheme

The fair value of awarded shares granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in employee share-based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value of awarded shares is based on the closing price
at the grant date. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
awarded shares, the total estimated fair value of the awarded
shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the awarded shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of awarded shares that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the employee share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
awarded shares that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the employee share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.

No expense is recognised for awarded shares that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where
vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Share held for share award scheme

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares
held for share award scheme reserve” and deducted from total
equity.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the awardees
upon vesting, the related weighted average costs of the
awarded shares vested are credited to “shares held for share
award scheme reserve” and the related employment costs of
the awarded shares vested are debited to the employee share-
based compensation reserve. The difference between the
related weighted average cost and the related employment
costs of the awarded shares is transferred to accumulated
losses.

Where the shares held for share award scheme are revoked
and the revoked shares are disposed of, the related gain or loss
from disposal of revoked shares is transferred to accumulated
losses and not recognised in profit or loss.

Where cash or non-cash dividend distribution is declared in
respect of the shares held for share award scheme, such cash
dividend or fair value of the non-cash dividend is transferred to
accumulated losses with no gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAGHBEKRER#E)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all
taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMBBRGEHNEERERSH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BRER@®
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXSHERER#E

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand
deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-
term (generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
rather for investment or other purposes.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries is stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

GREMERREREEREAS
BERER @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EASHBEKRER®E)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost and FVTOCI.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include trade
receivables and bills receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses (“ECL"), through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

3. HEVMBBRREHEERE RS
BERER @)

3.2 EXEHBERER @)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) (Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent
reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “other income, gains and losses, net” line
item.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation
at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the far value reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, instead, they will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, gains and losses,
net” line item in profit or loss.

The Group's equity instruments designated at FVTOCI include
listed equity securities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables and
bills receivables, other receivables and deposits, pledged bank
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents), and other items (lease
receivables) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and bills receivables and lease receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward- looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

GREMERREREEREAS
BERER @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EASHBEKRER®E)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e  significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMBBRGEHNEERERSH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BRER @
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEHBERER#E)

Financial instruments (Continued) SWMIABE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Write-off policy M R

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest date determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and bills receivables
and lease receivables are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables
which are not credit-impaired, are assessed in different
group, while credit-impaired trade receivables and
bills receivables and lease receivables are assessed
individually);

. Past due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and bills
receivables and lease receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period. Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost that not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the “Other
income, gains and losses, net” line item as part of the
net foreign exchange gains/(losses);

e  For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the fair value through other comprehensive
income/fair value reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

GEMERREREERBEAS
BERER @)

32 EXRERBREN®®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition of an investment
in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the “Other income, gains and losses, net” line
item in the profit or loss as part of net foreign exchange gain
or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful life to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMBBRGEHNEERERSH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BRER@®
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXSHERER#E

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU or the group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable
value of inventories and value in use of assets for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics of
inputs, as follows:

Level 1 = Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2= Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3.2, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures
made in the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Control in a subsidiary
As set out in note 16, TSC MS Canada Ltd. (“TSC Canada”)
is a subsidiary of the Group even though the Group has only
a 45% ownership interests. TSC Canada is a private company
incorporated in Canada.

The directors of the Company assessed the Group's control
over TSC Canada on the basis of its practical ability to direct
the relevant activities unilaterally. In making their judgement,
the directors of the Company consider the Group has
dominated the board of directors of TSC Canada by 100%
of voting rights, as the other substantial shareholders of TSC
Canada act in concert with the Group. After assessment, the
directors of the Company concluded that the Group has ability
to direct the relevant activities of TSC Canada and therefore
the Group has control over TSC Canada.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year.

(@)

®)

Impairment losses on trade receivables and bills
receivables and lease receivables

Loss allowances for trade receivables and bills receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which are estimated in accordance with
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date. The estimation of ECLs requires the
use of judgement and estimates, where the expectation is
different from the original estimates, such difference will
impact carrying value of trade receivables, bills receivables
and lease receivables and impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed. As at 31 December
2024, the carrying values of the Group’s trade receivables
and bills receivables and lease receivables was approximately
US$112,932,000 (2023: US$81,416,000), net of allowance
for impairment losses of approximately US$60,880,000 (2023:
US$60,185,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories. Write-
down is applied to the inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is less
than cost. The determination of net realisable value requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimates, such difference will
impact carrying value of the inventories and write-down on
inventories charged to profit or loss in the period in which
such estimate has been changed. Management reassesses
the estimation at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 December 2024, the carrying value of inventories was
approximately US$37,184,000 (2023: US$39,950,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

©

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had interest in Hua Xia
Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huaxia Hydrogen”) with
carrying amount of approximately US$11,145,000 (2023:
US$12,207,000) which represented approximately 4% (2023:
4%) of the total assets of the Group. Huaxia Hydrogen
is engaged in research and development of electrolysed
water equipment. The Group’s management conducted an
impairment assessment of the interest in Huaxia Hydrogen by
comparing the recoverable amount of the interest in Huaxia
Hydrogen, which were estimated based on value in use
calculation, with the carrying amount.

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in Huaxia Hydrogen, based on the past
performance of Huaxia Hydrogen and the expectations
from the Group’s management for the market development
estimate. The value in use calculation is based on the investor’s
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by Huaxia Hydrogen, based on
certain key assumptions and inputs, namely revenue growth
rates, terminal growth rates, gross profit margin and discount
rate, used to estimate future cash flows. In cases where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
cash flows estimation or discount rate, a further reversal or
material recognition of impairment may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place.

Based on the management’s assessment, no impairment loss
was recognised by the management of the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Ofther impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets may not be
recoverable, these assets may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of assets. When it is determined that indicators
of impairment of a CGU exist, management assesses the value
in use of the CGU by preparing a discounted cash flow forecast
and that value in use is compared with the carrying value of
the CGU to determine if any impairment is required. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amount
may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the assets are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and amount of
operating costs. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets were
approximately US$31,364,000 (2023: US$53,237,000) and
US$1,443,000 (2023:US$1,743,000), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDHHE
(a) Revenue (@) A
(i) Disaggregation of revenue i)y WA
Disaggregation of revenue by major products or service WAREBZEMIRBE 25 HFI0
lines is as follows: N
2024 2023
—EC-E —E =
US$'000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Revenue from contracts ERMBEREERE15HKEER
with customers within RNEFSHRA

the scope of HKFRS 15
Sales of equipment related to land and S8 & Bt R T & 484
offshore drilling rigs and equipments KERSLRERETARK

related to offshore wind power BT 5B A (FsTa)

installation platform and rigs (Note a) 86,068 99,337
Sales of oilfield expendables and supplies #5& i AFEE & ¥RHA & AE 7

and related installation services (Note a)  Z 2 R (ffzFa) 25,755 29,089
Assets management and engineering BEEBRIERBERA

service fee income (Note b) (Ff7ED) 28,801 18,889
Sub-total /Nt 140,624 147,315
Revenue from other sources RE H MR WA

Rental income arising from leasing of DAL EEERE RF*
land and offshore drilling rigs classified ~ #&FFARBEANES

as operating leases WA 494 2,037
Rental income arising from sub-leasing of 9 %8/A4 & & M s MBKY
diving support construction BEmoBELEMNHESIKA
vessels classified as operating leases 24,496 30,825
Gain on sub-leasing of offshore AERBERENEFEST
drilling rigs classified as finance leases anHlA 856 858
Interest income from sub-leasing of AERBERENGFEHFT
offshore drilling rigs classified as AanEMEWA
finance leases 303 302
Sub-total 4y 26,149 34,022
Total A&t 166,773 181,337
Notes: P 5
(@) Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the (@) WHEERFPESHESMNKRS
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service. B 22 ol e Y BE ) B FE R
(b)  Revenue is recognised when the related services are (b) WERIREE BARRTS R IER o
rendered.

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (cContinued)

5. WARTD#M&HE @&

(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (i) WARFE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BEPEHWERIE TS Z DR
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 5(b)(iii). BT 5 5 (o) i) 4 25 o
Information about major customers BHEFEEFEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year RIBEEE  EAEBELRKA10%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group A EMERPIRALT
are as follows:
2024 2023
—ECoE —Eo=4F
US$°000 US$'000
TET F=T
Customer A ERA N/A RiE 4 52,934
Customer B2 = FB? 26,351 N/A i@ e
Customer C3 BEC 26,062 N/A 38 A4
! The revenue is from the reportable segments under g ZWAR B EBRE R AR
equipment manufacturing and packages and supply chain FEFE R SRS TR 2, D P
and integration services.
2 The revenue is from the reportable segments under assets 2 E%BU\X 8 ﬁ%ﬁ@&lﬁﬁﬁ%’?lﬁ
management and engineering services. THZ2HH 5
3 The revenue is from the reportable segments under 2 EZ”&U\XE%%@%&%@@ETE@
equipment manufacturing and packages E®WHE ©
4 The corresponding revenue did not exceed 10% of total 2 MEERATE BN S B AR FE AR
revenue of the Group for the year. A10% °
(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PWFEFERZHBTEANREZ
performance obligation for contracts with X5 E*
customers

(1)  Sales of capital equipment, oilfield expendables and
supplies and windwings
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 and the expected timing

(1) HEELRRE HHEERY
FHA R 2B
W_E_EE&_§::¢+
— A=t HBoEREEHTAT
ﬁ@ﬁaEZx%1&ﬁ%W

of recognising revenue are as follows: ARERBEEIT -
2024 2023
TEDNmEF —T=F
US$'000 US$'000
FTEx F=T
Within one year —FR 94,124 41,485
More than one year BiE—F 3,252 2,669
97,376 44,154

(2) Assets management and engineering services
All the contracts have an original expected duration
of one year or less. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligation for these types of contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (cContinued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

o Equipment
manufacturing and
packages:

e Supply chain and
integration services:

e Assets management and
engineering services:

Design, manufacturing,
installation and commissioning
of equipments related to land
and offshore drilling rigs and
equipments related to offshore
wind power installation
platform and rigs, leasing of
self-owned land drilling rigs,
and manufacturing and sales of
windwings

Provision of supply chain and
integration services in relation
to oilfield expendables and
supplies

Provision of assets
management, engineering
services and sub-leasing of land
and offshore drilling rigs and
diving support construction
vessels
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

()

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of goodwill,
interests in associates, financial assets at FVTOCI, amount
due from CM Industry, pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include all payables and liabilities
attributable to the activities of the individual segment,
with the exception of tax payable and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss
is “segment results” i.e. “adjusted earnings before
finance costs and taxes” of individual segment. To arrive
at segment results, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for finance costs and items not specifically
attributed to individual segment, such as share of results
of associates and a joint venture and other unallocated
head office and corporate income and expenses.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment results, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue), depreciation and amortisation, additions to
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-segment
revenue is priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar orders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

@

5. WARDHHKE®
(b) P EREE)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () APEE BEREEHE)
Information regarding the Group'’s reportable segments REE—T_MEFR_T=_=F1+
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive ZA=+—BHLEFENERIEK
management for the purposes of resource allocation and A BERBERAEE S RITH
assessment of segment performance for the years ended EEANEBRHEEEASEZRSDE
31 December 2024 and 2023 is set out below. WERFHN T & o
Equipment manufacturing Supply chain and Assets management and
and packages integration services engineering services Total
RERERER fEER SRR EEEBRIERE Eh
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
CBIRE| CECCE| ZBO@E| CRCZF| CBIRE| CRoZF| CBo@E| CECCE
Uss'000 US§'000 Uss000 US§'000 Uss000 US§'000 Uss'000 US§'000
i Txn i TEn Txn T*r S e
Revenue from extermal ~ RESMIEF
customers WA 86,562 101,374 25,755 29,089 54,456 50,874 166,773 181,337
Inter-segment revenue AHERA 25,731 52,899 6,249 2,159 408 588 32,3% 56,246
Reportable segment EEGETON
revenue 112,299 154,273 32,004 31,848 54,864 51,462 199,167 237,583
Reportable segment 2R
results 14,601 9,255 2,479 3317 4,226 3,181 21,306 15,753
Depreciation and EMIER
amortisation for the year B 3,920 2922 165 397 9.211 12,390 13,296 15,709
Reportable segment 2EANEE
assets 104,071 110,243 10,561 13,617 88,411 71,554 203,043 201414
Additions to property, plant ~ FRFENE »
and equipment and B Rk fEb R
intangble assets during BVAE
the year 1478 1497 9 151 159 48,484 9,081 50,132
Reportable segment 2RANEE
liabilities (56,025) (72,148) (2,683) (3913) (64,326) (65,046) (123,034) (141,107)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

5. WARZB&E @
(b) 7S (&

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (iy E/MIIWA - £EF BEERERS
results, assets and liabilities ZHER
2024 2023
—ECoE —Eo=F
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue WA WA 199,167 237,583
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  ¥f$5% ZBEULA (32,394) (56,246)
Consolidated revenue (note 5(a)(i)) “RE WA (B EES(a))) 166,773 181,337
Results E
Segment results DEPFEE 21,306 15,753
Finance costs BT RRAR (80) (123)
Share of results of associates VAN (i /NG E (1,893) (78)
Share of results of a joint venture DiE—EEERRIERA - (2)
Unallocated head office and corporate AP A 423 =5z KA A
income and expenses A R (7,173) (1,595)
Consolidated profit before taxation B A% AT AR A Vg 12,160 13,955
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets EWMDBEE 203,043 201,414
Goodwill P 362 389
Interests in associates NN s 15,349 16,497
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRATEEFARMER
Wz eMEE 1,648 5,422
Amount due from CM Industry FEUW IR T 3k18 = 16,569
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 759 5,457
Cash and cash equivalents He MEeEEY 84,100 73,366
Deferred tax assets BEHIEEE 1,647 1,854
Tax recoverable CIEqEERE 15 146
Unallocated head office and corporate KD ECAPERE M AREE
assets 3,447 5,187
Consolidated total assets A BEEE 310,370 326,301
Liabilities =0
Reportable segment liabilities EWRHBEE 123,034 141,107
Tax payable eI A I8 3,223 4,284
Unallocated head office and corporate AP E4ARER R AR EE
liabilities 4,866 5,086
Consolidated total liabilities A BERE 131,123 150,477

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii)y Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, goodwill,
intangible assets, interests in associates, financial assets
at FVTOCI and non-current portion of prepayments
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location of the
customers. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated , in the case of goodwill and
intangible assets, and the location of operations, in the
case of interests in associates, financial assets at FVTOCI
and non-current portion of prepayments.

Revenue from external

5 WARK

2 EBEE ()

(b) ZEHE =
(iil) HEER

TRINBBEROARERE SRR
Pz RONAEENYE - BE
k& REWE BE - BWE
E - RBEARNER  HAFE
Bt ARMEHEEENSREER
BB Y 2 BN R (R EFFREE
EDNEMENER - RPAMIE
NENEFPMEMERERE - #5E
FRBDEENMBUENEENE
MULBERERGIME - BE RRE
MEBEWEMS) - Ao RH EE&E
WwHAERGIRERENEEMS)
RIAFEBS R A ETE (R B E QB
Mz BAFEESAHEMER
WaEn 2 EERBMNKZIEEIH

HAME) -

Specific non-current

customers assets

RENBEFBA EEFRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
11 3 ZE-=F | ZBE-NE | ZEZ=F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER T FERT F=x

Hong Kong Special BEBEERITHE

Administrative Region 45 36 2,635 606
Mainland China R B A 78,879 116,921 29,826 34,546
North America Jb=E 5,205 4,914 1,477 1,683
South America EES 46,113 17,738 444 432
Europe BOM 2,649 3,831 74 5,361
Singapore 7N 229 13,195 17,185 36,864
Indonesia ENE eI 1,046 2 = =
Middle East R 29,687 20,097 1 =
Others HAtb 2,920 4,603 = =
166,773 181,337 51,642 79,492
SEoNEFER - EEERNERGERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 6. HMWA - W REEFHE
2024 2023
—E-NF —ET-=
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx F=rx
Bank interest income RITHFEUA 1,400 1,961
Finance income from lease receivables TH & FEWGR B BSUA 224 626
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain P& 5 (B518) a5 58 (1,194) 74
Government grant (Note) R AT 78 B (Bt 3) 44 460
Rental income HERA 262 487
Gain arising from early termination of HiRFRIERABHEEEEN W
existing lease (note 12(c)) (FFE12(0) 1,082 62
Others Hitp 914 537
2,732 4,207
Note: In 2024 and 2023, government grant includes subsidy income received Mz : RZZT_NFER-ZT=F ' BA#HDITE
from the municipal and provincial governments in the Mainland China 5 B B P i ) T RO WE Y i R A
to incentivise the enterprises to improve their technology and create LA 25 B 1 2 SO BT I A AN 5 B A & P AE A
more value to the industry in which the Group operates. TREEE S EE -
There were no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to % B B I AR B A R R M IR R S B Ah SRR
these grants. =S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRBLANRR
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging (crediting): B 75 B s A4S F0BR (GEA) TFIEIR -
2024 2023
=g —TE-=F
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
(a) Finance costs (a) BIBERA
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 1,603 2,538
Interest on consideration ERREEE ZF S (MFE27)
payable (note 27) 29 30
1,632 2,568
Less: Interest on lease liabilities relating B T AHE KA E S
to sub-leasing of leased BFEHTE
offshore drilling rigs included in BEMEEBERNS
costs of sales (559) (558)
Interest on lease liabilities relating AT ASEE AN K LR A
to leased vessels included Ml EEHNEEaRE
in costs of sales B (993) (1,887)
80 123
2024 2023
—E-NE =%
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FEx
(b) Staff costs (included directors’ (b) EERF(BEEEM<
emoluments (note 9)) (F$3E9))
Contribution to defined contribution M) B EFR IR EIEL A
retirement plans R 1,237 1,181
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMETR 23,075 19,251
24,312 20,432

CTECNFFR - EEHERNEROBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

7. BRBiANER (&

2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
US$’000 Us$'000
T FEr
(c) Other items (c) HigH
Depreciation charge (note 12(a)) weEBAMFiE12a)
 Investment properties o REWZE 201 205
e Owned plant and s HAWER
equipment B 3,380 2,679
e Right-of-use assets s (FREEE 9,777 13,296
13,358 16,180
Cost of inventories FERA
e Carrying amount of inventories s EEFENEEE
sold 122,094 124,981
e Write-down of inventories o TFEMUR = 576
122,094 125,557
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH

(note 14) (Fi5E14) 254 147
Impairment losses under expected TR EEBIBEXTH

credit loss model, net of reversal RE 18 (FBRHE D)

(note 31(b)) (P 3E31(b)) 1,257 2,274
Research and development costs HERFEER 5,652 5,776
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR

plant and equipment E518 (=) 208 (10)
Gain arising on early termination of FiRRRIEREHEEEAD

existing lease (note 12(c)) Wezs (B EE12(c) (1,082) (62)
Auditors’ remuneration (Note) Gl EAC )

— the Company’s auditor — AR A EAD 306 306

Note: The statutory accounts of the Group’s subsidiaries in overseas and the
PRC have been audited by other firms in which their remuneration
were not included in the auditors’ remuneration as disclosed above.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FiSBipx
(a) An analysis of income tax expense is as follows: () FrIiSBiBEXMaaOT :
2024 2023
—E-NE —E—=
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=x
Current taxation B ERBE 1R
Provision for the year FREE
e The PRC enterprise income tax o HEIMEFMSH 1,800 2,246
e Overseas corporation income tax o BIMREFTISH 1,108 2,826
2,908 5,072
Under (over) provision in respect BEFERETE (BREEE)
of prior years 20 (298)
2,928 4,774
Deferred taxation BEEBE
Origination of temporary difference ELTREERE (M E26)
(note 26) 38 (428)
2,966 4,346
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the statutory HE_Z-_WE+_A=+—HIF
tax rate in the PRC is 25% (2023: 25%) and certain PRC B REEEMRER2%(ZE =4 :
subsidiaries, were accredited as high-tech enterprises are 25%)  METHERBATERT AS
subject to tax at a reduced rate of 15% (2023: 15%) under iR - RIRA B R BB A ROR
the relevant PRC tax rules and regulations. BIREFARBTEI5%(ZFEZ=F : 15%)
O
The Group’s subsidiary operated in Mexico is subject to tax at RNEB ST L L EE M B R R R R
a rate of 30% (2023: 30%) under the relevant Mexico rules BREEAT GO RERRBTEI% (ZF
and regulations. T =5 30%)BF o
Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at REMFEEENBRRRIERE S
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant AVEEEMIRTEE R R E -
jurisdictions.
Withholding tax on chartering services income are charged at HERBUWA 2 BTy B AE B R R
10% by relevant countries under their local legislation. HE AR R10%UER

—TomEsR - EHERNERGERAT 223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

8.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(b) The tax charge for the year can be reconciled

8. FRf

SHiX @

(b) FEBEAXHEGEBRBERIITZE

to the profit before taxation per the consolidated BADRFE RO T -
statement of profit or loss as follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
US$'000 US$'000
FXx FEx
Profit before taxation B 5 A g A 12,160 13,955
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRAT AR A B A IE
calculated at the rates applicable to RERAERIAERERF,
profit/loss in the jurisdictions BRERNTXE
concerned 862 1,965
Tax effect of share of results of associates D HE & N B EE N TS5 £ 473 20
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] F07 I Sz M9 Bl 765 57 28
tax purpose 2,274 1,150
Tax effect of income not taxable FEMERTRIMA BT 5o &
for tax purpose (898) (498)
Additional tax deduction for research and A3 B st 2 B SN IE F3
development expenses (786) (800)
Utilisation of tax losses previously RS RI AR FER A AR E A
not recognised HIEEE (1,495) (685)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIEE BN R IE 2
recognised 1,780 499
Tax effect of recognition/utilisation of TR /@jﬁﬁf‘ﬁﬁuﬂiﬁ@? R
previously unrecognised temporary ARG E
differences (92) 592
Withholding tax on foreign sourced FORIGINZ WA 2 TEHEL
income 828 2,401
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERETE BREER) 20 (298)
Income tax expense BIEEHZE3 2,966 4,346
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

9. EXM=

RIFBA LR R REE R BMEOIIRERARF
ENEERERETRABNMESIT

Compensation for
Salaries, allowancesand  Retirement scheme termination of
Directors' fees henefits in kind contributions service of directors Total
EL g6 2RREONG BIGHEAR RLEZRE AR 3t
2024 023 2024 023 2024 003 2024 023 2024 013
1 e 1 o e 1 2 e e e
USS'000 | USS'000 | USS'000 | US$'000 | USS'000 | US§'000 | USS000 | US§'000 | US§'000 | US§000
TR | TEn | TEn | TEn | TEn | TEn | TR | TEn | TR | TEn

yEs:

EEBSE(N-ECZEZA-TIA
ERfEHEERN -5 -2F
NA=ThRETEHTESRE
ZiERERHAE) (R s = 30 3 1 f ° = b)) 9

SRR -F-ZEZA-1RA
ERfiagRaAs -2 -2F
NAZthEEf) = S = = = > = = = S

Executive directors:

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (appoint as non-executive director
on 24 March 2023, and re-designated as executive
director and appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
29 August 2023) (Note)

Mr. Yu Zhiang (appointed as Chief Executive Offcer
on 24 March 2023, and resigned on 29 August 2023)

Independent non-executive directors: BusdfEs:
. Xue Janzhong (appointed on 2 March 2024)  ERFRER=FRE

SA-t-RERD) 1 - = - = - o o 11 -
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024) RERT(W-R-ME

ZA-toREER) 1 - - - - - - = 1 -
Mr. Chan NgaiSang, Kenny (iesigned on 5 uy2024) R RE(R-F-RELATRER) 8 15 - - - - - - 8 15
Mr. Zou Zhendong BhRLE 15 15 2 - = - o = 15 15
. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024) — RER AR -F-1E

ZA-t-BER) 5 15 - - - - - - 5 15
M. Sun Dongchang (resigned on 23 November 2023~ BRERA(R=F==%

T-A=T=REH) - 14 - - - - - - - 1
Non-executive directors: FUTEE:
Mr. Tam Wing Tim (appointed on 29 August 2023) ~ BRARE(R-F==%

M= TARERR) - -m - 2 - - - -

R et
t-A=t=REEH) = - - - - - - - - -
BRERE(\-T-=%=f-1NB
BEEEITESRERARNIE
UR-B-mE=A--RBE
FifEs) = - 155 310 1 3 20 - 369 313
REERE(N-B-ZFZR-1RA

Mrr. Zhang Xizheng (appointed on 23 November 2023)

r. Jiang Binghua (re-designated as non-executive
director and resigned as Chief Executive Officer on
24 March 2023, and resiqned on 22 March 2024)

r. Zhang Menggui, Morgan (re-designated as

non-eecuie director on 24 March 2023) AERES) = o IO 1 3 = o 3
M. Wang Jinzhong (resigned on 5 Juy 2024) TRAGEN B mELRRARE) 5 5 - - - - - - 5 5
Mr.Liu Jancheng Yeait - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. el Xianzhi (appointed as chairman on Ly e St 3

29 August 2003) NAZThERZEALER) = - > - = - > - 2 -

55 i 813 13 8 ] 200 - 1,156 19
Note: Mr. Zhan Huafeng is chief executive of the Company, and his Bt : BEELEARNDAEREITHRAR  MEX

emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the Chief Executive of the Company.

BRENEHSBRERIE/ETAREETHA
SRRRERBOME -

CTECNFFR - EEHERNEROBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

9.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, certain
directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments. For details, please refer to the “Director’s Service
Contracts” under the “Report of the Directors”.

No amount was paid or payable during both years to directors or
the Chief Executive as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group.

Apart from Mr. Jiang Binghua who has received compensation of
approximately US$200,000 for his loss of office as non-executive
director on 22 March 2024, no compensation was paid or payable
during both years to other directors, past directors or the Chief
Executive for the loss of office as a director or the Chief Executive
of any member of the Group or of any other office in connection
with the management of the affairs of any member of the Group
distinguishing between contractual payments and other payments.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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IEFE  ETFBARAZEZTREXRERERS
MM BEBAFE  F2HESSREIETY
[EEREEL -

HRFEERE IR - BmAE BN ERITRAS
SUET Gl RO EPIPE S EFIDPN
758 B 2D

BREFEAEN _ZE_NE=A=-+=-H%
FIEEITE SR WEX49200,0003 T B (8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2023:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2023:

REHAL

AEELUGEEHALT = (CF_=F:
M) REE - EMERHEIORE - X HE&%
MAL(ZEBEZ=F: =) &EeF ATHHELE

three) individuals are as follows: BEAFBWT
2024 2023
—ETomE —T==F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other emoluments e REMAMS 545 672
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE R 46 31
591 703

The emoluments of the remaining two (2023: three) individuals with

BTIMAL(CTE =5 : =) &= H A LB

the highest emoluments are within the following bands: SN FATEE :
2024 2023
—EB-NE —E=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,8 7 £ 2,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FHEM%193,001F =
US$193,001 to US$258,000) 258,000 L)
(2023: US$192,001 to US$255,000) (ZE==%F : 192,001 TE
255,000%7T) 1 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FBE M #)258,001 T E
US$258,001 to US$322,000) 322,000 L)
(2023: US$255,001 to US$319,000) (ZZE =% : 255,001
%319,000%7T) - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T £ 3,000,0007% 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FBE M #322,0015TE
US$322,001 to US$386,000) 386,000%7T)
(2023: US$319,001 to US$383,000) (ZZ==% :319,001% T
Z383,00037T) 1 =

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

Bt 75 R 2R MY

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

10.

11.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

No amount was paid or payable to the five highest paid employees
during both years as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group. Apart from Mr. Jiang Binghua who has received
compensation of approximately US$200,000 for his loss of office as
non-executive director on 22 March 2024 (note 9), no compensation
was paid or payable to other highest paid employees during both
years for the loss of any office in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group distinguishing between
contractual payments and other payments.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately

10. BEFA L@

11.

RMEFEHRE  BEALEREHES
SHIENFRIA - AERTSI IAASE B R IAT
EEENER BRERELER-_T_HF
ZAZ T ZAKREFNITERBAMUKLERL

200,000 ST 5 & (P 3E9) 41 - 1A W 8 < £ 58
B BREHNREEMNRI - AEEBERL
HEttZxmHEEAEZHERRERERKER
GIER N ok= ) VAR o R N A RN
BREF

(a) BREFXEF

BRERBAIZARBREE AREEL
9,160,000% 7T (ZF = =% : 9,502,000

(b)

US$9,160,000 (2023: US$9,502,000) and the weighted FEor) RERNB EHT SRR NE T HE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year FEAT -
calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERONINEFEH
2024 2023
—E-NEF —T =4
‘000 ‘000
F & &
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BREETEER 3,243,434 3,243,434
Effect of shares held for share award FER (D SR Bt BRI AR D o &
scheme (including the effect of share (BIERER DSB8 FTi%
granted under share award scheme) Bin K 2) (70,499) (70,499)
Weighted average number of ordinary RtZA=+—AMEEK
shares at 31 December pillkz RSkt 3,172,935 3,172,935
Diluted earnings per share (b) EREFTER
Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share AR EBITEIINBEEE S L AR - W

for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 because
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding.

* Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

12. 1% - BERRBEUARREWE

(a) Movement (o) 25
Land and
buildings
held for Other Office Leased diving
own use properties  equipment, support
and leasehold leased for ~ furniture and Plant and Motor  construction Investment
improvements own use fitures ~ machinery vehicles vessels Subtotal ~ properties Total
BEEAZ HAERE
HHREFR EhER  GARER HHEK
HENR%H L %8 HERER it X5 it LS it
US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 Us§000 US$'000 US$'000
T i SEI i SEI i e i i
Cost A
At 1 January 203 N-5-=%-5-A 0437 480 133% 21,664 1514 - 55,772 419 5991
Bxchange adjustments EiE 1) () (16) (258) ) = 174 91) (865)
Acquisiton of a usiness (note 27) WE-EEE(IRD) = = 2 57 = = 8 = 8
Additons AE - 3% 103 il 9% 48,006 09433 - 49433
Disposals/termintion /B (12) (2585) (510) (23%) (85) - (5.530) - (5530)
At 31 December 2023 R-BZZF+ZR=1-H 19994 2589 1538 19349 1498 48,006 98,974 4,108 103,082
Bichange acjusiments EfiE (486) ) (134) (485) (3 o (1183) (19) (1300
Additions HE 159 434 336 9 58 11m 9,088 - 9,088
Disposalermination e /KL - - (339) (667) (89) (.19 (24814) ® (2481)
At 31 December 2024 NZBZMETZA=1-A 20,267 2919 7401 18,526 1433 31459 82,065 3989 86,054
Accumulated depreciation and Bt fERAEES
impairment losses
At 1 January 2023 N-5-=%-5-A 10,399 2,100 6,%0 14247 1,162 - 34,868 2647 37515
Exchange adjustments 3 (326) ) (15) (230) (17) = (608) (60) (668)
Charge forthe year (note 7(c) Eurtaltial) 834 86 7 1635 108 1233 15,975 05 16,180
Wiitten back on disposalfermination ~~ HER B /#1t (12) (163) (478) (2297 1) = 44%9) = (£.49%)
At 31 December 2023 WNZBZEZA=1-A 10,89 1333 6,041 13,35 1175 12338 5737 279 48529
Exchange adjustments 35 (300) ) (109) (326) @ = (184) ®) (826)
Charge forthe year (note 7(c) Fmz Q) 79 621 I 23% 113 9,085 13,157 201 13,358
Writen back on disposalfermination ~~ HERF & /81 - = (150) (253) (88) (6918) (7.409) ® (7409)
At 31 December 2024 N METZA=1-A 113% 1921 6,585 15112 1178 14,505 50,701 2951 53,652
Cartying amounts Baf
At31 December 2024 RZBCRETZA=1-H 8873 1052 816 34 25 16,954 31364 1038 3240
At 31 December 2023 O S gy ] 9,09 125 897 59% n 35,668 53237 1316 54553

CTECNFFR - EEHERNEROBERAT




230

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

)

Movement (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line
method after taking into account of their estimated residual
values at the following useful lives:

o Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years
after the date of completion.

o Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

e The Group's interests in buildings situated on leasehold
land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 40 years after the date of completion.

o Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease or 5 years.

. Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 =5 years
e  Plant and machinery 3 =20 years
° Motor vehicles 5 years
o Leased diving support construction vessels Over the

term of lease

o Investment properties 20 years
Fair value of investment properties

As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties located in Mainland China is
approximately US$2,310,000 (2023: US$3,850,000). The fair
value is determined by an independent valuer which has staff
who hold recognised and relevant professional qualification
and have experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued, using market approach
by reference to the transaction price per square metre of
comparable properties. The fair value measurement of these
investment properties is categorised into level 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 12. Y% - BERRBURKRENE 5

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (c) EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by REEEERNNERAEEENREFE
class of underlying asset is as follows: AL
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
NOTES US$’000 Us$'000
P & Tt FEr
Ownership interests in leasehold land A&+~ Fra g (i) 1,781 1,846
Leased diving support TEFBKT M
construction vessels (ii) 16,954 35,668
Other properties leased for own use ~ TAERFEE A 2 H % (iii) 1,052 1,256
19,787 38,770

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised RERBERANHEEBEAHIEBA TN

in profit or loss is as follows: N
2024 2023
—EMNE —ET—=
US$'000 Us$'000
FERT FET
Depreciation/amortisation charge of RAERAE E S BIE D H(E B
right-of-use assets by class of BEMITE MHER
underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land RIRE Tz PTE R 71 72
Leased diving support construction vessels & 88 50& 7K S #5 # 9,085 12,338
Other properties leased for own use MERREREMYE 621 886
9,777 13,296
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a)) HAEaEH S FE7E) 1,603 2,538

GEE
()  REfEEARELBRIERY FARES

RZE—WOER=T=_=F+=A=1+—
B ANEERBARAMRPBEBEZTH
—lE L RAIRE S THMIE L ERL
BEEA %St REE D 5%
BE-_TRAF  —TONFER_ZFTAN
£ o BIRAMER —RERM KA BERTE
HEAMEZS mERS - BRETA

ERRBAREMNK -

Notes:

(i) Ownership interests in leasehold land

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the subsidiaries of Group are
the registered owners of one land located in Xian City and two
lands located in Qingdao City, the PRC which the land use rights
have been granted up to 2055, 2048 and 2058, respectively.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these land
interests from the previous registered owners, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the land
leases.

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Leased diving support construction vessels

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the
Group has entered into lease agreements with the subsidiaries
of CM Industry, for leasing of two diving support construction
vessels namely Picasso and Lichtenstein at a charter rate of
US$26,000 each per day for three years.

In 2024, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement
with a subsidiary of CM Industry, the lessor of the diving
support construction vessels namely Lichtenstein, pursuant to
which the relevant parties agreed for having the charter rate
increased from US$26,000 to US$42,000 for the remaining of
the lease term. On the date of lease modifications, the Group
recognised additional right-of-use assets of approximately
US$7,172,000 and additional lease liabilities of approximately
US$7,172,000, and there are no gains or losses arising on such
lease modifications.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered
into termination deeds with a subsidiary of CM Industry, the
lessor of the diving support construction vessels namely Picasso,
pursuant to which the relevant parties agreed to the early
termination of the lease contract for one of the diving support
construction vessels namely Picasso. On the date of termination
of existing lease, the Group derecognised right-of-use assets
with carrying value of approximately US$16,801,000 and lease
liabilities with carrying value of approximately US$17,883,000,
and recognised a gain arising on lease modification of
approximately US$1,082,000 in “other income, gains and losses,
net”.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its
office premises and warehouses through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10 years, none
of the leases include variable lease payments.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group early
terminated the leases for offices and derecognised right-of-
use assets with carrying value of approximately US$952,000
and lease liabilities with carrying value of approximately
US$1,014,000, resulting in a gain on termination of lease of
approximately US$62,000 being recognised in “other

income, gains and losses, net”.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of
lease liabilities are set out in notes 33 and 25, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(d)

C)

®)

12. W% BMERRKEURBREYE®)

Assets leased out under operating leases d) REHEEBETHEZEE
The Group leases out its investment properties and certain AEEBRBEEHEHBEREMERS
equipment and vessels under operating leases. The leases TERERMNM ZFHE—RTT RH3
typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 10 years, with A AZE105F - REIBIRZEEEEN - ™
an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all [ERFTE IR R EXHE - IEHRES
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable SR BB -
lease payments.
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating DA HEEE EHE 2 R HEE R R E
leases that will be receivable as follows: T HA R AR
2024 2023
—EmE —E-=F
US$'000 Us$'000
FERT FET
Within 1 year 1F A 29,605 15,509
After 1 year but within 2 years 1824 7,460 265
After 2 years but within 3 years 2E3F 233 239
After 3 years but within 4 years 3E4F 214 239
After 4 years but within 5 years 4E 55 - 239
37,512 16,491
Assets pledged as security for its banking facilities (e) ﬁEE?EE#FﬂEE% HIBTME 2 ER
As at 31 December 2024, the Group's investment properties RZZBZMOE+—A=+—0  A£HK
with carrying amount of approximately US$1,038,000 were ﬁ%’ﬂ,O38,OOO%7EE’\J&§¢%%EEHEF
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities of ERAREELNANRE24,270,0007T (FHE
approximately RMB24,270,000 (equivalent to approximately 73’\%’73 325,000% ) (ZT =4 : f)H)
US$3,325,000) (2023: Nil). The aforesaid banking facilities was RITHEER - THRITRENR T
unutilised as at 31 December 2024. i‘f‘_ﬁl =+—HHEKRHA -
Others (f) Hft

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 amounted to approximately US$7,606,000
(2023: US$48,402,000), which was mainly arise from
lease modifications for its existing lease for diving support
construction vessels namely Lichtenstein amounting to
approximately US$7,172,000 and entering into lease
agreements for offices amounting to approximately
US$434,000 (2023: due to entering into lease agreements for
offices amounting to approximately US$396,000 and its diving
support construction vessels namely Lichtenstein and Picasso
amounting to approximately US$48,006,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor.

TECNFEFR

FAEEERABEHEZE T _NF+_A=
+—HIEFE 447,606,000k T (ZF =
=4F : 48,402,000%7m) F FEFAHHER
BHEERFEKZ M S EEATE SR T
IR EE R FTEE47,172,000% 7T & 5]
SN E M E R FTE A #£)434,0003% T
FI(ZE==F: BIuMLA=HER
R FTE L 49396,0003 T K2 7] 32 E £ AN
IKE MR A AT SR R ENRRHEE R
ST 4948,006,000% TTATE) - FAE
T ELHHAAFENEEEERINT
BEZ0

c EFHHERANRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

13. GOODWILL 13. &
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=5F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Cost DN
At 1 January n—AR—H 389 =
Acquisition of a business (note 27) W iE — I 2 75 (M1 3E27) = 389
Exchange adjustments EH TR (27) -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 362 389
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BLEE
Technical Computer Customer
knowledge software relationship Total
HP B
b1 B EG EFBRF st
UsS$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
F=r F=r F=r F=r
Cost B
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=%—H—H 1,021 1,277 - 2,298
Acquisition of Wi —THER
a business (note 27) (F3527) = = 763 763
Exchange adjustments B i, 39 % - (70) ) (77
Disposal & - (194) - (194)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBE_=F+_H=1+—H 1,021 1,013 756 2,790
Exchange adjustments B i 39 % - (5) (53) (58)
Additions NE - 5 = 5
At 31 December 2024 R-E_MFE+_A=1+—H 1,021 1,013 703 2,737
Accumulated amortisation Rt #ERBESE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2023 R=ZFE==F—HA—H 1,150 = 1,159
Exchange adjustments BE 5 SR - (65) - (65)
Charge for the year FRLH 102 45 = 147
Written back on disposal HE D = (194) = (194)
At 31 December 2023 R-E_=F+_A=1—H 111 936 - 1,047
Exchange adjustments BE S - (1) (6) (7)
Charge for the year FRLH 102 41 111 254
At 31 December 2024 R-E_MF+_A=1—H 213 976 105 1,294
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-WNE+-A=+—H 808 37 598 1,443
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+-A=+—H 910 77 756 1,743

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024




14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following period:

o Computer software 2 — 10 years
e  Technical knowledge 5—-10 years
e Customers relationship 10 years

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is
allocated to individual CGUs (being a subsidiary, engaging in
supplying of industrial equipment and services to the drilling,
mining, heavy equipment and power generation industries
("Industrial Equipment Business”). The CGUs represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.

4. B EE®)
it AR T I HART R B e B g

o  FEH 2-104F
o EPIRlTANGE 5-104F
o XKFHE 104

15. BEREERR

REBREARNE  BENIEEEMNRES
EAEMG (At EREST - Rk - BRRENRE
BITRRHIERBERRE(TEREBEKD
B EAR) - RAREARATERME - B
TELBEVNBERHENRERZER

2024 2023

—E-mEF ZE=F

US$'000 Us$'000

FXx FEx

Industrial Equipment Business THERBF 362 389
In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment, right- R EMEEIN - RENETES - EERER
of-use assets and intangible assets that generate cash flows together ENME  BERSE FREEERERE

with the related goodwill are also included in the respective CGU for
the purpose of impairment assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the recoverable amount
of this unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period, and
discount rate of 14.39% (2023: 15.68%). Industrial Equipment
Business’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.54% (2023: 2.49%) growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and
gross profit margin, such estimation is based on management’s
expectations for the market development.

Based on the results of the above assessment evaluated by
independent professionally qualified valuers, the Group determines
that there is no impairment on goodwill as at 31 December 2024
and 2023. The recoverable amount is higher than its carrying
amounts. Management believed that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not result in impairment.

EERAERETTASREELEM

HEZZ-_WNF+A=1+—HILFE  Z&E
MMT%@$$Emﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁi Z

AEREEEE A RERAFTH B HE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ$m§ﬁm&%ﬁfm3wﬂf7f
=4 :15.68%) c TERFEEBRAFENR S
MENFH2.54% (ZT==%F : 2.49%)8IIZE
R EEE - FAEBEFENEMERER
RBEERA/ L2 ERREHEEER
EREME MZEFREEEEEMISER
RTEERED -

RIBBL B XA B R GERM G Ld T E 4
ROAEERER _FT_MOER_FT_=F+
“AET—HOEETERE - IREeES
E"EE%ETE g %ﬁ%f‘mﬁ Tﬂ S%%fﬁfz%ﬁﬂ’ﬂ&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

16. RKY B F 2

TEZMBA

AREWT ¢

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Equity interest
Name of company and operation registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
NAER ML R BETR rEE TEXK
REER BEEMEANFE FE1h R A
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=%
Emer International Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
REERERA 5 2,000,000 100% 100% BREER
TSC Oil and Gas Services PRC RMB 120,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Group Holdings Ltd.** oilfield expendables and
("TSC (Qingdao)”) supplies
EEREHREHREEE HE ARE 100% 100% BUEREEMHEEERYH
BRAF(TSC(ES))) 120,000,0007T
TSC-HHCT (Xian) Control PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading rig
Technologies Limited #* electrical control system
("TSC-HHCT")
TR T (P 22) ¥ 3y H AR#50,000,0007T 100% 100% SLEREEERSERR
AR AR (ITSC-HHCT)
TSC Manufacturing and Supply USA US$28,529,900 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
LLC ("TSC M&S") oilfield expendables and
supplies and provision of rig
turnkey solutions
TSC Manufacturing and Supply xH 28,529,900 7T 100% 100% EEEHTAERERS E%%é&
LLC ([TSC M&S)) DR RREEREET
Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment ~ PRC RMB279,379,801 100% 100%  Manufacturing of rig equipment
Co., Ltd.** ("TSCOE") and provision of rig turnkey
solutions
BEERREIORREARLR  PH AR#279,379,8017T 100% 100% SLEREBEESTFARER
(ITsCoE) REEREDTR
Zhengzhou TSC Offshore PRC RMB32,400,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Equipment Co., Ltd. #* rig equipment
("ZZOE")
MR EFABEBRRAR> & AR #32,400,0007T 100% 100% HEREZEFTERE
(fzzoE))
TSC Offshore China Limited** PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
(“TSC China") oilfield expendables
T REBHREEFOMER h AR%10,000,0007 100% 100% EBEEFTFARBIHARE
HR 2 E*([TSC Chinal)

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

* Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RMtB AT 2= &

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Equity interest
Name of company and operation registered capital  attributable to the Group  Principal activity
NI AL BT BRITR r5E TEXK
RS HEIMERNFE ik
2024 2023
—EomE —To=F
TSC Canada (Note) Canada CAD2,000,000 45% 45%  Supplying of industrial
equipment and services to
the drilling, mining, heavy
equipment and power
generation industries
TSC Canada (fff#) IEYN 2,000,000/07C 45% 45% REF - RE - BERRER
BETERETERERRS
TSC Engineering Limited United Kingdom GBP1 100% 100%  Design and manufacturing
of mechanical handling
equipment, trading of oilfield
expendables and supplies and
provision of engineering
services
TSC Engineering Limited il 158 100% 100%  EX&r REUEHMERSRE -
BEEHEEERIEAR
RETERSE
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited Singapore 10,000 shares of 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
1 Singapore Dollar oilfield expendables
(SG$) each and supplies, provisions of
management and engineering
services and leases of vessels
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited 7 I03 10,000f% & H {E 100% 100% EEEFTAREHARER
THT A T WMEARAREETR R
(Eiip b)) TERH
ol gl
TSC Offshore Corporation Mexico - 100% 100%  Sub-leasing of offshore drilling
rigs
TSC Offshore Corporation Ry - 100% 100% PRGFEFTA
TSC Industria Manufatureira, Brazil Brazil Real 100% 100%  Trading of oilfield expendables
Comercio e Servicos em 1,800,000 and supplies and provision of
Petroleo LTDA engineering services
TSC Industria Manufatureira, i 1,800,000 100% 100% EEHARE RDHAR
Comercio e Servicos em BREEEH RETERS

Petroleo LTDA

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up
Name of company and operation registered capital

DREE MR B EBRTK
RB&HE HREMERHFEE

16. R B QR 2@

Equity interest

attributable to the Group  Principal activity

BN FEXK
3352
2024 2023

—ECME —T-=F

China Merchants TSC Offshore PRC RMB530,000,000
Tech Ltd.#*

ERRAREF R (IH &E H AR#530,000,0007%
BRAR

TSC Manufacturing and Mexico -
Supply LLC

TSC Manufacturing and = a -
Supply LLC

100% 100%  Research and development and
sale of offshore wind power
related equipment, research
and development and sale of
offshore engineering

equipment
100% 100% & LR ESHEREEETERHEE
B TREGTERHE
100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and

oilfield expendables and
supplies and provision of rig
turnkey solutions

100% 100% EEEFFARBIOBARER
WERRREREERR

Note: According to the memorandum of association, the Group has the
ability to appoint three out of three directors to the board of directors
of TSC Canada as the other substantial shareholders of TSC Canada
act in concert with the Group. This grants the Group the authority to
control TSC Canada. As a result, TSC Canada has been accounted for
as a subsidiary of the Group.

u Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises.
* The English name is for identification purpose only.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities as at
31 December 2024 and 2023.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

17. REFE DN F 2 EH

2024 2023

—EopE ==

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FE=T

Share of net assets JE(REESE 15,349 16,497

The Group had interests in the following material associates:

AEBERTHERBEAFPHEAZR -

Form of Place of
business establishment Equity interest
Name of associate structure and business attributable to the Group Principal activity
HIR A%
BENRAR ERERES  EXNE ik TEEH
2024 2023
“ECME | ZEBEZ=f
Jiangsu Modern Shipbuilding Technology ~ Establishment PRC 36% 36%  Provision of professional
Co., Ltd.* ("Jiangsu Modern”) (Note a) technical services on
shipbuilding solutions
TEHRREMRITER A i H 36% 36% REFHEMBATENER
(NI&ARRK]) (FizTa) AR
CMIC Yiho Hydrogen Energy (Shenzhen)  Establishment PRC 40% 40%  Manufacturing of equipment of
Co., Ltd.* ("CMIC Yiho") (Note b) hydrogen refueling station
E@ARSERYINRHER AR i M 40% 40% SEMTURE
(R R AL (HizEh)
Huaxia Hydrogen* (Note c) Establishment PRC 42% 42%  Research and development of
electrolysed water equipment
ZET (M) i M 42% 42%  FREEEKRME

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

* RXATEERESG

ERIHEERRIBYEREBLERRFE

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the share of results of
associates for the year or constitute a substantial portion of the
Group's interests in associates. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

EEIBUARERB L R EREBERNBS
27«!&%@%%%‘%”&7 EERRIIHEMEBER
AFHE gTRERBESILE -

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group acquired additional 11% equity interest
of Jiangsu Modern at a consideration of approximately US$352,000.
The aforesaid acquisition transaction was completed in 2023, and the
Group's effective interest in Jiangsu Modern increased from 25% to
36%.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the
Group has entered into a capital injection agreement with CMIC
Yiho which it has agreed to make capital injection of approximately
RMB10,000,000. The Group's interest in CMIC Yiho remain unchanged
at 40%. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the aforesaid capital
contribution amounting to approximately RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$1,370,000) and RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$1,403,000) was unpaid and was included under
other payable.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the
Group has entered into a capital injection agreement with Huaxia
Hydrogen which it agreed to make capital injection of approximately
RMB58,190,000 and the Group's interest in Huaxia Hydrogen
increased from 33% to 42%. As at 31 December 2024, the aforesaid
capital contribution amounting to approximately RMB10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1,370,000) (2023: RMB58,190,000
(equivalent to approximately US$8,164,000)) was unpaid and was
included under other payable. In February 2025, subsequent to the
end of the reporting period the Group has fully settled the remaining
capital contribution amounting to approximately RMB10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1,370,000).

The financial year end dates of the above associates are the same as
that of the Group.

The Group's equity holdings in the associates comprise of equity
holding held through certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. All the above associates have been accounted for using
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

17. REFE DR 2 & (@)
(o) ¥BERMEHK

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of summarised financial
information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amounts of the Group'’s interests in

PiT 251 B 75 & KL 22 B AN £ [ 0B 8 R )
ZHEmZ REEZ Bk -

associates.
Huaxia Hydrogen Other immaterial associates Total
EESH HitFEAREAT b
At31 At 31 At31 At31 At31 At31
December December December December December December
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
RoB-WE | RZTZ=F | R-B-WE | WZZZZF | ROB-ME | RZTZ=F
t=A=+-R |tZA=+-H |+=A=t-A [+ZA=1-R [t=A=+-R |tZA=t+-H
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txn T£n Txn S T£n TEL
Closing net assets EREEFE 18,088 20414 10,931 11,334 29,019 31,748
Interest in associates  FAEEE A A ER 42% 42%
Share of netassets ~ [EIEEEFE 7,597 8,574 4,204 4,290 11,801 12,864
Goodwill HE 3,548 3,633 - - 3,548 3,633
Carrying amounts FEE 11,145 12,207 4,204 4,290 15,349 16,497

CTECNFFR - EEHERNEROBERAT
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
(b) Impairment assessment of interest in Huaxia

Hydrogen

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in Huaxia Hydrogen, based on the
expectations from the Group’s management for the market
development estimate. The recoverable amount of the interest
in Huaxia Hydrogen is determined based on a value in use
calculation. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period,
and discount rate of 16.17% (2023: 17%). Huaxia Hydrogen’s
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
a steady 2.24% (2023: 2.42%) growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average consumer price index growth rate
in the PRC for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include revenue growth rates,
terminal growth rates and gross profit margin, such estimation
is based on the management’s expectations for the market
development.

The results of the valuation assessment using these
assumptions show that the recoverable amount is higher
than the carrying amount of interest in Huaxia Hydrogen as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The management of the
Group believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of the key assumptions would not cause the recoverable
amounts to be lower than their carrying amounts. Based on
management’s assessment, no impairment loss was recognised
by the management of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 18. RAFEEFAHMZAKZEZE

MEE

2024 2023
—ETME R =HF
US$'000 US$'000
FERx F=T
Equity securities designated at FVTOCI EEREBEAFEEF AR
(non-recycling) fth 2 E U S 2 R AN
(GE&IE)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong MREB LT RIS F 5 121 152
Equity securities listed in Norway PP _E T B IR AN FE 5 1,527 5,270
1,648 5,422

The listed equity securities include (i) shares in JX Energy Limited
(i.e. listed in Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited), which is a company incorporated in Canada and engaged
in petroleum and natural gas production; and (ii) shares in Shelf
Drilling Limited (i.e. listed in Oslo Stock Exchange), a company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands and engaged
in provision of equipment and services for the drilling, completion,
maintenance and decommissioning of oil and natural gas wells.

The Group designated these investments as financial asset at
FVTOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic
purposes. No dividends were received on these investments during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Amount recognised in other comprehensive (expense)
income:

During the year, the following loss or gain was recognised in other
comprehensive (expense) income.

TR AREFHBIEG) FIX Energy Limited (BN
EBBMAR AR ARER LML @ &
RAIRMERFME L R ERHRRARE
B+ (i) FAShelf Drilling Limited (BN B2 H i 2%
ARG EMBRG - ZARREBEHRSESE
BRI RS RAMRRARIFHER -
I - HEERREER MRS R AR o

REBEEZEREETBIERAFEET AR
2EREZERMEEGEEE) - FRAZIRE
TEEBIKEN BE_Z_WNE+-_A=+
—HIEFE  BMERZSRERIERABKRE (=
To=F )

REMZEGIX) WEERZEH

FR - ATEERRERE M2 E (R )R

=7
at ©

2024 2023
—E-UE =
US$°000 US$'000
FTEx FE=x
(Loss) gain from changes in the fair value NEEBEEHFESLZ (EB)
W (3.774) 837

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

19. INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

19. ZE

FAMBRARTNEE R

comprise:
2024 2023
—E-mE =5
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=x
Raw materials R RS 7,818 4,592
Work in progress fEEm 19,567 27,738
Finished goods EERK 9,799 7,620
37,184 39,950
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. E5 W R H il EWFIE
2024 2023
—ENE ===

US$°000 Us$'000
FXx FEr
Trade receivables and bills receivables (Note a) & 5 & Uk BR 7t & fE I = 1% (M35 a) 140,059 126,020
Less: Allowance for impairment losses B R EEERE (60,393) (60,183)
79,666 65,837

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  E A EUNFRIE « FB 3k Kz d
(Note a) (fif7Ea) 22,529 22,967
Amount due from CM Industry (Note b) JEYUE T 2 508 (i 7Eb) - 16,569

Prepaid on behalf of its fellow subsidiaries R &R 2B A REA (5
(Note ¢) = 5,972
102,195 111,345
Less: Non-current portion of prepayments W TR 2 SERNERER 5 (438) (888)
101,757 110,457

Notes:

(a):

(b):

(0):

As at 31 December 2024, trade receivables and bills
receivables included approximately US$4,044,000 (2023:
US$15,747,000) due from, and other receivables and rental
deposits of approximately US$95,000 (2023: US$62,000) paid
to, subsidiaries of CM Industry, in connection with the sales of
products to and lease arrangements with these related parties
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, amount due from CM Industry
represent outstanding liquidation proceeds of the joint venture,
namely Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited (“Wealthy Marvel”),
received on behalf by CM Industry. In 2024, CM Industry has
fully settled the aforesaid outstanding amount.

As at 31 December 2023, the amount represents repair and
maintenance expense of diving support construction vessels
paid on behalf of its fellow subsidiaries in which the vessels
were leased from them (as disclosed in note 12(c)) (“R&M
Prepayment”). During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group has reached an agreement with its fellow subsidiaries to
settle its lease liabilities by its R&M Prepayment, the details of the
aforesaid non-cash transaction are disclosed in note 32.
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(b):

(o):

RZZE-_WE+=-_A=1+—H  ESEKER
LEKREERORES RIS mBE TN B AR HE
EEMMEZSME R AE 2 HE T ERZ
ZRAEE T BV FIE 4,044,000k T(— B - =4 :
15,747,00037T) K [M)7% E BAHE 75 S - R B A fE
WiB R B ERE#95,000E T (—TE-=4 :
62,00037T) °

NR-ZTBE-_=F+-A=+—8 " EUWEEL
FREERBIERBKIMHNE E AR (B
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited ([Wealthy
Marvel ) )R ERBEAMSHIE - R =T =Y
F - BEIEEREESE LIKRERSRE -

RZZZ=F+_A=+—H ZREEKR
1) L 78 A A 9 B % BT 8 2 RS2 A B9 g A 7 K
SCRFRE HO M T I B R S (AR RE 1 2(0) PR BR)
(MEERBEENK]) BE_F_MF+ -
A=+—BLLFE  AEHERRMEQRE
PRipas - AEEE R EERNFEEREEESR
& L SER e R HMF BRI E32F R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All of the trade receivables and bills receivables from contracts with
customers are within the scope of HKFRS 15.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables and
bills receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, where trade
receivables is presented based on the transaction date, and bills
receivables is presented based on the bills issuance date at the end
of the reporting period:

20. B 5 B R H 1 WK IR (@)

BB S RUERSR R ERRE BB E &M% H
FEAF1SFEEANBKRE S S LHFR

RIMERR - BHREERRERFEFNRE
EBRRE ZREONOT (B - EHEK
ERMERZBENFINRZAAMFAEANE
51)) -

2024 2023
—E-UE —Eo=F
US$’000 Us$'000
T3&75 FET
Trade receivables and ESEWERRREKEE
bills receivables
Within 1 month —(EAR 19,915 26,703
More than 1 month but within 3 months BB —{EAER =@ AKX 19,743 14,186
More than 3 months but within BE=EAER
12 months +=@AR 36,250 13,693
More than 12 months but within BE+—EAER
24 months A mEA R 2,873 2,408
More than 24 months BiE =+ ruE A 885 8,847
79,666 65,837

The credit terms offered by the Group to its customers differ with
each product/service. The credit terms offered to customers under
the business segment of supply chain and integration services, and
assets management and engineering services are normally 30 to
90 days. The credit terms offered to customers under the business
segment of equipment manufacturing and packages are negotiated
on a case-by-case basis. Deposits ranging from 0% to 30% of
the contract sum are usually required in relation to the reportable
segments under equipment manufacturing and packages.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 31.

AEEMERFRENEEHEER RET
RimAMTR - HHEEREAREAREERE
ERTIERRBESSBETHRFPEREMNE
EH— K A30E00K @ MEHERERBBER
HHEETHRFPERENEEHAZERE R
R RERREREBRETNNERSIMS
—MRERNTFEHEFE0%ZE30%METE o

BERHE R BENHEES -

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

21. LEASE RECEIVABLES 21.

The Group leases out certain equipment under finance leases
expiring within 4 years. In addition, at the end of the lease term,
the underlying equipment will be transferred to the lessee. None of
these leases includes variable lease payments.

In addition, the Group also sub-leases two offshore drilling rigs
under finance leases in 2024 and 2023 with minimum non-
cancellable period of 3 months (2023: 3 months). None of these
leases includes variable lease payments.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group's lease receivables at the end of the reporting period:

HE R

AEEANFHRARE HAETRE - 1
oh - MR EHERE - EHREEEETRR
A REREHTRATRAEMNK -

B AEER-E-MER =T =E RN
B03EA(CT==4 : 318 A) A HBEHE
RERESEMASERITE - REAEH
TRATRRERHR -

TRINFAEBEERUKNEEAROET
BHHR

2024 2023
TECmEF —E=F
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx F=rx
Within 1 year 1R 33,806 15,755
After 1 year but within 2 years 1226 = 105
Undiscounted lease payments RMBEHENR 33,806 15,860
Less: total future interest income B ARIRBFBHA (53) (279)
Present value of minimum leases EWSEAENRZEE

payments receivables 33,753 15,581
Less: Allowance for impairment losses B REE R R (487) )
33,266 15,579

Less: non-current portion of lease o HERRRNERES B
receivables = (100)
Current portion of lease receivables HERBRWRE D 33,266 15,479

Rental income is received in accordance with the terms of the
relevant lease agreements, normally within 30 days from the
transaction date.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
(a) Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2024, pledged bank deposits amounting
to approximately US$759,000 (2023: US$5,457,000) carry
interest rate ranging from 1.20% to 1.30% (2023: 1.20% to
1.50%) and represented deposits pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s certain bill payables. The pledged bank deposits

will be released upon the end of facilities.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

2. CEARTER BERREEE

7]

(a) BIEBRTER
R-ZT-_ME+-_A=+—0H - 2&H@
RITFERAT759,000k T (ZTE-=4 :
5,457,000 70) £ F1.20% % 1.30% (=
T = 120%E1.50%)F=t8
BB ERTFIRITHIRSURASEBEET
EAEEREER - EEHRRITEITER
Bhif 45 RIRR ARRR o

b) RERREEEY

2024 2023

—E-puE et

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx FEx

Bank balances and cash on hand RITHEBEFERS 81,536 53,478
Term deposits with original maturity date  [RE =1 A R E| 2 E 8T R

less than three months 2,564 19,888

Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 84,100 73,366

Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market rates

ranging as follows per annum:

BAFUATHSENXRGFRZAEERS
FEY

2024 2023
—ENF —ZE-=F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx T

Bank balances
Term deposits

RITHEER

0.0001%-0.10% 0.01%-1.80%
2.75%-3.91% 5.00%-5.54%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies of
the relevant group entities at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

MIBEHR - NEBEAEBEEERIRE
ER MM EREFENRE MRS EEY
MBREELT -

2024 2023
—E-NE T

US$'000 US$'000

FEx FET

usb =TT 8,723 4,720
CNY AR# 1,008 142
HKD BIT 1,444 150
SGD g T 17 135
GBP FE 36 4
MXN BEIFLR 259 6

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESENRHEHMENSKIE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx F=rx
Trade payables and bills payables 2 S ENERRENRE 24,152 34,014
Consideration payable for acquisition of a IR RS E (M 3E27)
business (note 27) - 754
Payable for capital injection BOF A B E N T ERN 2 5B
into associates (note 17) (FFEE17) 2,740 9,567
Amount due to a non-controlling interest of ~ fE{ —FEI [} B A &) FEIE AR 2E 2
a subsidiary (Note) Fxa () 251 262
Other payables and accrued charges H P& T FRIE R BT R 2 23,612 15,588
50,755 60,185
Note: The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. MiaE - AeBEREER 2R REREKRKE
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HERSHR  BEFENERRENZES 7
payables and bills payables, based on invoice date and bills issuance REZAHRHAEBBHNRRSTET ¢

date respectively, is as follows:

2024 2023

115 —ZE=F

US$’000 US$'000

SEEo FET

Within 1 month —@AA 8,074 13,408
More than 1 month but within 3 months BBE—EAER=EAR 9,212 7,235
More than 3 months but within 12 months ~ #B@=EAER+_@ARK 2,337 9,472
More than 12 months but within 24 months  #8:8+ —{& A {87 =+ /m{E A R 1,256 1,592
More than 24 months fiE =+ U@ A 3,273 2,307
24,152 34,014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fade)

BRI aE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

24. EHEE

2024 2023
—EomE T =F
US$’000 Us$'000
SPEST F=rx
Contract liabilities aRnas
Billings in advance of performance BITEBOIRAIER 28,167 34,165
As at 1 January 2023, contract liabilities amounted to approximately RZZTEZ=F—H—H 6HBESEYD

US$29,822,000.

Contract liabilities include advance received for sales of rigs and
equipment.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are disclosed in note 20.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year ended 31
December 2024 that was included in the contract liability balance
as at 1 January 2024 was approximately US$20,351,000 (2023:
US$17,439,000).

The amount of billings in advance of performance expected to be
recognised as income after more than one year is approximately
US$NIl (2023: US$2,669,000).

As at 31 December 2024, contract liabilities balance included
amount of approximately US$4,597,000 (2023: US$5,845,000)
received from its fellow subsidiaries.

29,822,000 7T °

BHBME

ﬁ\o

B HEEN T & MRED WA

HERANENEES
R 208 55 -

HARZZE-_NE—-A—HAYABLEHKAR
HE-_Z-_WFE+-A=+—HLFEERD
25 € %4 520,351,000E T (ZE=-=4 :
17,439,000 7T) °

TEARREBR —FUBRERBRANEITE
ERRAMGEESENATEL (T _=F
2,669,000 7T) °

W-ZE-MFE+-—F= + B AHEEER
BIEEWE ZH B R RFKIEA4,597,000% T
(ZZ = =4 : 5,845, ooo%m

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

26.

(a) At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the lease liabilities

25. HE&E

() R=SBE-WER=-FB-_=F+=H=

were repayable as follows: +—H HEASEERWOT :
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T-=F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Within 1 year 1A 45,399 29,707
After 1 year but within 2 years 18224 3,330 17,361
After 2 years but within 5 years 2&E54F 249 4,775
48,978 51,843
Less: Amount due from settlement B FIERBI B E 2R 1218 A A E|
within 12 months shown under Hi%EE 2 50E
current liabilities (45,399) (29,707)
Amount due from settlement after SIVEIE R EN B & 2 P 1218 A 18 21 B
12 months shown under non-current wHE 2 FIE
liabilities 3,579 22,136

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities
ranging from 3% to 6.01% (2023: 3% to 5.9%).

HEABEMAKEEENENT3%E
6.01% (B -=4F : 3% %E5.9%) °

for short-term leases amounting to approximately US$683,000

(2023: US$579,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset (liabilities),
after set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities
of the same taxable entity, for financial reporting purposes:

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERSRLALE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for GeEHenERTEHREERESNEBEN
leases comprise the following: T
2024 2023
—ENEF =5
Us$'000 Us$'000
SEEEPT FET
Within operating cash flows (Note) wERenE () 2,235 3,024
Within financing cash flows MERSRE 11,743 37,737
13,978 40,761
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total cash outflow M3 BEZZT-_NF+_A=+—HILEFE

EMHRE 2R SN AL 5683,000%
TT(ZZ = =4 : 579,00037T) °

26. EEHIE

T AR BEREBOMIELREEREEE
(BB (AR TR IR IR & 1 5548 [F SR %
ERMNECHBERERR DN :

2024 2023

—E_UE —Eo 4

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FFET

Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE E 1,647 1,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

26. IEFERLIE (%)

AT ARAEE RBAFEERANESEL
BMIEAE (BB RAS

Impairment
losses
on trade
debtors  Write-down  Unrealised
and bills of profits on Lease Right-of- Lease
receivables inventories inventories  receivables  useassets  liabilities Others Total
RN
BRREN
SEHE HERER
BB FEEN B HERYE RREEE  HERE Eff szt
Us§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000
S T S Txn S TEn S T
Deferred tax arising from: RENUTIEEMELRE
At 1 January 2023 R=E-=%-f-H 656 1,034 (171) - - - 60 1,579
Exchange adjustments 3 19 39 (31) = 1 1) 0] 3
Deferred tax credit (charged) to STAGRE) Ea ETEHE
profit or loss (note 8(3)) (B3 8(a)) 156 (26) 20 (31) (144) 150 103 108
Acquisition of a business (note 27) BB R (H327) - - - - - - (176) (176)
At 31 December 2023 RZB_=F
tZA=1-H 831 1,047 18 (1) (183) 149 (17) 1,854
Exchange adjustments EXAE (86) (91) = = 2 0] 8 (169)
Deferred tax crecit charged) to STAGIRE) B ERHE
profit or loss (note 8(a)) (s 8(a) 259 = (18) 18 101 (104) (294) (38)
At 31 December 2024 RZEME
T-F=1-H 1,004 956 - (13) (40) 43 (303) 1,647

At 31 December 2024, the Group had temporary differences arising
from undistributed profits of subsidiaries of approximately US$413,000
(2023: US$351,000). No provision for deferred tax liabilities have
been made as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2024, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and other
temporary differences of approximately US$112,445,000 (2023:
US$138,697,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the tax losses and temporary differences can be
utilised/reversed will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
Except for tax loss of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC of
approximately US$46,062,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
US$40,409,000) which will expire within five to ten years, the tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

RZE-_MNE+_A=+—8  KXEBWE
RAEIZADERENEEZEREZENA
413,000E T (=ZF==4 : 351,00057T) ° i
RARBZEGZEHMB AR ZBREEKABR R
FEEAIFE R AF SRR AT e 0 Ks F) - B3 & L
FEHIEBEELDRE -

RZFBE-_MNF+=—A=+—"H HREEH
2RI RAERE T AT Be A & K R & A
LAIK SH AT (E B AR 4 | 2 78 B 98 K A 1
ZR - MAEBEWES R RIBEEREA
RS ER49112,445,000E T (B - =4 ¢
138,697,000 T) ERIEIEF B & EE - BIEHE
IRIEEG - BAEBLRFENWNER AR
T -F+ = A=+—H#)46,062,000% T
— T~ =4 : 40,409,000 JT) KR A ETIE # 7A
RAETFAREMIN - RSB EILELSRR -

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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27. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s subsidiary
in Canada namely TSC Canada acquired 100% interest in a
business at a consideration of approximately US$2,628,000 from an
independent third party, which is principally engaged in Industrial
Equipment Business. The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of a business using acquisition method.

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

27. WiE —THEK
HE_ZE_=+-_A=1+—RHItEE K&
ERIE XK EBRRTSC CanadalZ KB L
2,628,000E LR — BB FE = HUE—BER
Z100% % ZBUF A EERETER
HES - WREBEEEAKBEEARBEBLIK
i o

B EERFAERAERKERBNAFE
(=1

US$'000
FErx
Customer relationship BFERR 763
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB RFE 83
Inventories FE 1,212
Trade receivables FEUBR ZX 1,316
Other receivables and prepayments H th & W R IE R TR SRR 1
Trade payables B IR (960)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIRAE (176)
2,239
The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade Fris g FE MR IE (X ZEREE 5 R FO R IR

receivables) with a fair value of approximately US$1,316,000 at the
date of acquisition which is approximate to its gross contractual
amounts.

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant and have been excluded
from the cost of acquisition and were recognised as an expense in
the year incurred within the “general and administrative expenses”
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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27. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS (continued)

27. WiE—HEBK @)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WBEEEENHE -
Us$'000
F=T
Consideration RE 2,628
Less: Recognised amounts of net assets acquired B TR EN SRR (2,239)
Goodwill arising on acquisition EWEEIEEENEE 389

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a business

B BANEMEENBES TR -

WiE—AXB RN FE

Us$'000
F=r
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WIER S KBS EEY -
Consideration RIE (2,628)
Less: Consideration payable (included in trade and other W ERNREGAEBSE
payables) (Note) ~F R E A E A 30 3R) (B EE) 754
(1,874)
Note: As at 31 December 2023, the consideration payable was unsecured M : RZZE_=F+=-A=+—0H ENREAR
and carry a fixed interest of 8% per annum and interest expenses EAR - WHEEF 8% 2EEHE r mEZE
amounting to approximately US$30,000 was incurred during the year T =F+ A=t —HLEFEEEAE
ended 31 December 2023. During the year ended 31 December 2024, F X #930,000%% 7T c BE-ZT-_HF+ = )EJ
the Group fully settled the aforesaid consideration payable amounting =T+ —BLEFE  AEEBHZN Ll ES
to approximately US$754,000. RABH 754,000 7T °
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WBSEEHAEEEENTE
Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 was a HE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE&EH
profit of approximately US$247,000 attributable to the additional BETIEREEBEENBINEBEG R T
business generated by Industrial Equipment Business. Revenue #9247,000%7 - BHEZT-_=F+=-A=+
for the year ended 31 December 2023 includes approximately —HLEFERAPEIEREEBEENL
US$2,097,000 generated from the Industrial Equipment Business. 2,097,000 7T ©
Had the acquisition of Industrial Equipment Business been W TERBEEFER=TE=_=F—H—H
completed on 1 January 2023 , revenue for the year and profit TR - AR BERF AN A KRGS B R

for the year of the Group would have been approximately
US$182,072,000 and US$9,658,000 respectively. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2023, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

182,072,0003< 7t }29,658,0003< T » & &+
EHRFARASE  ARORBEBESER=ZZ=
=F—A—HZEK  AEEFERISHKA
RISEHE - I NRERRRFEENTEA -

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the municipal and provincial governments for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans at rates ranging from 20% to
25% of the eligible employees’ salaries.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned defined
contribution retirement plan are expensed as incurred and no
contributions have been forfeited as all contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for all qualifying employees in jurisdictions other than the
Mainland China and Hong Kong with contributions to the schemes
at 3% — 10% of the gross salaries.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of the
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no
forfeited contributions which were used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.
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28. RERAKER

REBFENGE TER  AEE2RZEHET
BT = B A e (8 B A A E B EBURKET
g  AEEARAEREEFEH20%E25%
A% B R RETEIVE K

AR M RIEES R HIEATRS 3 BEHI AR
BESERREAIRAOERHTRIEAES
5B (TS E)  WESH B ARBIR
FEATEMTRE IR B  EAASH
BT RERAEAHAREREARA
M5%AHEBRRK - LRASABBUALD
30,0007 ° (1% fF it 0 4 3KEDES B BB
A -

i

AEER LR ERHRFAE B TOERERLE
SRR - BBERAARSES I HR
BB SR8 - M AR RBOR M

AEB T ARPEARREBAIN BEER
MEEAEREERRE TEHEMITRMKE MG
2 AFEFLNERESERFEEEN3%

£10% °

B B RN - REEY BEEMEESNER
BIKREMBRKERF -
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29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(a) Share Award Plans

2025 Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2015 Share
Award Plan”) on 16 January 2015. As set out in the Group's
announcement dated 14 January 2025, the Company
amended the 2015 Share Award Plan (“2025 Share Award
Plan”) by way of adopting the amended and restated rules
of the 2015 Share Award Plan, in order to, among others,
extend the term of the 2015 Share Award Plan for a period
of 10 years commencing from 14 January 2025 (the “2025
Plan Amendment Date”) and ending on 13 January 2035. The
administration committee of the Company may, in its absolute
discretion, make an award to any employee (whether full time
or part time) of the Group (the “2025 Plan Eligible Persons”).

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
that may be purchased and held by the trustee of the 2025
Share Award Plan in order to satisfy the outstanding awards
from time to time made under the 2025 Share Award Plan
should not exceed 5% of the total issued Shares at the 2025
Plan Adoption Date (i.e. 162,171,695 Shares) (the “2025 Plan
Limit”). The 2025 Plan Limit represents approximately 5% of
the total issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of
the 2025 Share Award Plan, the 2025 Share Award Plan will
remain in force for a period commencing on the 2025 Plan
Amendment Date and ending on 13 January 2035.

There was no unvested award granted to the 2025 Plan
Eligible Persons under the 2025 Share Award Plan as at 1
January 2024. No award was granted under the 2025 Share
Award Plan during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023. Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award granted
to the 2025 Plan Eligible Persons under the 2025 Share Award
Plan as at 31 December 2024 and 2023; and (ii) no award
vested, cancelled or lapsed under the 2025 Share Award Plan
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

No additional Shares were granted during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 under the 2015 Share Award Plan.

29. R R A S
() KRIDERTE

—ECLFEROERE
ARABR_F—AF— A+ NBERA—
HRHEBFE (=2 —RFRHE/E
g  BUAEEEHMAE—_ZT_HF—H
THEHNRERESE - AAREEBRAL
BRI RE - —hF KM ERE 2R
B —F-—hFERNEBFE( =2
FlROEEE]D) > KMERBFS-F
—HFEROHBEBHAINPRERTF - B
“ECRF-ATEB( R RFFE
BERTESBDREIN_E=0F—HA+=H
R - KARBITRES Ti%%\ﬁ$
SEEAEE TwEBARB(T=F
REAEAEMALDIELLER -

—E_AFRMNEREZTABER
BE—T - RAFRGEZEETREL
MERATZREATBERIFAENEAR
AR ([ DD BRETSHBB—Z R F
SRR B B BTN A Z25% (A1
162,171,695/ /% 1n) (= = AFFEIR
) o —E-_AFHERBERAENRARSE
HHEE BT (D B2 AI5% °

—E-AFBRONERFESA T _RF
FTEMERT BB FIIa AR - Eﬁfj:ﬁ
F-A+t=ARLL EARE-_F_RF
B in B2 BT &) 2 IRFER R AR LE o

RIZ-WME—A—H  #MERE-_ZT—
hERNERFERT T _AFHEE

BRATMHARE 22/ BE_F—
MER—_Z_=F+_A=+—BLF
B - WERE T - AFROHREE IR
HAEEERE - Bt - IR =ZF_mFERZ
B_=fF+-HA=+—H" M%m%f

“hFBRNERER T T _RF5tE
BERALIMHAR B ZER  Ri)EE
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LEE  —T-AFRNDE/IBETH
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29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(a) Share Award Plans (Continued)

2019 Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2019 Share
Award Plan”) on 31 October 2019 (the “2019 Plan Adoption
Date”). The administration committee (which is delegated with
the power and authority by the Board to administer the 2019
Share Award Plan) may, in its absolute discretion, make an
award to any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group, including directors, senior management and any other
connected persons of the Company and any consultant of the
Group (the “2019 Plan Eligible Persons”).

The total number of Shares that may be purchased and held
by the trustee of the 2019 Share Award Plan in order to satisfy
the outstanding awards from time to time made under the
2019 Share Award Plan should not exceed 3% of the total
issued Shares on the 2019 Plan Adoption Date (i.e. 88,389,372
Shares) (the “2019 Plan Limit”). The 2019 Plan Limit represents
approximately 2.73% of the total issued Shares as at the date
of this report.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of
the 2019 Share Award Plan, the 2019 Share Award Plan will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on the
2019 Plan Adoption Date and ending on 30 October 2029.

There was no unvested award granted to the 2019 Plan
Eligible Persons under the 2019 Share Award Plan as at 1
January and 31 December 2024. No award was granted under
the 2019 Share Award Plan for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023. Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award
granted to the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons under the 2019
Share Award Plan as at 31 December 2024 and 2023; and (ii)
no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the 2019 Share
Award Plan during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

No additional Shares were granted during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 under the 2019 Share Award Plan.

Shares held under Share Award Plans

As at 31 December 2024, the Company held 70,499,000
(2023:70,499,000) under these two share award plans and
the total consideration paid for the shares amounting to
approximately US$3,631,000 (2023:US$3,631,000).
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29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Award Incentive Scheme

A share award incentive scheme (the “Share Award Incentive
Scheme"”) of the Company was adopted by way of ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 27 May 2016 (the “Incentive Scheme Adoption Date"”)

The persons eligible to participate in the Share Award Incentive
Scheme are any individual, being any employee (whether full-
time or part-time employee) of any members of the Group or
any affiliate (who is not a connected person of the Company),
officer, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group or
any affiliate (who is not a connected person of the Company)
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Incentive
Scheme Eligible Persons”).

The total number of new Shares underlying all grants made
pursuant to the Share Award Incentive Scheme shall not
exceed 3% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
Incentive Scheme Adoption Date (i.e. 21,213,606 Shares) (the
“Incentive Scheme Limit”). The Incentive Scheme Limit was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016. The
Incentive Scheme Limit represents approximately 0.65% of the
total issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Incentive Scheme, the Share Award Incentive
Scheme shall be valid and effective for 10 years from the
Incentive Scheme Adoption Date and ending on 26 May 2026.

No award was granted under the Share Award Incentive
Scheme since its adoption.

29. RipRBEE & @
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 30. EXRf#AE
(a) Movements in components of equity (o) ERHo 285
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances RNEBGEER ST D 2 B9 RAIRERH
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set ZHEHNGRAEERBER - NRBIFY)
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details NEKRZERNEREBDEEBFBEERTIN
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of N
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Company ARAF
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
& R EE ERGE ZHER @it
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TET TEL TEL TET
At 1 January 2023 W-B-=%-F-H 4,418 254,632 151 (159,065) 137,136
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREZERY AR - - (98) (47,302) (47,400)
Dividends recognised as distribution RENRZRE = (4,052) = = (4,052)
At31December 2023 and 1 January 204 R=E==%+-F=+-F
R=E-ME-A-H 41,418 250,580 53 (206,367) 85,684
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ~ FRZAR %5 - - (63) (3,016) (3,079)
At 31 December 2024 R=B-mE+=A=t+-H M8 250,580 (10) (209,383) 82,605
(b) Share capital (b) B’A&
2024 2023
—E-QNE =T==4F
No. of share Amount No. of share Amount
17 2 B ©8 Rk ! Kok
‘000 US$°000 ‘000 US$'000
T TER Tk T=r
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each BREMBE.1ET
)3 A 10,000,000 128,730 10,000,000 128,730
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRAZMN
and fully paid: EER -
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Hk
+=-A=+—H 3,243,434 41,418 3,243,434 41,418
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends LERIE A AR R ERS R AT E R 89 AR
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per B WHAERARRKNAE LS RMD
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank B—F AL AERMRAQAFBEEM
equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets. EEZHBREMA -
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

@

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

()

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the fund in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of the restructuring exercise in 2004
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of capital
contribution over the nominal value of the registered
capital of TSC (Qingdao).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, TSC (Qingdao)
was transformed into a company limited by shares. As a
result, its net assets value in excess of share capital was
transferred to capital reserve as a capital contribution.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the fair value
adjustment to the interest previously held by the Group
as an associate upon the acquisition of TSC Offshore (UK)
Limited.

30. EXRfREED
(c) BEHNMERED

@

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

)

MR A= E
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi)

Statutory reserve funds

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries
require the appropriation of 10% of their profit after
tax each year, based on their statutory audited financial
statements, to the statutory reserve funds until the
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve
funds may be capitalised as the paid-in capital of these
subsidiaries.

(vii) Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to a Notice regarding Safety Production
Expenditure jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Work Safety of the PRC,
the Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus
reserve. The safety fund can only be used to offset the
specific reserve as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and
equipment improvement and maintenance as well as
safety production inspection, appraisal, consultation and
training.

(viii) Shares held for share award scheme reserve

(ix)

The shares held for share award scheme reserve
represents purchase costs of shares held for share award
scheme as disclosed in note 29.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net charge in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

30. EXRf@EE®

(d) Dividends d) B2

2024 2023
—ECoE —E-=F
US$'000 Us$'000
FERT F=x

Final dividend paid out of the share RZE = = F ARG & B RIK 8

premium account during 2023 in EZT-_—_F+=ZA=+—HL

respect of the year ended FESREBER0.01B TH AR E

31 December 2022 of HK$0.01 per [

ordinary share - 4,052

On 26 March 2025, a final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024, in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$32,434,000, has
been proposed by the directors of the Company and are
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

No dividend was proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

RZEBE-_RAFE=A=+/,xB  AATFES
EEMEE_T-_ME+_A=+—H8H1
FERMF/RLEAX0.01F T H KRR
B {A%EH)/532,434,000/8 7T  MEBFR

ARABERREEBRRBFAS L AR
TR °

BE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE"
W ERHEN AR EBBRBRRORS

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

30. EXRfREED
(e) EAxEE

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis and
considers the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based
on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the
amount of dividends payable to shareholders, new shares
issues or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position.
The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio, being
the Group's total liabilities to total assets, under 100%. The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2024 was 42% (2023: 46%).

AEFBEAEENEZARNBIHREN
SEMRNMIBRMERLE - AXRFHEE
BERRRERREBRAEL -

AREEEEEEREHILF RSB
BIHERAGEBIELAR - ARETHE
BIEAERYEBEAKARABRAR -

BEMBRORE S - BITHREETT
EBBE TEHEREALERE - REEZ
ToNFERZT_=F+ZA=+—HI
FEFR  AEEEATEMNBIZE - BURK
By EEs -

AEES2ELBEBRARDELRER - XEH
MR DEREEABRLERAIANEER
REERIAREE)ER100%  NEER
—EoE+-_A=t+—BWHEEAEL

BAEA%(ZEZ=F : 46%) ©

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and price risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group'’s FE BB RERRER o KB ER R
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies RAEEFERZ € /EREERE REFIE
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described IR e

below.

3. @I A
AEMEFLBBRHIELLE  RHES

(a) Categories of financial instruments (o) EMIAESE

2024 2023
—E-NfF —E-=F
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FEx

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEKATEZSMEE 171,522 170,554

Financial assets at FVTOC]I EBEAFEEFAEMEAKE

CREE 1,648 5,422
173,170 175,976

Financial liabilities SEAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REER AT ECEREE 41,436 56,019
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e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables and bill receivables,
lease receivables, other receivables and deposits, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables and bills receivables and lease
receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 3% (2023: 17%)
and 45% (2023: 23%) of the total trade receivables and bill
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. In the opinion of the management of the Group,
these customers are reputable organisations in the market
and has good repayment records in the past and therefore
the management of the Group considers that the credit risk is
limited in this regard.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2023:86%) of the total lease receivables was due from one
of its customer in Mexico. For such lease receivables, the
management makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of such amount, and also considering various
external sources of actual and forecast economic information,
as appropriate, in estimating the probability of default from
such customer. In the opinion of the management of the
Group, the aforesaid customer was a state owned company
in the Mexico and has good repayment records in the past.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised
net impairment losses on lease receivables of approximately
US$485,000 (2023 : reversal of impairment losses on lease
receivables of approximately US$23,000).

3. E@M T A
(b) EEREEEME

EERBEASENZ Y F I RAKRET
“m%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ$ﬁlﬁiﬁﬁﬁim

o AEENEERERIRZREESE
HQEE AR EWRE - HERUGK - Rf0E
WHERkES - BERRITFRARRS
RBAEEEY - NEEY ESHEMER
%YE@E%? %mu@ﬁ@ﬁ@@é
ERBENEER

EFEHELZ B ZEWIR - BUREER
&ﬁ S JEY

BEREEERR  ARECHIEEE
ﬁﬁ'uﬁﬁ%mﬁ 1T Y[ 8 B
7% o

AEENEERRET  REAEFHER
m&fwmﬁ ﬁ%%ufyf_i
17%0&45%Q774n_¢ 23%) D Bl A
EWAEBRARENAARF - A2
RIEEERR  A4EEEEEEZRIREK
EEETEEREREESH] - AEEE
BERE ZERFAMHELEERITHN
W OBARERTERRL  RASEEE

ERAELFEMNEERBRER -

AR ERRREEN100% (T ==
F:86%)RERASERFT —ZEFAT
BEEMZE HASEEHEREER
R MRSHERKTME F ERESTE
HA(E B F& 8 B s B AT U Bl M - S AE i
EBERATERER RBAGCEERNSE
HNERIRIR » LAfHETZ B P B ATREME -
AEBEMEEERE  LMEFARAETH
BEERQR  BEERCHRYT  MAEE
EEERALFTEMNEERBRER - =
—E-_NMFE+=-A=t+—HLEFE &
%lﬁwﬁﬁrwmﬁmﬁgﬁéﬁm
485,000 (ZE == : HEEYT
B E R 1 4923,000E7T) ©

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (Continued)

3. &M I Az
(b) EERBRHETGE

Trade receivables and bills receivables and lease
receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model by grouping trade receivables and bills receivables
and lease receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to the Group’s aging of balances. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

Pledged bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are reputable
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents by reference to
information relating to probability of default and loss given
default of the respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss
rates, the 12m ECL on pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents is considered to be insignificant and therefore
no loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management believes that there are
no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group recognised impairment losses on other receivables and
deposits of approximately US$221,000 (2023 : Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

(b) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

T HEE

(b) FERMRERBERNMLE

AEENAREERBFEFHEREAT

the following categories: 171 -
Trade debtors,
Internal bill receivables and Other
credit rating Description lease receivables financial assets
ESRWR - BRRER
R EE T it HEBKH HiteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have ~ Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
any material past-due amounts = not credit-impaired
ERR RSHFHENRRE - BV REMENBHARE 2 HRBCEER RMAARSBEESE
- REEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
but usually settle in full = not credit-impaired
R B E EBANCERIBERER  BERFEUEE > HEHEEER 1REAESREEEE
- RBECERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial ~ Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
external resources
ENi BRAFRENBEHNIINIER - aRREAUREERR 2HRBCEESE 2 HRHBCEEFR
BEE - REEEERE - REEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
~ credit-impaired = credit-impaired
BB BERSKRABENBERRE 2 HEBEEEE > HEHEEEE
- BECERE - BECERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Lifetime ECL
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect — credit-impaired
of recovery
bz BEBRESABAREN BN  EASETEERE  HEE50E 2 HRHBCEFR
] SRIE A 7] B BEEERA
“E_NFEFR c EHERNRROARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's

financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

3. €M I A%

(b) EE R RRETE
TRFARAERRETRBEREERNG
MERBEENEERR :

Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
amount  allowance amount amount  allowance amount
BREE FRBE FEFE BREE FRBE FERE
Internal
Notes ~ credit rating 12m o lifetime ECL 2024 2024 2024 2023 2023 2023
1208A5;
Wi mEEETR  REBHCEEE ZRomE CBCWE ZEC@E| —Bo=F ZEoZE CRocR
USs$'000 Us$'000 Uss'000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
TEn i TEn i Tin T3n
Financial assets at
amortised cost
REERTHEZEREE
Trade receivables and 20 N/A(Note) Lifetime ECL 140,059 (60,393) 79,666 126,020 (60,183) 65,837
bills receivables
BARUNES RENEE NEAGE)  cHBHEESE
Amount due from CM 20 Lowrisk 12m ECL - - 16,569 - 16,569
Industry
FURHIEE EER ERREEEES
Prepaid on behalf of its fellow 20 Lowrisk 12m ECL - - 5972 - 5972
subsidiaries
REERZMBARBNE E&R ERREEEER
Other receivables and deposits 20 Low risk 12m ECL 1,837 (840) 6,997 3972 (619) 3353
At ELGERES &R NEARSHEERE
Pledged bank deposits/ 2 Lowrisk 12mECL 84,859 - 84,859 78823 - 78823
cash and cash equivalents
BERSOET/ &R DEAESEEESE
ReRRLEEN
Subtotal 232,755 (61,233) 171,522 231,356 (60.802) 170,554
15t
Lease receivables 2 NIA(Note) Lifetime ECL 33,753 (487) 33,266 15,581 )] 15,579
HERY MER(E)  2EEREEER
266,508 (61,720) 204,788 246,937 (60,804) 186,133
Note: For trade receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables, izt : HESBRKER BUEERBEERE

the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. To measure the
ECL, trade receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables
have been assessed individually for trade receivables and bills
receivables and lease receivables with significant balances or
credit-impaired, or collectively using a provision matrix for trade
receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables which
shared credit risk characteristics. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables and bills receivables and lease receivables
and are adjusted for forward-looking information and involves
a significant degree of judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 3. eI A%
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) (b) FERKREENMSE®E)
Note: (Continued) st : (38
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses ERASEEERREERN—H5 - A%
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment of trade receivables EFERAEBSANRRTERFPHE S ER
and bills receivables and lease receivables from customers BRI FE W SR 4 e AR & MR B RUE -
because these customers consist of a large number of customers AZEEFREAZEEGARRBREEN
with common risk characteristics that are representative of the BF  ZERBRRBEPRESOGTX
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with B BIBFRIBRIRE )] - TREHRARAR
the contractual terms. The following table provides information SEME ZEBEERREREEERNE
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables BERBHER @ 25 E 5 KRR & ER
and bills receivables and lease receivables which are assessed on ERREERUGRTIERAREEEERE
a collective basis by using provision matrix within lifetime ECL or MEHTEHEEEEAN R EERIRES
assessed individually. R SAERIFT A o
Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount  Loss allowance
FiEEE REAE EERE
% US$'000 US$'000
As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-mF+=-A=t+—-H FER FTER
Trade receivables and ) AT ES
bills receivables
Current (not past due) B CRiE ) 0%-3.64% 32,222 (485)
Less than 1 month past due BN —EA 0.03%-15.86% 17,148 (474)
More than 1 month but within BEBA—EARD
3 months past due HBE={EA 0.03%-15.86% 7,472 (199)
More than 3 months but within BHEE=EAET
12 months past due A+ =8 A 0.03%-15.86% 22,327 (623)
More than 12 months but within paniefiaz sy e DS E(SRES
24 months past due HBidm=1rmEA 0.93%-100% 2,188 (575)
More than 24 months past due BERERR —+UEA 78.18%-100% 58,702 (58,037)
140,059 (60,393)
Lease receivables HEEW
Current (not past due) e R ) 0.05%-1.32% 9,277 (6)
Less than 1 month past due BE DR —{EA 3.99% 2,581 (103)
More than 1 month but within BEBA—EAEBNER
3 months past due =1EA 3.99% 21,895 (378)
33,753 (487)
As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate ARAEEBANEEEELCHRIY BB
significantly different loss patterns for different customer TRZEFHERBETIRNEEEDN - Bt
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not BB EIR R ST E B E R i —
further distinguished between the group’s different customer ENAEEHTREFE
bases.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

TR T H@

(b) EE R KAL)
M (4)

Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
T EEER EREAE EIEEE
% US$'000 US$'000
As at 31 December 2023 R=ZB-=f+=A=+-—H FE F=T
Trade receivables and BESEWERRERREE
bills receivables
Current (not past due) TEN(RiHR) 0%-3.2% 37,402 @17)
Less than 1 month past due wmHE DR —E A 0.2%-20.1% 3,942 (197)
More than 1 month but within BEBA—EARD
3 months past due HBE={EA 0.2%-20.1% 6,984 (160)
More than 3 months but within BEBA=EABT
12 months past due BiE+—EA 0.2%-20.1% 8,154 (225)
More than 12 months but within BEPBAT=EARBT
24 months past due Bid—tr{E A 5.8%-100% 5,699 (3,025)
More than 24 months past due BERER R —+UE A 85%-100% 63,839 (56,159)
126,020 (60,183)
Lease receivables HERKRR
Current (not past due) mEN(CRAHR) 0%-0.07% 15,569 )
Less than 1 month past due BE DR —ME A 12 =
15,581 )
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical AETEEEDEREBABBERBANEL

observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific

debtors is updated.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group made a recognition of
net impairment losses of approximately US$1,036,000 (2023:
US$2,274,000) for trade receivables and bills receivables and
lease receivables based on the provision matrix or assessed

individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for trade receivables and bills

3. €M I A%

(b) EE R RRETE
TRBETRBEETENE S RKERR K
FEU R 1B A Ko TH B FE MR e R O e 1R 1B A

receivables and lease receivables under the simplified BIHIRR o
approach.
Trade
receivables Other
and bills Lease receivables
receivables receivables  and deposits Total
EZEWERRK Hi A
BRER HEEKH ke st
Us$ '000 US$ '000 US$ '000 US$ '000
T=x T=x T=x T=x
As at 1 January 2023 R-_E-_=%—F—H 57,448 25 619 58,092
Impairment losses recognised 2R EE 18 3,316 = = 3,316
Impairment losses reversed 2B {EEIE (1,019) (23) = (1,042)
Exchange realignment BE SR 438 = = 438
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+-A=+—H 60,183 2 619 60,804
Impairment losses recognised 2 A E/E 18 3,303 487 221 4,011
Impairment losses reversed 2B EEIE (2,752) ) = (2,754)
Exchange realignment B (341) = = (341)
As at 31 December 2024 RZFEZME+=A=1+—H 60,393 487 840 61,720

There has been no material change in the estimation
technigues or significant assumptions made during both years.

T {8 6 E BfE PR B R st T s EE 2

RRL|EREE o

TR CFEFR c ZEEEENEROERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and/or adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

3. €M I A%

(©) RBEZRR

AEENEREECEXARTARREE
B BEEREBREEHRERESE
RAENER 2 REFROEEEEBB
AETHREREKTFAARSARAESS
&) AKRBCHRAEHRERHR

BeREREBTEEMRX - UEERLER
RARSHEER/RKETESEBBEL
AmESEE  NENEREHZASE

AN E= &h
= °

TRINTAEERRERAREFBRAS L
FHRIETESRBERBAORME
RenE(BRREAOMERK(METR)
REREAREFHONRFEOFE)
) URAKEAEERRARNENRT
BE

04 03
“ECME i
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outfow

BITNEARRRELRY ETHEARANR LR
Within More than More than Canying Within More than More than Carying
1 year 1 year but Dyears Total amount 1 year 1 year but 2 years Totd amount
oron within but within Over5  undiscounted at31 oron within but within Over undiscounted a3t
demand years 5 years years  cash flows December demand 2 jears 5 jears Syears cash flows Decernber
R lE] -EiL WML AHR RtZA | —FAm —it RN ] #tzR
REX i R i RERE =t-8 HEX fast (3 I AeRE =t-A
L E WER BER ME 2] NERE il BER ity It a5 HEERE
Us§000 Us§000 US§'000  Uss'0o0 Uss000 Uss000 US§'000 US§'000. US§000 Us§1000 US§'000 US§'000.
3] i Tin T i1 T T T T T T T

Trade and other FAEARED

pajables B8 486 = s = 486 Ve 5,019 = = = 56,019 56,019
Lease iabiltes HERE 46,191 3389 264 - 49,844 43978 31,566 18,161 4832 - 54,559 51843
87,67 3389 i} - 91,260 90414 87,585 18,161 48 - 110578 107,862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. EMIA®)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) F=E ks

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group'’s
cash and cash equivalents, and pledged bank deposits.
Deposits issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial derivatives
to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group'’s interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s pledged bank deposits and cash and cash

AEBWFXEREIERAAEEBRE R
ReFEVWARSERRITHER - RED
AR R IR EE F R EERD BIE AL
EEKATREN KRR R AFEENE
R - AEEYERBERBOTETANY
A ERER - TXOBEINERBEE T
REEMEFE -

(i) FRFHE
TREJAKEERHBEH RN K
RRTERARRE MRS EEY

equivalents at the end of the reporting period. B IR EEE -
2024 2023
—EoME —EC=F
Effective Effective
interest rate Us$'000 interest rate US$'000
BERFI= TEx BB =E F=r
Fixed rate deposits: EEFM :
Pledged bank deposits BEERRTER 1.20%-1.30% 759 | 1.20%-1.50% 5,457
Term deposits ab-livES 2.75%-3.91% 2,564 | 5.00%-5.54% 19,888
3,323 25,345
Variable rate deposits: BEEN
Bank balances RITHE B 0.0001%-0.1% 81,536 | 0.01%-1.80% 53,478
Total st 84,859 78,823
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points (2023: 100 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased the Group's profit before taxation
by approximately US$815,000 (2023: US$535,000). A
general decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
would have an opposite effect less than the increase
as certain variable rate balances are subject to effective
interest rates less than 1%, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before taxation that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group's profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such
a change interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2023.

(e) Currency risk

0}

Forecast transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. Most of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
carried out production locally with RMB as functional
currency while majority of the Group’s revenue was
denominated in United States dollars. As at 31 December
2024 and 2023, no related hedges were made by the
Group.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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(d) F=RERGE
(i) SBEDH

RZFT-_WE+=A=+—8 " &
FIEEMESBEZTIENBIRT
EEF R — ARG I 00 AR (= F
Z=F : 100EEZh) - &5 1M
REBHBRTLANEF49815,000E T
(ZZ = =4 :535,00057T) ° R:&
FTEHEMBSEIETE  FE—K
WA 100EES, - #EE /D RIEINZ
RAF¥E BAETZEEGNE
B F AKX 1 % ©

VA SRR E 53 AT M 7R 7R 5 [ B B AT
m A ERERNEZEFH N RERRD
BEENBRTAELNBREE o
RAEBRFHZESIIFTETAR
S IR AR BB 2 R A = R i
5 HAKERRAMEMNOTE
PARZ % | R BB 0 B S ) B
FEEME - AMNDBR_T_=F
MR R R EAEAETT -

(e) E¥EM

0}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in United States
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded. As at end
of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s material monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currency are as fellows:

3. €M I A%
(e) EEM#E

(if)

AH iR E ¥ E
TREINAEERBERRZAE
BERNEEENIIN ZERBFTED
BREEXRBEELEZERRAR -
REJBNME - BRARREEN
EILRHE @ LR F 45 B SARNHA [ =
S NEREABIINEBPBRER
BERASEZIEE 228 - 0
HERR - AEENIMNEETEHE
REREERBBZREENT :

Exposure to United States dollars

Ep A

2024 2023

—E-NfF —Eo=%F

US$°000 US$'000

FEx F=rx

Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W I Ho A FE YR IR 803 1,199

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEEY 8,723 4,720

Trade and other payables B 5 P R E M FER FRIE (189) (186)
Net exposure arising from recognised BEREERBEEEZ

assets and liabilities [2\Bg 7R 9,337 5,733
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

3. €M I A%

(e) EW R E

(iii) SBE

2

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit before taxation that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained

T 2R 75 BE M AN &R B A s 45 HR SR
ERERZINESERRZBESL
R FT A A b B = 45 T 2
NEB 2 BRFR S R A E £ 2 BNk
B o

constant.
2024 2023
—EBomE —T=F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange before exchange before
rates taxation rates taxation
HMHEEE = BRBLADRFI NI [ B35 A A
®m/CRd) RS | GRS R
US$'000 US$'000
TER T=r
United States dollars T 10% 934 10% 573
(10)% (934) (10)% (573)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit before taxation
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into United States dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2023.

* Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

®)

@

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTOCI as
disclosed in note 18.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2023: 10%) higher/lower, fair value reserve would
increase/decrease by approximately US$165,000 (2023:
increase/decrease by approximately US$542,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of equity investment at
FVTOCI.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The valuation committee works closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The valuation
committee reports the findings to the directors every quarter
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The following table gives information about how the fair
values are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

3. €M I A%

®)

@

ERE R

FANH R 18PT I EE - ARBEERENE A
FEEFAREMEEKGEZ ETERAR
A8 7 1 ER A AN (E A g o

BB DT
VAT 8RR E D AT T AR I 7 3R 5 B K P T e
R AN B EREE

fWABRAR AT A Z B EF TEK10%
(ZZEZ=F : 10%) ' AEBZRAFEE
EEERZRATFEAEFAEMEZEWZEZ
BAEZE 2 A EEESH MG, R
165,000F L (ZE==4F : #I1, B4
542,00037T) °

SMTAZATHENR
RUBRRME - AREHH 2 BT AR
AFBENE - ARAEFARETAT
(B 3T O B8 4 LR R A8

ERATFEER - NEBERAEEAT
BEMSEE - CUBRE-ERNS2EZ
BRT - AEBBFE=7 8 BBMEERD
ETHE - REZESETERS A BRI
ERfEERD - PABIEEE WIRE S ERIM &
BARE - HEZBEBFTAESTRES
R UHEEQATEERBHREA -

AEEeREENBBEREREREUQTF
BEE - TREHREBNAHEEXFE
BELERGBETERERN2E) - MR
NEBEFAEMASHTEER @ BT
EBEAENERE E=FHZ2AFEE
FMARE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(9) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Level 1 —

fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

3. &M I Az
(9) ¢RMIAZAFEENE®E)

F—% - AVFEEFAERABRERTS
RHAREHMEEXBENRE
(REFE) -

Level 2 — fair value measurements are those derived from FR - RTEEAEDRE-RFTA
inputs other than quoted prices included within ZWEIN  BEEXAFEITER
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, Z(EER) KEZE(BERT
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. E)VBER2HEDL -
derived from prices).

Level 3 — fair value measurements are those derived from F=H/ - RFEEFERELIERIEA
valuation techniques that include inputs for the ERMSEEGEAERN 2
asset or liability that are not based on observable FNEEXBB2HNGHES
market data (unobservable inputs). V& o

Valuation
Fair value technique and
Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy key input
Wt+t=-A=+-HATEE ATEEER EERTREESH
2024 2023
“E-ME —To=%
US$'000 Us$'000
TEx T=r
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BRATFEEFAEMEZAKZ . EMEE
~ Listed equity securities 1,648 5422  Level 1 Market quoted prices
- EmRAES F— MERE

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

32. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the non-cash transactions as disclosed in notes 12 and

33.

33,

(a)

the Group's major non-cash transactions are as the following:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
has reached an agreement with its fellow subsidiaries to
settle its lease liabilities by its R&M Prepayment (“Set Off
Arrangement”). At the date of completion for the Set Off
Arrangement in 2024, the accumulated amount of R&M
Prepayment used for the Set Off Arrangement was amounting
to approximately US$6,730,000 (“Set Off Amount”). The Set
Off Amount comprise of R&M Prepayment as brought forward
from 2023 of approximately US$5,972,000 (note 20) and
addition of R&M Prepayment of approximately US$758,000
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities.

2. TEHFBRERS

BRIMRE12 R33FA MBI FFR SR I -
ITZNFERERHMT ¢

REHE

HE-_Z-_WN&+-_A=t+—HIEFE
K%@éﬂﬁﬂ/@ﬁ% RIEK R - A
Hu &ﬁf@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁaF(Hfﬁ
HZHEE]) c R ZMFRELHE TR B
B AREERE R ETEN KR
=& %849 /46,730,000% T ([HKi5£5E]) -
RECEREA S - FEENEER
B IEFBT 3R #95,972,000% 7T (Hf5£20) -
NEEEZZTE-_NF+=_A=+—HIt
FERTILAEE R (ST FAT 758,000k

IT, ©

(a)

B MEXBELEZAEHR

TRAMAEERMEXBELECBEZS)
BRE MRS ES - mﬂﬁ%%?iZEﬁi‘%
iﬁ%mu%&ﬂixiﬁ@/mi ’ H#E/\\Z’K%@Z\?E\Eﬁ
EREBRTOERBMEXRBZHDR

Lease liabilities

HEaE
Us$'000
FEr
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H 16,189
Changes from financing cash flows RMERESTZ2EE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEMES 2 EAHS (37,644)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfNHEERS 2T S (93)
(37,737)
Non-cash movements FIHEEEH
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) FLE R 2 (i 5E7(a)) 2,538
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases RN HTHEEA CHEAEEM 48,402
Increase in lease liabilities arising from reassessment of EFE—IERAEENEE
lease term of an existing lease EEHEE A EEN 25,923
Decrease in lease liabilities from early termination of RERIEBREHEEEEY
existing leases (note 12(c)) HEa B FEE12(0) (1,014)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for sub-leasing of HOBMARMEHENHHE
land drilling rigs classified as finance leases (included in Pt i H T & TR
operating activities) (note 7(a)) HEHE 2N EEH
(5 Jr)\%«*é%i‘%)(m*fﬂa)) (558)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for leased vessels A EMM A
(included in operating activities) (note 7(a)) %H%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ,%% A ETAE
%) (fi5E7(a)) (1,887)
73,404
Exchanged adjustments R AR (13)
At 31 December 2023 R=B==F+=A=+—H 51,843
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

B MEXBELEZ2RBHKR®

Lease liabilities

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

HEAE
US$'000
FXx
At 1 January 2024 R=ZE-mF—HA—AH 51,843
Changes from financing cash flows MERERZEH
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERE 2 EARHS (11,692)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfNHEERE 2T EHD (51)
(11,743)
Non-cash movements FRESEEH
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) FERZ 7)) 1,603
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases RN HHEEA CHEAREM 434
Increase in lease liabilities arising from reassessment of B —IERAEENTER
lease term of an existing lease EEHEE A EEN 25,852
Increase in lease liabilities arising on lease modification on RERSEREENHER EEN
existing lease (note 12(c)) (BtzE12(0) 7,172
Decrease in lease liabilities from early termination of REKIEBEEHEEEZ
existing leases (note 12(c)) HE&BERD FIEE12(0) (17,883)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for sub-leasing of Ao RMERENHH
land drilling rigs classified as finance leases (included in Pt i H T & TR
operating activities) (note 7(a)) HEMRE ZFEAB5
GrAREET) (PiFE7@) (559)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for leased vessels HEEMMZ A
(included in operating activities) (note 7(a)) HEHRSFEHBD GrALEE
%) (Mt 7(a) (993)
Set off with R&M Prepayment (note 32) LA # 8 I S TR B 8 (B 3E32) (6,730)
8,896
Exchanged adjustments ERAE (18)
At 31 December 2024 RE-B-ONFE+=A=+t—H 48,978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 » LAZETTZT)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following significant transactions and balances with related
parties.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 9 and all of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

4. EXERBALRS
B FERA BB RR IS TR R
TRBREBI  REBTRBBALTEAT
BAR S R -

() TEEEAEME
TREIAEELIZERAEHS - B1F
XN TFHEIMBEENRRTES KM E
10 RENMAEREHERENSHE

2024 2023

11 5 —T==F

Us$'000 USs$'000

FE5x T=Ex

Salaries and other emoluments Fe REMME 2,032 1,623
Retirement scheme contributions RRETEI K 87 53
2,119 1,676

The remuneration of directors of the Company is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 7(b)).

(b) Transactions with related companies

(b) EFEBLARNZRS

ARBEENME I AFHEE S 2R(E
AMALTHRBELTSELERE -

e mmmat AMEE KA (R (b)) -

2024 2023

—EMmEF ===
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx F=rx
Sales of equipment and packages KEREBEBHE 24,396 69,920
Purchase of materials FREE YR 10 =
Service expenses AR 75 5 2 = 157
Lease rentals paid BEfHEE 6,942 15,267
Management service income BRI A 8,723 7,009
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55455 » AT & R)

35. AR A BARF

COMPANY
2024 2023
—EomE =TS
NOTE US$'000 US$'000
ih=a FEx F=
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB &R 48 103
Intangible assets | EE 131 161
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 2 i 5,486 5,486
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG S 155,140 127,354
160,805 133,104
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other receivables, prepayments HAnEWGRIR - BRI R EES
and deposits 454 434
Cash and cash equivalents ReRNEFEY 82 569
536 1,003
CURRENT LIABILITIES REIAE
Other payables and accrued charges — E fth &~ U8 I fEAHF 2 2,373 1,926
Lease liabilities HESE 41 59
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A Rl IE 76,322 46,397
78,736 48,382
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEFE (78,200) (47,379)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Lease liabilities HESE = 41
NET ASSETS BEERE 82,605 85,684
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E 30(a)
Share capital &N 41,418 41,418
Reserves ] 41,187 44,266
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 82,605 85,684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f7F5 B #485 + AT & R)

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 December 2024, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with China Merchants Innovation and Technology (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (“CM Innovation”). Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, the Company agreed to allot and issue 1,621,717,000
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.2 per share to CM
Innovation (“Subscription Transaction”). The aforesaid Subscription
Transaction were duly passed by the Company’s shareholders
by way of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on 28
February 2025. The Subscription Transaction was not completed as
at the date of these consolidated financial statements. Details of the
Subscription Transaction are set out in the Group’s announcements
dated 30 December 2024, 13 February 2025 and 28 February 2025
respectively.

36.

REHEBEE

RZZ-ME+-A=1H AR FEBEED
Bl RS (B BR AR (B BalHE) Tz
RiEW® - BERBERZE - ARFRENER
A&7 0. 278 TR EAS M R B Al F e 3 R 31T
1,621,717, 000/ ¥ & @Ak ([RERZ 1) - kit
REXFGEN_E-_AF_A-_FT/N\BETZ
FRERAFRIK 2 EEEARD IR ARE R R R
FRBE - BEZSHREVBHREZAH - RE
R HEARTHK - REX S FBEHNRAEE D
AMBERAR-—Z-_ME+=-_A=+H - ZZT=H
FE-A+=BR-_ZE-_AF-_A-+/\BHA

& o
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=
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Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (resigned on 5 July 2024)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Xie Shaohua

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Koo Ching Fan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Mei Xianzhi
Mr. Zhan Huafeng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Xue Jianzhong (Chairman) (appointed as a member on

22 March 2024 and appointed as Chairman on 5 July 2024)

Mr. Zou Zhendong
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Chen Weidong (ceased on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (Chairman) (ceased on 5 July 2024)
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Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Chen Weidong (ceased on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (ceased on 5 July 2024)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Mei Xianzhi (Chairman)

Mr. Zhan Huafeng

Mr. Zou Zhendong

Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Chen Weidong (ceased on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (ceased on 5 July 2024)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (Chairman) (appointed on 23 January 2024)
Mr. Zou Zhendong (appointed on 23 January 2024)
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
(appointed on 23 January 2024 and ceased on 5 July 2024)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1=1111
Cayman Islands
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

3rd Floor, Office Building

1-7 Sai Tso Wan Road

Tsing Yi Island, New Territories
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1=1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING AND DATE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
28 November 2005

PUBLIC AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company

Email: ir@cm-energy.com
Phone: +852 3919 6309
Fax: +852 2857 3381

TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES
3,243,433,914 shares as at 31 December 2024

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, Public Interest Entity Auditor
registered in accordance with the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

WEBSITE

WWW.Cm-energy.com

STOCK CODE
206

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. < Annual Report 2024
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1=1111

Cayman Islands
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